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PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS

General

New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. together with its sofidated subsidiaries (“NYMT”, the “Company”, “wg"our”, and “us”) is a self-
advised real estate investment trust, or REIThénkusiness of investing in residential adjustadle mortgage-backed securities issued by a
United States government-sponsored enterprise ("®@8EAgency”), such as the Federal National ModgaAssociation (“Fannie Mae”), or
the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddac”), prime credit quality residential adjus&dphte mortgage (“ARM”) loans, or
prime ARM loans, and non-agency mortgage-backedriess. We refer to residential adjustable ratetgage-backed securities throughout
this Annual Report on Form 10-K as “MBS” and MBSusd by a GSE as “ Agency MBS”. We seek attradtimg-term investment returns by
investing our equity capital and borrowed fundsueh securities. Our principal business objectv® igenerate net income for distribution to
our stockholders resulting from the spread betviberinterest and other income we earn on our istexarning assets and the interest expense
we pay on the borrowings that we use to financedfassets, which we refer to as our net intereshie.

Prior to the sale of our retail mortgage lendingtfoirm on March 31, 2007, a significant part of business involved the origination
mortgage loans, which we either sold to third jgartir retained in our portfolio of mortgage se@sitSince March 31, 2007, we have
exclusively focused our resources and efforts @rsting, on a leveraged basis, in MBS.

As of December 31, 2007, our assets were compopdmarily Agency MBS securities and prime ARMalts held in securitization
trusts. As of December 31, 2007, we had approxin&®09.3 million of total assets as compared t@$illion at December 31, 2006.

Recent Events
Recent Market Volatility

Recently, the residential mortgage market in théddnStates has experienced a variety of diffiegltind changed economic
conditions, including recent defaults, credit Iasaad liquidity concerns. During March 2008, nevpatential and actual security liquidations
has increased the price volatility and liquidityno&ny financial assets, including Agency MBS artteohigh-quality mortgage securities and
loans. As a result, market values for, and avaldijlidity to finance, certain mortgage securitiesluding some of our Agency MBS and
AAA-rated non-Agency MBS, have been negatively iotpd. As a response to these changed conditiorishwhve impacted a relatively
broad range of leveraged public and private congsawith investment and financing strategies simdasurs, the Company undertook a
number of strategic actions to reduce leverageraisé liquidity in the portfolio of Agency MBS. Sia March 7, 2008, the Company sold, in
aggregate, approximately $598.9 million of AgencB®$that comprised $516.4 million of Agency hybri®W MBS and $82.5 million of
Agency CMO floating rate MBS. These sales restiltealloss of $15.4 million. Additionally, as a résof these sales of MBS, we terminated
associated interest rate swaps that were usediggetmur liability costs with a notional balanceb@®7.7 million at a cost of $2.0 million. As of
March 31, 2008, our MBS portfolio totaled approxieig $507.0 million and was comprised of $259.6lioml of Agency hybrid ARM MBS,
$216.3 million of Agency CMO floating rate MBS (“OMFloaters”) and $31.1 million of AAA-rated ndkgency MBS. As of March 31, 20(
in aggregate, our Agency MBS portfolio was finaneéth approximately $431.7 million of reverse regheise agreement borrowings (referred
to as “repo” borrowings) with an average advante 68 91% that implies an average haircut of 9%lierentire portfolio. Within our total
portfolio, our Agency hybrid ARM MBS is financed thi$230.2 million of repo funding equating to avauce rate of 93% that implies a
haircut of 7% and our Agency CMO Floaters are foeghwith $180.7 million of repurchase agreemerdriting equating to an advance rate of
88% that implies a haircut of 12%. The Company alwas approximately $401.4 million of adjustableermortgages that were deemed to be
of “prime” or high quality at the time of originati. These loans are permanently financed with aqpiattely $388.3 million of collateralized
debt obligations and are held in securitizatiostsu

We generally finance our portfolio of Agency MBSdamon-Agency MBS through repurchase agreements. i&sult of recent market
disruptions that included company or hedge funidifes and securities portfolio foreclosures by repase agreement lenders, among other
events, repurchase agreement lenders have tightieeiedending standards and have done so in a erghat now distinguishes between “type”
of Agency MBS. For example, during the month of 8ta2008, lenders generally increased haircuts anagHybrid ARMs from 3% to 7%
and also increased haircuts on Agency CMO Flodtens 5% to a range of 10% to 30%, largely dependgon cash flow structure. Given the
volatility in haircuts on Agency CMO Floaters, inakth 2008 we sold approximately $82.5 million ofegy CMO Floaters at a loss of $4.7
million rather than meet the significant increasedquired haircuts on these securities. Althougtsald the Agency CMO Floaters that were
subject to the greatest increase in haircuts, waaaassure you that the haircuts on the remaidgency CMO Floaters in our MBS portfolio
will not increase from their current haircut averarf 12%.A material increase in haircuts on theseisties (or on our Agency hybrid ARM
MBS) would likely result in further securities safhat would likely negatively affect our profitétyi, liquidity and the results of operations.

Private Placemert of Common Stock



On February 21, 2008, we completed the issuancaaedf 15.0 million shares of our common stockedain accredited investors
(as such term is defined in Rule 501 of Regulaboof the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ouBies Act) at a price of $4.00 per share.
This private offering of our common stock generatetiproceeds to us of approximately $57.0 miladter payment of private placement fees,
but before expenses. Prior to this issuance of comgiock, we had 3,640,209 shares of common stotstamding.
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Private Placement of Convertible Preferred Stcto JMP Group Inc. and Certain of its Affiliates

On January 18, 2008, we issued 1.0 million shafesioSeries A Cumulative Redeemable ConvertibkfdPred Stock, which we ref
to as our Series A Preferred Shares, to JIMP Gilagpand certain of its affiliates for an aggregatiechase price of $20.0 million. The Serie
Preferred Shares entitle the holders to receiwaautative dividend of 10% per year, subject torzréase to the extent any future quarterly
common stock dividends exceed $0.10 per shareS€hies A Preferred Shares mature on December 30, 20d are convertible into shares
of our common stock based on a conversion priéldiO per share of common stock, which represeatsmeersion rate of five shares of
common stock for each Series A Preferred ShareelJeettain circumstances, the Series A PreferredeShwill automatically convert into
shares of our common stock. In addition, undetéehms of the Series A Preferred Shares, holders tie/option to convert, at any time, the
Series A Preferred Shares into shares of our constumk. The Series A Preferred Shares may alsedeemed by the Company in connection
with certain change of control events. The Seriddréferred Shares have voting rights that allowhitiders to vote with the common stock,
voting together as a single class on an “as coegtttiasis, and the holders have the right to appoia additional “independent” director, as
such term is defined under the rules of the NASDBtQck Market, to stand for election to our boardlioéctors at our next annual meeting of
stockholders in June 2008. At their option, thedbod may purchase up to an additional $20.0 millib8eries A Preferred Shares, on identical
terms, through April 4, 2008.

In connection with this private offering of our &= A Preferred Shares, we entered into a regmtraights agreement under which
we agreed to file with the SEC by no later thaneJ8@, 2008, a resale shelf registration statenoergdister for resale the Series A Preferred
Shares and the shares of our common stock intohvihiz Series A Preferred Shares are convertibldetthe terms of the Series A Preferred
Shares, in the event we fall to file a resale ttegiion statement with the SEC on or before Jun&808, holders of our Series A Preferred
Shares may be entitled to receive an additiondd dagdend at the rate of $0.10 per quarter peresfa each calendar quarter after June 30,
2008 until we file such resale registration statetme

Advisory Agreement with JIMP Asset Management L

Concurrent with the issuance of the Series A PrefeShares, we entered into an advisory agreemi#ntiP Asset Management
LLC (“JMPAM"), an affiliate of IMP Group, Inc. Undehe agreement, JMPAM advises two of our whollyred subsidiaries, Hypotheca
Capital, LLC, or HC (formerly known as The New Ydwlortgage Company, LLC), and New York Mortgage FagdLLC, as well as any
additional subsidiaries acquired or formed in tiieife to hold investments made on our behalf by AMPWe refer to these subsidiaries
throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K as thkafiaged Su bsidiaries.” As described below undete'sf Mortgage Lending Platform in
2007, we have an approximately $62.0 million opérating loss carry-forward that remains with @mnpany after the sale of our mortgage
lending business. As an advisor to the Managedi@iabgs, we expect that IMPAM will, at some pdimthe future, focus on the acquisitior
alternative mortgage related investments on betidalife Managed Subsidiaries. Some of those invagsmaay allow us to utilize all or a
portion of the net operating loss carry-forwardthte extent available by law. Because we interfdd¢as our investment efforts on Agency
MBS, we currently have no plans to acquire altéveamnortgage related investments to be held irMaaaged Subsidiaries. The
commencement of any activity by JMPAM must be appdoby the board of directors and any subsequeesitment on behalf of Managed
Subsidiaries must adhere to investment guidelideptad by our board of directors. For a descriptibthe economic and other material terms
of the advisory agreement, see “Advisory Agreeméetbw.

Changes in the Composition of the Board of Direcsor

Upon completion of the issuance and sale of theeSér Preferred Shares on January 18, 2008 andigmir$o the stock purchase
agreement providing for the sale of the Series &d?red Shares, James J. Fowler and Steven M. Afreeaiappointed to our board of
directors, with Mr. Fowler being appointed the retecutive chairman of our board of directors. Mowker also serves as the Chief Investn
Officer of the Managed Subsidiaries. Mr. Fowleaimanaging director of IMPAM and president of JIMRIB/ Trust, Inc., a private REIT that
is externally managed by JMPAM and an investorin®eries A Preferred Shares. In addition, conotréth the completion of the issuance
and sale of the Series A Preferred Shares and gnirtnithe stock purchase agreement, Steven BaBchtary Dwyer Pembroke, Jerome F.
Sherman and Thomas W. White resigned as membeng dfoard of directors. The board of directorsugently comprised of seven directors,
four of whom are “independent” (in accordance it applicable standards for independence presthbehe rules of the NASDAQ Stock
Market).

Sale of Mortgage Lending Platform in 2007

Prior to March 31, 2007, a significant part of dusiness involved the origination of mortgage lodmeugh HC. HC offered a broad
range of residential mortgage loan products to eowss, with a primary focus on prime, or high cregiality, residential mortgage loans. We
historically sold all fixed-rate and most of thgusdable rate loans that we originated to thirdiparwhile retaining selected adjustable-rate
hybrid mortgage loans in our portfolio. Howevergimaning in March 2006, we began to sell all loariginated by HC in an effort to increase
gain on sale revenue.
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In connection with our exploration of strategiceattatives and the significant operating and finainthallenges facing our
mortgage lending business, we completed two sepataitegic transactions during the first quarfet0®7 that resulted in our exit from the
mortgage lending business. On February 22, 200 tomleted the sale of our wholesale lending bgsite Tribeca Lending Corp., or
Tribeca Lending, a subsidiary of Franklin CreditMdgement Corporation, for an estimated purchase pfi$485,000. Shortly thereafter, on
March 31, 2007, we completed the sale of substnéil of the operating assets related to theiretartgage lending platform of HC to
Indymac Bank, F.S.B., (“Indymac”), for a purchasie@ of approximately $13.5 million in cash and #ssumption of certain of our liabilities.
Pursuant to this transaction, Indymac purchasestantally all of the operating assets related @d+etail mortgage lending platform,
including, among other things, leases held by HGfiproximately 30 retail mortgage lending offi¢ezcluding our corporate headquarters),
the tangible personal property located in thosgIretortgage banking offices, HC’s pipeline of desitial mortgage loan applications, or
pipeline loans, and escrowed deposits relatedei@igreline loans. In addition, Indymac assumedthigations of HC under the pipeline loans
and substantially all of HC’s liabilities under tharchased contracts and purchased assets arigngh@ closing date. Indymac also agreed to
pay (i) the first $500,000 in severance expens#s mgspect to “transferred employees” (as defimetthé asset purchase agreement for this
transaction) and (ii) severance expenses in exafe®k.1 million arising after the closing with resy to transferred employees. Under the terms
of this transaction with Indymac, approximately3gillion was placed in escrow to support warrastied indemnifications provided to
Indymac by HC as well as other purchase price adjeists. As of January 28, 2008, approximately $30®@has been paid to Indymac and
approximately $469,000 has been released to ustiierascrow account. We expect to pay Indymac ditiadal approximately $150,000 out
of the escrow account, with the remaining approxatye$750,000 to be released to us from escrowdbyater than September 30, 2008.
Indymac hired substantially all of our branch enyples and loan officers and a majority of HC empésyleased out of our corporate
headquarters. We have an approximately $62.0 mifimss operating loss carry-foward that remairik thie Company after the sale of the
mortgage lending business.

Although we sold substantially all of our mortgdgeding assets, we retain certain liabilities asged with the mortgage lending
business. Among these liabilities are the costsdated with the disposal of the mortgage loand Fel sale, potential repurchase and
indemnification obligations (including early paynielefaults) on previously sold mortgage loans amdaining lease payment obligations on
real and personal property.

In connection with the sale of our mortgage lendisgets, during the fourth quarter of 2006 we fladssubstantially all of the asse
liabilities and operations of our mortgage lendinginess as a discontinued operation in accordaitiehe provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 14¢€counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Asset§'SFAS No. 144"). As a result, we
have reported revenues and expenses related modttgage lending business as a discontinued oparatid the related assets and liabilities as
assets and liabilities related to a discontinuegtaton for all periods presented in the accompangonsolidated financial statements. Certain
assets, such as the deferred tax asset that rewmitinthe Company after the sale of the mortgagdileg business, and certain liabilities, such
as subordinated debt and liabilities related tededacilities not assigned to Indymac, are comsitlpart of the ongoing operations of our
Company and accordingly, we have not classified discontinued in accordance with the provisionSIBAS No. 144. See Note 9 in the notes
of our consolidated financial statements.

Our Business

We are a self-advised REIT in the business of itiwgson a leveraged basis, in Agency MBS, primeVARans and non-Agency
MBS. We seek to acquire and manage investmentitiesuhat will, over the long-term, generate posinet interest income for
our shareholders. We believe that the best apprmegénerating a positive net interest income mémage our liabilities, principally in the
form of short-term indebtedness (maturities of gear or less), in relation to the interest ratkgisf our investments. To help achieve this
result, we employ repurchase agreement financiegerglly short-term, and over time will combine &nancings with hedging techniques,
primarily interest rate swaps. We may, subject gdmaining our REIT qualification, also employ otleedging techniques from time to time,
including interest rate caps, floors and swap ogtim protect against adverse interest rate movisnen

Our Co-Chief Executive Officers have an averag2dyears experience managing short duration MBSwaortigage loan portfolios
through different economic cycles and during paatk®et dislocations. In particular, we believe ceputation among and relationships with
financial institutions have helped us to endurenédislocation and uncertainty in the MBS liqujdibarket.

As of December 31, 2007, our investment portfoleswomprised of approximately $350.5 million in MB&luding $318.7 of
Agency MBS, approximately $31.8 million of non-AggnMBS of which $30.6 million are rated in the hégih category by two rating agencies
and $430.7 million of prime ARM loans held in satimation trusts.

Our Investment Strategy

Since inception, our investment portfolio stratégg focused on the acquisition of high-credit quaiRM loans and securities that
we believe are likely to generate attractive loagyt risk-adjusted returns on capital invested. &maging our mortgage portfolio, we:



invest in high-credit quality Agency and non-AgemdBS, including ARM securities, collateralized ngatie obligation
floaters, or CMO Floaters, and high-credit quatitgrtgage loans;

finance our portfolio by entering into repurchagee@ments, or issuing collateral debt obligatiaiating to our
securitizations;

generally operate as a long-term portfolio invesiod

generate earnings from the return on our mortgagerties and spread income from our securitizedgage loan portfolio.
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We will in the future focus on the acquisition ofj@ncy MBS, taking into consideration the amount aadire of the anticipated
returns from the investment, our ability to pledige investment for secured, collateralized borr@siand the costs associated with obtaining,
financing and managing for these investments.

We entered into an advisory agreement with IMPANK&spant to which IMPAM will advise the Managed Sdlzgies and is expecte
at some point in the future, to implement an alitwe mortgage related investment strategy folMa@aged Subsidiaries. Although we
currently have no plans to acquire alternative gage related investments to be held in the Man&gddidiaries, we do expect that IMPAM
will, in the future, as an advisor to the ManagedhSdiaries, focus on the acquisition of alterrativortgage investments on behalf of the
Managed Subsidiaries that will allow us to utiledeor a portion of the net operating loss carrgafard to the extent available by law. This
strategy, if and when implemented, will vary fromr @ore strategy. We can make no assurance that WdPAM will be successful at
implementing any alternative investment strategy.

Our Targeted Asset Class

With respect to ARM and hybrid ARM securities, weitally purchase, and will focus primarily on therchase and management of
hybrid MBS issued by either Fannie Mae or FreddacMHybrid ARM MBS are adjustable rate mortgagetsthat have a rate that is fixed
a period of three to ten years initially, beforedmming annual or semi-annual adjustable rate mgesgalypically we seek to acquire hybrid
ARM MBS with fixed periods of five years of less. Inost cases we are required to pay a premiuni¢ca @bove the par value, for these assets
which generally is between 101% and 102% of thevphre, depending on the pabseugh rates of the security, the months remaibigfgre it
converts to an ARM, and other considerations.

Fannie Mae guarantees to the holder of a FannieNV&® that it will distribute amounts representirgpeduled principal and interest
on the mortgage loans in the pool underlying thenk&aMae certificate, whether or not received, #redfull principal amount of any such
mortgage loan foreclosed or otherwise finally ldated, whether or not the principal amount is distuaceived. Freddie Mac guarantees to
each holder of certain Freddie Mac certificatestitmely payment of interest at the applicable pssugh rate and principal on the holder’s
pro rata share of the unpaid principal balancdefrelated mortgage loans. We prefer Fannie MagdyRM MBS due to their shorter
remittance cycle; the time between when a borronakes a payment, and the investor received thpayehent.

The obligations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, utitsr respective guaranties are solely thoseaoihie Mae and Freddie Mac
respectively, and are not backed by the full faitld credit of the United States. If Fannie Maer@dBie Mac were unable to satisfy their
respective obligations, distributions to holdershaf respective MBS would consist solely of payraemtd other recoveries on the underlying
mortgage loans and, accordingly, defaults and geéncies on the underlying mortgage loans wouleeshly affect monthly distributions to
holders of the respective MBS.

Our investment portfolio also includes prime ARMans held in securitization trusts. The loans helgleicuritization trusts are loans
that primarily were originated by our discontinuedrtgage lending business, and to a lesser exteohased, that we securitized in 2005.
These loans are substantially prime full documémtanterest only hybrid ARMs on residential projies located in New York and
Massachusetts. All are first lien mortgages.

Our Financing Strategy

To finance our MBS investment portfolio, we genlgrakek to borrow between eight and 12 times thewsrnof our equity. At
December 31, 2007 our leverage ratio for our MB&gatment portfolio, which we define as our outstagdndebtedness under repurchase
agreements divided by total stockholdexguity, was 17.1 to one. This definition of thedeage ratio is consistent with the manner in witie
credit providers under our repurchase agreemeatiedd our leverage. The Company also has $45omitf subordinated trust preferred
securities outstanding and $417.0 million of celfatized debt obligations outstanding both of whacé not dependent on market values of
pledged securities or changing credit conditionsliylenders. As of March 31, 2008 our estimatedrage ratio was 7.2 to 1 for our MBS
investment portfolio.
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We strive to maintain and achieve a balanced aversk funding mix to finance our investment poitf@nd assets. We rely primarily
on repurchase agreements and collateralized déatbns, or CDOs, in order to finance our investrportfolio. Repurchase agreements
provide us with short-term borrowings that are sedby the securities in our investment portfolibese short-term borrowings bear interest
rates that are closely linked to the LIBOR, a shemin market interest rate used to determine gbort loan rates. Pursuant to these repurchase
agreements, the financial institution that sensea aounterparty will generally agree to providevith financing based on to the market value
of the securities that we pledge as collateral delsaircut. Our repurchase agreements may regsire deposit additional collateral pursuant to
a margin call if the market value of our pledgedateral declines or if unscheduled principal paptseon the mortgages underlying our
pledged securities increase at a higher than patid rate. To reduce the risk that we would baired to sell portions of our portfolio at a Ic
to meet margin calls, we intend to maintain a begaof cash or cash equivalent reserves and a leatdnmpledged mortgage securities to use
as collateral for additional borrowings. As of Detzer 31, 2007, we had repurchase agreements aditeganith four different counterparties
totaling $315.7 million.

As of December 31, 2007, we financed approxime$d30.7 million of loans we hold in securitizationgts permanently with
approximately $13.7 million of our own equity inte®ent in the securitization trusts and the issuarfi@pproximately $417.0 million of CDC
During 2007 we sold approximately $339.0 millionpséviously retained securitizations resultinghe tssuance of non-recourse debt and
eliminating any risk of counterparty financing ches, such as increased margins due to declinbgs imérket value of our securities or redt
availability of liquidity. This CDO issuance repkd short-term repurchase agreements freeing upxdpyately $17.5 million in capital
needed for repurchase agreement haircuts. See agédament’s Discussion and Analysis of Results ofr@mns and Financial Conditien
Liquidity and Capital Resources” for further dissios on our financing activities.

Our Hedging and Interest Rate Risk Management Stragies

A significant risk to our operations, relating torgortfolio management, is the risk that interasés on our assets will not adjust ai
same times or amounts that rates on our liabilé@jast. Even though we retain and invest in ARRUsiies, many of the underlying hybrid
ARM loans in our securities portfolio have initfaded rates of interest for a period of time rargfrom two to five years. Our funding costs
variable and the maturities are short term in ratWe use hedging instruments to reduce our risicisted with changes in interest rates that
could affect our investment portfolio of mortgagars and securities. Typically, we utilize intemede swaps to effectively extend the maturity
of our short term borrowings to better match theriest rate sensitivity to the underlying assetsg&nanced. By extending the maturities on
our short term borrowings, we attempt to lock spaead between the interest income generated higtdrest earning assets in our investment
portfolio and the interest expense related to itheniting of such assets in order to maintain aloedtion gap of less than one year. As we
acquire mortgage-backed securities, we seek toehieterest rate risk in order to stabilize net tigakies and earnings during periods of rising
interest rates. To do so, we use hedging instrusriardonjunction with our borrowings to approximéte re-pricing characteristics of such
assets. The Company utilizes a model based ridgsisaystem to assist in projecting portfolio peniances over a variety of different interest
rates and market stresses. The model incorporaifés i interest rates, changes in prepaymentsoéimer factors impacting the valuations of
our financial securities, including mortgage-backedurities, repurchase agreements, interestwatgssand interest rate caps. However, given
the prepayment uncertainties on our mortgage assetsot possible to definitively lock-in a spiebetween the earnings yield on our
investment portfolio and the related cost of boiirgs. Nonetheless, through active management andgé of evaluative stress scenarios of
the portfolio, we believe that we can mitigategngficant amount of both value and earnings vatstil

Changes in Strategies

Currently we are following a portfolio strategy thiefocused on investments in Agency MBS. During time we operated a mortgz
lending business we sought to invest in both AgeviBys and residential prime whole loan securitizasio/Ve no longer intend to invest in
residential whole loan securitizations. Due to gemin market conditions and subject to our intemfualify for an exemption from registrati
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as anteratdnvestment Company Act, our board of direstoay vary our investment strategy,
our financing strategy, or our hedging strateggrat time.

Our Investment Guidelines

In acquiring assets for our portfolio and subsetjyenanaging those assets, we adhere to certagsiment guidelines and policies.
Our investment guidelines define the following sifisations for securities we own:

« Category | investments are mortgage-backed seesitltiat are either rated within one of the two éfjhating categories by
at least one of the Rating Agencies, or have tlegiayment guaranteed by Freddie Mac, Fannie M&irorie Mae.

« Category Il investments are mortgage-backed séesifitith an investment grade rating of BBB/Baa eftdr by, at least one
of the Rating Agencies.



« Category lll investments are mortgage-backed seéesithat have no rating from, or are rated belovestment grade by at
least one of the Rating Agencies.

The Company's current investment strategy descabegte will only focus on Category | investments.
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The investment policy adopted by our Board of Diimex provides, among other things, that:

no investment shall be made which would cause €ailtto qualify as a REIT;

« no investment shall be made which would cause bg tegulated as an investment company;

« atleast 70% of our assets will be Category | itmesits or loans that back or will back such investts; and
« no more than 7.5% of our assets will be Categdrintiestments.

Our Board of Directors may amend or waive compléawith this investment policy at any time witholieétconsent of our
stockholders.

To achieve our portfolio strategy and mitigate risfe:

« attempt to maintain a net duration, or duration, gdmne year or less on our ARM portfolio, relatemtrowings and hedging
instruments;

« structure our liabilities to mitigate potential rgige effects of changes in the relationship betwsdert- and longer-term
interest rates;

« focus on holding hybrid ARM MBS and hybrid ARM laaim securitized trusts rather than fixed-rate MB%ans, as we
believe we will be adversely affected to a less¢er by early repayments due to falling interesés or a reduction in our |
interest income due to rising interest rates.

The Co-Chief Executive Officers have the authaigtyapprove, without the need of further author@af our board of directors, the
following transactions from time to time, any of isfn may be entered into by us or any of our subsiel:

« the purchase and sale of Agency and non-Agency MBISect to the limitations described above;
» securitizations of our mortgage loan portfolio;

« the purchase and sale of agency debt;

« the purchase and sale of U.S. Treasury securities;

« the purchase and sale of overnight investments;

« the purchase and sale of money market funds;

« hedging arrangements using:

. interest rate swaps and Eurodollar contracts;
. caps, floors and collars;

. financial futures; and

. options on any of the above; and

« the incurrence of indebtedness using:

. repurchase agreements;

i term repurchase agreements.



Our Relationship with IMPAM and the Advisory Agreement

JMPAM, an external advisor to the managed subsadiais a wholly-owned subsidiary of IMP Group Jm investor in each of our
two private offerings, and manages a family of Ergjrategy and multi-manager hedge fund produddf$2AM also sponsors and partners with
other alternative investment firms. JMPAM was foeddyy Joseph Jolson in 1999. As of December 317 2aMPAM had $275.5 million in
client assets under management.
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Advisory Agreemen

As described above, on January 18, 2008, we entet@dn advisory agreement with IMPAM. The follagris a summary of the key

economic terms of the advisory agreement:

Type

Description

Base Advisory Fee

Incentive Compensation

Termination Fee

A base advisory fee of 1.50% per annum of the “gquapital” of the Manage
Subsidiaries is payable by us to JMPAM in cashrtguly in arrears.

Equity capital of the Managed Subsidiaries is d=fias, for any fiscal quarter, the
greater of (i) the net asset value of the investmehthe Managed Subsidiaries as of
the end of the fiscal quarter, excluding any innesits made prior to the date of the
advisory agreement and any assets contributed bythe Managed Subsidiaries for
the purpose of facilitating compliance with our kemston from regulation under the
Investment Company Act, or (ii) the sum of $20,000, plus 50% of the net proceeds
to us or our subsidiaries of any offering of comnoomreferred stock completed by
during the term of the advisory agreement.

The advisory agreement calls for incentive compigmsao be paid by us to IMPAM
under certain circumstances. If earned, incentbrepensation is paid quarterly in
arrears in cashprovided, howevethat a portion of the incentive compensation may
be paid in shares of our common stock.

For the first three fiscal quarters of each figedr, 25% of the core earnings of the
Managed Subsidiaries attributable to the investmt#rat are managed by JIMPAM
that exceed a hurdle rate equal to the greatey 8f00% or (ii) 0.50% plus one-fourth
of the ten year treasury rate for such quarter.

For the fourth fiscal quarter of each fiscal yehe difference between (i) 25% of the
GAAP (as defined in Item 7 below) net income of h@naged Subsidiaries
attributable to the investments that are managetMiyAM that exceeds a hurdle rate
equal to the greater of (a) 8.00% and (b) 2.00% fie ten year treasury rate for such
fiscal year, and (ii) the amount of incentive comgegtion paid for the first three fiscal
quarters of such fiscal year.

If we terminate the advisory agreement for causegermination fee is payable.
Otherwise, if we terminate the advisory agreemermect not to renew it, we will pe

a cash termination fee equal to the sum of (i)average annual base advisory fee and
(ii) the average annual incentive compensationezhduring the 24-month period
immediately preceding the date of termination.

As of March 1, 2008, IMPAM was not managing ane#si the Managed Subsidiaries, but was earnlmaga advisory fee on the
proceeds to us from our private offerings in ealchamuary 2008 and February 2008.

Conflicts of Interest with IMPAM; Equitable Allocabn of Investment Opportunities

JMPAM manages, and is expected to continue to marwber client accounts with similar or overlagpinvestment strategies.
JMPAM has agreed to make available to the Managidi8iaries all investment opportunities that itedmines, in its reasonable and good
faith judgment, based on their investment objestiy®licies and strategies, and other relevanofacare appropriate for them in accordance
with IMPAM’s written allocation procedures and pas.

Since many of the Managed Subsidiaries’ targetedsiments are typically available only in specifighntities and since many of
their targeted investments may also be targetessinvents for other IMPAM accounts, JMPAM may noalle to buy as much of any given
investment as required to satisfy the needs aifatk clients’ accounts. In these cases, JIMPAMcation procedures and policies would
typically allocate such investments to multiple@agts in proportion to the needs of each accoum. golicies permit departure from
proportional allocation when the total IMPAM alltioa would result in an inefficiently small amouwftthe security being purchased for an
account. In that case, the policy allows for adtmnal” protocol of allocating subsequent investiseso that, on an overall basis, each account



is treated equitably.

JMPAM is authorized to follow broad investment glides. Our board of directors will periodicallywiew the investment guidelines
and the Managed Subsidiaries’ investment portfolimswvever, our board of directors generally wilt neview individual investments. James J.
Fowler became our non-executive chairman of thedopon closing of the Series A Preferred Share3amary 18, 2008 and also serves as
the Chief Investment Officer of our Managed Sulzsidis. Mr. Fowler is a managing director of IMPAMIgresident of IMP Realty Trust
Inc., a private REIT that is externally managedMPAM and one of the investors in our Series A &refd Shares. In conducting periodic
reviews of the investments held by our Managed @idytes, our directors will rely primarily on infmation provided to them by JIMPAM.
Furthermore, the Managed Subsidiaries may use eniplestment strategies and transactions, whichbealifficult or impossible to unwin
by the time they are reviewed by our directors. AMFhas great latitude within our Managed Subsidisrbroad investment guidelines to
determine the types of assets it may decide agepiavestments for the Managed Subsidiaries. fihestment guidelines do not permit
JMPAM to invest in agency securities, since thasestments are made by us. As of the date of élpisrt, our board of directors has not
authorized JMPAM to commence the acquisition okstment assets on behalf of the Managed Subsisliarie
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The advisory agreement does not restrict the glufittMPAM or its affiliates from engaging in othleusiness ventures of any nature
(including other REITS), whether or not such veesuare competitive with the Managed Subsidiariasiress so long as IMPAM'’s
management of other REITs or funds does not disddga us or the Managed Subsidiaries.

JMPAM may engage other parties, including its @fds, to provide services to us or our subsidsapeovided that any such
agreements with affiliates of IMPAM shall be omtemo more favorable to such affiliate than wouddobtained from a third party on an
arm’s-length basis and, in certain circumstancegt@ed by a majority of our independent directW¥éth respect to portfolio management
services, any agreements with affiliates shallligest to our prior written approval and JIMPAM dhiamain liable for the performance of si
services. With respect to monitoring services, agreements with affiliates shall be subject tofior written approval and the base advisory
fee payable to JMPAM shall be reduced by the amofiahy fees payable to such other parties, althoug will reimburse any out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by such other parties that arduesable by us.

Company History

We were formed as a Maryland corporation in Separ2b03. In June 2004, we sold 15.0 million shéoe$.0 million shares as
adjusted for the reverse stock split) of our comrsimtk in an initial public offering, or IPO, apaice to the public of $9.00 (or $45.0 per share
as adjusted for the reverse stock split) per st@@wacurrent with our IPO, we issued 2,750,000 shafeommon stock in exchange for the
contribution to us of 100% of the equity interest$1C, which, prior to our acquisition of such awntisold or brokered all of the loans it
originated to third parties. Prior to the IPO, weé dot have recurring business operations. Effectith the completion of our IPO, we opere
two business segments: (i) our mortgage portfodmagement segment and (i) our mortgage lendingneeg Under this business model, we
would retain and either finance in our portfolidested adjustable-rate and hybrid mortgage loaatsvile originated or we would sell them to
third parties, while continuing to sell all fixedte loans originated by HC to third parties. Comairggnin March 2006, we stopped retaining all
loans originated by HC and began to sell thesesloatthird parties. As set forth above, we exiteglmortgage lending business on March 31,
2007 and now exclusively focus our efforts and veses on our mortgage portfolio management business

Our shares of common stock were listed on the Nevk 6tock Exchange, or NYSE, until September 10,72@t which time our
common stock was de-listed from the NYSE becausawerage global market capitalization was lesas 826 million over a consecutive 30
trading day period. Commencing on September 117 2680r common stock began trading on the Over thnr Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”).
In October 2007, we completed a 1-for-5 reverseksgplit of our common stock. As of March 31, 20608f common stock continued to trade
on the OTCBB under the symbol “NMTR.OB.”

Certain Federal Income Tax Considerations and Our f&itus as a REIT

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sedd®6-860 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 06198 amended, for federal
income tax purposes, commencing with our taxabée gaded December 31, 2004, and we believe thatuwtent and proposed method of
operation will enable us to continue to qualifyaaREIT for our taxable year ended December 31, 20@ithereafter. We hold our mortgage
portfolio investments directly or in a qualified REsubsidiary, or QRS. Accordingly, the net intériesome we earn on these assets is
generally not subject to federal income tax as lasgve distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxafd®me in the form of a dividend to our
stockholders each year and comply with variousratbguirements. Taxable income generated by HCtaxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, is
subject to regular corporate income tax.

The benefit of REIT tax status is a tax treatmbat avoids “double taxation,” or taxation at bdik torporate and stockholder levels,
that generally applies to distributions by a cogtimn to its stockholders. Failure to qualify aREIT would subject our Company to federal
income tax (including any applicable minimum tar)its taxable income at regular corporate ratesdistdbutions to its stockholders in any
such year would not be deductible by our Company.

Summary Requirements for Qualificatio
Organizational Requirements
A REIT is a corporation, trust, or association timetets each of the following requirements:
1) It is managed by one or more trustees or dirscto

2) Its beneficial ownership is evidenced by trarethée shares, or by transferable certificates otleial interest.

3) It would be taxable as a domestic corporatian for the REIT provisions of the federal income kaws.



4) It is neither a financial institution nor an imance company subject to special provisions oféteral income tax
laws.

5) At least 100 persons are beneficial ownerssoflitares or ownership certificates.
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6) Not more than 50% in value of its outstandingrek or ownership certificates is owned, directljndirectly, by
five or fewer individuals, which the federal inconae laws define to include certain entities, dgrihe last half of any
taxable year.

7) It elects to be a REIT, or has made such eledtipa previous taxable year, and satisfies &dviamnt filing and
other administrative requirements established ByIRS that must be met to elect and maintain REdus.

8) It meets certain other qualification tests, diésd below, regarding the nature of its income assets.

We must meet requirements 1 through 4 during otireetaxable year and must meet requirement 5 duireast 335 days of a
taxable year of 12 months, or during a proportienmrt of a taxable year of less than 12 months.

Qualified REIT Subsidiaries A corporation that is a “qualified REIT subsidiars not treated as a corporation separate fram it
parent REIT. All assets, liabilities, and itemsrafome, deduction, and credit of a “qualified RElbsidiary” are treated as assets, liabilities,
and items of income, deduction, and credit of tB#TR A “qualified REIT subsidiary” is a corporatipall of the capital stock of which is
owned by the REIT. Thus, in applying the requiretaetescribed herein, any “qualified REIT subsidiahat we own will be ignored, and all
assets, liabilities, and items of income, deduct#ond credit of such subsidiary will be treatedasassets, liabilities, and items of income,
deduction, and credit.

Taxable REIT SubsidiariesA REIT is permitted to own up to 100% of the &t@é one or more “taxable REIT subsidiaries,” orSR
A TRS is a fully taxable corporation that may emeome that would not be gualifying income if eatrirectly by the parent REIT. Overall,
no more than 20% of the value of a REIT’s assetg toasist of stock or securities of one or more $RS

A TRS will pay income tax at regular corporate sad@ any income that it earns. In addition, the T&R8s limit the deductibility of
interest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parenflR&lassure that the TRS is subject to an appriepléael of corporate taxation. We have
elected for HC to be treated as a TRS. HC is stbjexorporate income tax on its taxable income.

Qualified REIT Assets

On the last day of each calendar quarter, at 4t of the value of our assets (which includesassets held through a qualified
REIT subsidiary) must consist of qualified REIT etss— primarily, real estate, mortgage loans sethyereal estate, and certain mortgage-
backed securities (“Qualified REIT Assets”), govaent securities, cash, and cash items. We beliatestibstantially all of our assets are and
will continue to be Qualified REIT Assets. On tlastlday of each calendar quarter, of the asseisclated in the foregoing 75% asset test
value of securities that we hold issued by anyieseer may not exceed 5% in value of our totaltassed we may not own more than 10% of
the voting power or value of any one issuer’s @umding securities (with an exception for securitéa qualified REIT subsidiary or of a
taxable REIT subsidiary). In addition, the aggregadlue of our securities in taxable REIT subsid&cannot exceed 20% of our total assets.
We monitor the purchase and holding of our assetpdrposes of the above asset tests and seekiag@maur portfolio to comply at all times
with such tests.

We intend to limit substantially all of the ass#tat we acquire to Qualified REIT Assets. Our siggtto maintain REIT status nr
limit the type of assets, including hedging cortisaand other assets that we otherwise might acquire

We may from time to time hold, through one or mi@reable REIT subsidiaries, assets that, if we teddh directly, could generate
income that would have an adverse effect on oulifipadion as a REIT or on certain classes of dockholders.

Gross Income Tests
We must meet the following separate income-bassd &ach year:

1. The 75% Test. At least 75% of our gross incoandlfe taxable year must be derived from Qualiftl T Assets.
Such income includes interest (other than intdrased in whole or in part on the income or pradftany person) on
obligations secured by mortgages on real propegtits from real property, gain from the sale of Ifieal REIT Assets, and
qualified temporary investment income or interé@steal property. The investments that we have naakintend to contint
to make will give rise primarily to mortgage intstgualifying under the 75% income test.

2. The 95% Test. At least 95% of our gross incoandtfe taxable year must be derived from the seutttat are
qualifying for purposes of the 75% test, and framid&nds, interest or gains from the sale or digmosof stock or other
assets that are not dealer property.



Distributions

We must distribute to our stockholders on a pra batsis each year an amount equal to at lead%)& our taxable income before
deduction of dividends paid and excluding net edgain, plus (ii) 90% of the excess of the nebme from foreclosure property over the tax
imposed on such income by the Internal Revenue Qese (i) any “excess non-cash income.” We hanagle and intend to continue to make
distributions to our stockholders in sufficient amts to meet the distribution requirement for REURlification.
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Investment Company Act Exemption

We operate our business so as to be exempt froistnaggon under the Investment Company Act. We walythe exemption provided
by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company. Aiée monitor our portfolio periodically and priar ¢ach investment to confirm that we
continue to qualify for the exemption. To qualify the exemption, we make investments so thataat E5% of the assets we own consist of
qualifying mortgages and other liens on and intsresreal estate, which are collectively referre@ds “qualifying real estate assets,” and so
that at least 80% of the assets we own consigalfastate-related assets (including our qualifyéad estate assets, both as measured on an
unconsolidated basis). We generally expect thatrougstments will be considered either qualifyieglrestate assets or real estatated asse
under Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Compaal Qualification for the Section 3(c)(5)(C) exetigm may limit our ability to make
certain investments. In addition, we must ensuaéelach of our subsidiaries qualifies for the S&c8(c)(5)(C) exemption or another
exemption available under the Investment Comparty Ac

Competition

Our success depends, in large part, on our abiligcquire assets at favorable spreads over owwiny costs. When we invest in
mortgage-backed securities, mortgage loans and imthestment assets, we compete with a varietpstitutional investors, including other
REITs, insurance companies, mutual funds, hedgesfupension funds, investment banking firms, bamdother financial institutions that
invest in the same types of assets. Many of thegestors have greater financial resources and sibcdawer costs of capital than we do. The
existence of these competitive entities, as wethagossibility of additional entities forming time future, may increase the competition for the
available supply of mortgage assets suitable fochmase, resulting in higher prices and lower yieldsassets.

Personnel
As of December 31, 2007 we employed eight people.
Corporate Office

Our corporate headquarters is located at 1301 Asefthe Americas, New York, New York and our télepe number is (212) 792-
0107.

Access to our Periodic SEC Reports and Other Corpate Information

Our internet website address is www.nymtrust.core.iéke available free of charge, through our itewebsite, our annual report
on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-@yent reports on Form 8-K and any amendments tihdénat we file or furnish pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable wiezlectronically file such material with,
furnish it to, the SEC. Our Corporate Governancal@ines and Code of Business Conduct and Ethidgtencharters of our Audit,
Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Govem@&oenmittees are also available on our websiteaam@vailable in print to any
stockholder upon request in writing to New York Myage Trust, Inc., c/o Secretary, 1301 Avenue efAmericas, 7th floor, New York, New
York 10019. Information on our website is neithartpf nor incorporated into this Annual Reportfeorm 10-K.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimfard-looking statements. Forward looking statermané those which are not
historical in nature and can often be identifiedtir inclusion of words such as “will,” “anticipg” “estimate,” “should,” “expect,” “believe,”
“intend” and similar expressions. Any projectionref’enues, earnings or losses, capital expendjtdigtsibutions, capital structure or other

financial terms is a forward-looking statement. t8ier statements regarding the following particylane forward-looking in nature:

« our business proposed portfolio strategy;
« future performance, developments, market forecaspsojected dividends; and

» projected capital expenditures.
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It is important to note that the description of business is a statement about our operations aspécific point in time. It is not
meant to be construed as an investment policytlatypes of assets we hold, the amount of levensgese, the liabilities we incur and other
characteristics of our assets and liabilities atgext to reevaluation and change without notice.

Our forward-looking statements are based upon @amagement’s beliefs, assumptions and expectatiomsrduture operations and
economic performance, taking into account the imfation currently available to us. Forwdabking statements involve risks and uncertain
some of which are not currently known to us, thaghtcause our actual results, performance or @iismcondition to be materially different
from the expectations of future results, perforngaocfinancial condition we express or imply in dogward-looking statements. Some of the
important factors that could cause our actual tesperformance or financial condition to differ tergally from expectations are:

« our proposed portfolio strategy may be changedatified by our management without advance noticgt@ckholders, and
that we may suffer losses as a result of such noadifins or changes;

« market changes in the terms and availability ofirepase agreements used to finance our investroetfiblp activities;
« interest rate mismatches between our mortgage-tasg@urities and our borrowings used to fund suchhases;

« our ability to minimize losses associated with wiglient loans in our securitization trusts.

« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayaest r

« effects of interest rate caps on our adjustablerairtgage-backed securities;

« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

« potential impacts of our leveraging policies on nat income and cash available for distribution;

« changes in the U.S. economy

« our board's ability to change our operating pofi@ed strategies without notice to you or stockéolpproval,

« our ability to manage, minimize or eliminate liafils stemming from the discontinued operationduiding, among other
things, litigation, repurchase obligations on thkes of mortgage loans and property leases;

« there are conflicts of interest in our relationsiith JIMPAM, which could result in decisions tha¢ aot in the best interests
of our stockholders;

« termination of the advisory agreement may be diffiand costly;

« we may be required to pay liquidated damages iretteat we fail to satisfy certain obligations untte¥ Common
Stock Registration Rights Agreement; and

« the other important factors described in this AnmReport on Form 10-K, including those under thptimas “ltem 1A. Risk
Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysi§iofincial Condition and Results of Operations,” &Qdantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.”

We undertake no obligation to publicly update afise any forward-looking statements, whether assalt of new information, future
events or otherwise. In light of these risks, utaiaties and assumptions, the events describedibfoovard-looking events might not occur.
We qualify any and all of our forward-looking staents by these cautionary factors. In addition, steould carefully review the risk factors
described in other documents we file from timeiteetwith the Securities and Exchange Commission.

11




Table of Content

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are the risks that we believe aratetial to stockholders. You should carefully codsr the following risk factors and th
various other factors identified in or incorporatedy reference into any other documents filed bywish the SEC in evaluating our compar
and our business. The risks discussed herein cameaadely affect our business, liquidity, operatingsults, prospects, and financial
condition. This could cause the market price of osecurities to decline. The risk factors descrideelow are not the only risks that may
affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties notgsently known to us also may adversely affect business, liquidity, operating results,
prospects, and financial conditior

Risks Related to Our Business
Interest rate fluctuations may cause loss

We believe our primary interest rate exposure esl& our mortgage loans, MBS and variable-raté, deshwell as the interest rate
swaps and caps that we utilize for risk managempergoses. Changes in interest rates may affeatetlinterest income, which is the
difference between the interest income we earnunrinterest-earning assets and the interest expeasecur in financing these assets.
Changes in the level of interest rates also cacadfur ability to acquire mortgage loans or MB® value of our assets and our ability to
realize gains from the sale of such assets. Irriagef rising interest rates, our interest expermdd increase while the interest we earn on our
assets would not change as rapidly. This would e affect our profitability.

Our operating results depend in large part on wiffees between income received from our assetsf wetdit losses, and our
financing costs. We anticipate that in most cafsgsany period during which our assets are not mataded, the income from such assets will
adjust more slowly to interest rate fluctuationarthhe cost of our borrowings. Consequently, chamg@terest rates, particularly short-term
interest rates, may significantly influence our imeome. We anticipate that increases in interstsrwill tend to decrease our net income.
Interest rate fluctuations resulting in our intérgpense exceeding our interest income would r@soperating losses for us and may limit or
eliminate our ability to make distributions to atockholders.

We may experience a decline in the market valueof assets.

The market value of the interest-bearing assetsathdave acquired and intend to continue to aeguiost notably MBS and
purchased prime ARM loans and any related hedgisiguments, may move inversely with changes irrésterates. We anticipate that
increases in interest rates will tend to decreaseet income. A decline in the market value of imwestment securitiessuch as the decline \
experienced during March 2008, primarily as a tesuhews of potential security liquidations, majvarsely affect us, particularly where we
have borrowed money based on the market valueoskEtmvestment securities. In such case, the lenday require, and have required, us to
post additional collateral to support the borrowiligve cannot post the additional collateral, waynmave to rapidly liquidate assets at a time
when we might not otherwise choose to do so anchase still be unable to post the required collatetather harming our liquidity and
subjecting us to liability to our lenders for thectines in the market values of the collateral. &ample, in March 2008, due in part to
decreases in the market value of certain of ourstment securities and the anticipated increaseliateral requirements by our lenders as a
result of such decrease in the market value of sechrities, we elected to increase our liquidityrdducing our leverage through the sale of an
aggregate of approximately $598.9 million of AgefBS, which resulted in an aggregate loss of apprately $15.4 million. If we liquidate
investment securities at prices lower than the &éieat costs of such investment securities, weindur losses.
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Changes in prepayment rates on our investment sé®s may decrease our net interest income.

Pools of mortgage loans underlie the investmenirtges that we acquire. We will generally recepréncipal distributions from the
principal payments that are made on these underlyiartgage loans. When borrowers repay their mgedeans faster than expected, this will
result in prepayments that are faster than expemtdtie investment securities. Prepayment ratemfivenced by changes in current interest
rates and a variety of economic, geographic anerdgctors, all of which are beyond our controkefrtyment rates generally increase when
interest rates fall and decrease when interest rege, but changes in prepayment rates are difficyredict. Prepayment rates also may be
affected by conditions in the housing and finanmiarkets, general economic conditions and theivelatterest rates on fixed-rate and
adjustable-rate mortgage loans. Faster than expectpayments could adversely affect our profitghiincluding in the following ways:

« We have purchased, and may purchase in the fuhwestment securities that have a higher intersst than the market inter
rate at the time of purchase. In exchange forhlgker interest rate, we are required to pay a prenover the face amount of 1
security to acquire the security. In accordancédnaitcounting rules, we amortize this premium ower anticipated term of t
mortgage security. If principal distributions aexeived faster than anticipated, we would be reguio expense the premi
faster. We may not be able to reinvest the pridgributions received on these investment séiegrin similar new mortgage-
related securities and, to the extent that we @asod the effective interest rates on the new nagetgelated securities will likel
be lower than the yields on the mortgages that wespaid.

« We also may acquire investment securities at adisc If the actual prepayment rates on a discmortgage security are slower
than anticipated at the time of purchase, we wbeldequired to recognize the discount as incomerslowly than anticipated.
This would adversely affect our profitability. Slemthan expected prepayments also may adverselgtdlffe market value of a
discount mortgage security.

A disproportionate rise in sho-term interest rates as compared to longer-termeirgst rates may adversely affect our income.

The relationship between short-term and longer-feterest rates is often referred to as the “yaldse.” Ordinarily, short-term
interest rates are lower than longer-term intenagsts. If short-term interest rates rise disprapoétely relative to longer-term interest rates (a
flattening of the yield curve), our borrowing costay increase more rapidly than the interest incearaed on our assets. Because we expect
our investments, on average, generally will beterest based on longer-term rates than our borgsyia flattening of the yield curve would
tend to decrease our net income and the markee wdlaur net assets. Additionally, to the exterstcBiows from investments that return
scheduled and unscheduled principal are reinvetedspread between the yields on the new investnaem available borrowing rates may
decline, which would likely decrease our net incothés also possible that short-term interestgatay exceed longer-term interest rates (a
yield curve inversion), in which event our borrogiicosts may exceed our interest income and we d¢oclot operating losse

A flat or inverted yield curve may adversely affggepayment rates on and supply of our investmestigities.

Our net interest income varies primarily as a tesuthanges in interest rates as well as changeddrest rates across the yield curve.
We believe that when the yield curve is relativiidy, borrowers have an incentive to refinance imgbrid mortgages with longer initial fixed
rate periods and fixed rate mortgages, causingnmestment securities to experience faster prepaysnén addition, a flatter yield curve
generally leads to fixed-rate mortgage rates tretkser to the interest rates available on hyARMs and ARMSs, possibly decreasing the
supply of the investment securities we seek to iaegAt times, short-term interest rates may inseeand exceed long-term interest rates,
causing an inverted yield curve. When the yieldsreus inverted, fixed-rate mortgage rates may agghr be lower than hybrid ARMs or
ARM rates, further increasing prepayments on, aghtively impacting the supply of, our investmegtigities. Increases in prepayments on
our portfolio will cause our premium amortizatiangccelerate, lowering the yield on such assethidfhappens, we could experience a
decrease in net income or incur a net loss duliegd periods, which may negatively impact our ithistions to stockholders.

Interest rate mismatches between our adjusti-rate agency securities and our borrowings usedund our purchases of these securities
may reduce our income during periods of changingénest rates.

Our borrowings have interest rates that adjust rfreguently than the interest rate indices andicem terms of the investment
securities we seek to acquire and currently hololinportfolio. Accordingly, if short-term interesdtes increase, our borrowing costs may
increase faster than the interest rates on oustmant securities adjust. As a result, in a peofodsing interest rates, we could experience a
decrease in net income or a net loss.

Our current portfolio is comprised primarily of,cawe intend that most of the investment securitiesacquire in the future will be,
adjustable-rate securities. This means that th&grést rates may vary over time based upon changesidentified short-term interest rate
index. In most cases, the interest rate indicesepdcing terms of the investment securities thatacquire and our borrowings will not be



identical, thereby potentially creating an intemagé mismatch between our investments and oupwargs. While the historical
spread between relevant shtatm interest rate indices has been relativelylstdbere have been periods when the spread betivese indice
was volatile. During periods of changing intereges, these interest rate index mismatches codlgtesour net income or produce a net loss,
and adversely affect our dividends and the markeemf our common stock.
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Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factoduding governmental, monetary and tax polictesmestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofag all of which are beyond our control.

Interest rate caps on our adjustat-rate investment securities may reduce our incomecause us to suffer a loss during periods of rigin
interest rates.

The mortgage loans underlying our adjustable-ratestment securities typically will be subject &ripdic and lifetime interest rate
caps. Additionally, we may invest in ARMs with anitial “teaser”’rate that will provide us with a lower than markeerest rate initially, whic
may accordingly have lower interest rate caps fiaMs without such teaser rates. Periodic interatst caps limit the amount an interest rate
can increase during a given period. Lifetime interate caps limit the amount an interest rateimerease through maturity of a mortgage loan.
If these interest rate caps apply to the mortgagad underlying our adjustable-rate investmentritées the interest distributions made on the
related securities will be similarly impacted. Quarrowings may not be subject to similar interesé rcaps. Accordingly, in a period of rapidly
increasing interest rates, the interest rates @aidur borrowings could increase without limitatiwhile caps would limit the interest
distributions on our adjustable-rate investmentigges. Further, some of the mortgage loans ugderlour adjustable-rate investment
securities may be subject to periodic payment dagisresult in a portion of the interest on thasnk being deferred and added to the principal
outstanding. As a result, we could receive lessrést distributions on adjustable-rate investmeautidties, particularly those with an initial
teaser rate, than we need to pay interest on tatedeborrowings. These factors could lower ourimtrest income, cause us to suffer a net
or cause us to incur additional borrowings to furtdrest payments during periods of rising interagts or sell our investments at a loss.

Continued adverse developments in the residentiatigage market may adversely affect the value & thortgage-related securities in
which we invest and our ability to finance or selhy securities that we acquire.

Recently, the residential mortgage market in théddnStates has experienced a variety of diffieglind changes in economic
conditions, including recent defaults, credit I@saad liquidity concern. Securities backed by msidl mortgage loans originated in 2006 and
2007 have had a higher and earlier than expectedfalelinquencies, and many MBS have been dowdegray the Rating Agencies since the
2007 second quarter. In addition, during March 20@8vs of potential security liquidations increasieel volatility of many financial assets,
including Agency MBS and other high-quality MBS etss As a result, values for MBS assets, inclugimge of our Agency MBS and other
AAA-rated non-Agency MBS, have been negatively iotpd. Further increased volatility and deteriomaiio the broader residential mortgage
and MBS markets may adversely affect the performamz market value of the investment securitiesimportfolio.

Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac guarantee the paymentseoAgency MBS we purchase even if the borrowéth@underlying
mortgages default on their payments. However, gisli@linquencies, potential security liquidationdiguidity concerns could negatively affect
the value of our investment securities, includingeAcy MBS, or create market uncertainty about tineé value. We use our investment
securities as collateral for our financings. Angliee in their value, or perceived market uncetiaabout their value, would likely make it
more difficult for us to obtain financing on favite terms or at all, or maintain our compliancetwite terms of any financing arrangements
already in place. At the same time, market unaattabout residential mortgages in general coufatelss the market for mortgage-related
securities, including Agency MBS, making it mor&idult for us to sell any securities we own ondaable terms, or at all. If market conditic
result in a decline in available purchasers, onéilae, of any of the securities we hold in or aegéor our portfolio, our financial position and
results of operations could be adversely affected.

Competition may prevent us from acquiring mortgagelated assets at favorable yields and that wouddyatively impact our profitability.

Our net income largely depends on our ability tquaie mortgage-related assets at favorable spi@agtsour borrowing costs. In
acquiring mortgage-related assets, we competeattithr REITs, investment banking firms, savings lath associations, banks, insurance
companies, mutual funds, other lenders and othéiesnthat purchase mortgage-related assets, wiamwhich have greater financial resources
than us. As a result, we may not in the futurelile to acquire sufficient mortgage-related assetavarable spreads over our borrowing costs
which, would adversely affect our profitability.
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Because assets we acquire may experience periodbqufidity, we may lose profits or be preventemi earning capital gains if we cannc
sell the investment securities in our portfolio ah opportune time

We bear the risk of being unable to dispose ofrikiestment securities held in our portfolio at attegeous times or in a timely
manner because these mortgage-related assetsIyeerparience periods of illiquidity. The lack duidity may result from the absence of a
willing buyer or an established market for thessets as well as legal or contractual restrictmmsesale. As a result, the illiquidity of
mortgage-related assets may cause us to losespaofit the ability to earn capital gains.

We currently leverage our equity, which will exadmte any losses we incur on our current and futuirevestments and may reduce c:
available for distribution to our stockholders.

We currently leverage our equity through borrowirgenerally through the use of repurchase agreenagit CDOs, which are
obligations issued in multiple classes securedrbyralerlying portfolio of securities, and we maytlie future, utilize bank credit facilities and
other forms of borrowing. The amount of leverageingeir varies depending on our ability to obtaiadit facilities and our lenders’ estimates
of the value of our portfolio’s cash flow. The ratwon our investments and cash available for thigtion to our stockholders may be reduced to
the extent that changes in market conditions ctheseost of our financing to increase relativeht® income that can be derived from the assets
we hold in our investment portfolio. Further, teeérage on our equity may exacerbate any lossésowve

Our debt service payments will reduce the net incaweilable for distributions to our stockholdéige may not be able to meet our
debt service obligations and, to the extent thatarnot, we risk the loss of some or all of ouetsto sale to satisfy our debt obligations. A
decrease in the value of the assets may lead tgimealls under our repurchase agreements whictillkbave to satisfy. Significant decreas
in asset valuation, such as occurred during Ma@f}82could lead to increased margin calls, and &g not have the funds available to satisfy
any such margin calls. We have a target overaéirisye amount of eight to 12 times our equity, bate is no established limitation, other than
may be required by our financing arrangements,wHeverage ratio or on the aggregate amount obotmowings.

If we are unable to leverage our equity to the exteve currently anticipate, the returns on our MBsortfolio could be diminished, whicl
may limit or eliminate our ability to make distriliions to our stockholders.

If we are limited in our ability to leverage oursass, the returns on our portfolio may be harmekieyAelement of our strategy is our
use of leverage to increase the size of our MB®&qlr in an attempt to enhance our returns. Tafice our MBS investment portfolio, we
generally seek to borrow between eight and 12 titmesamount of our equity. At December 31, 2007leverage ratio for our MBS investm
portfolio, which we define as our outstanding ingelmess under repurchase agreements divided bgtot&holders’ equity, was 17.1 to one.
This definition of the leverage ratio is consistesith the manner in which the credit providers unaler repurchase agreement calculate our
leverage. The Company also has $45 million of sdibated trust preferred securities outstanding®H¥.0 million of collateralized debt
obligations outstanding both of which are not dejgen on market values of pledged securities or gingncredit conditions by our lende@Bur
repurchase agreements are not currently commigtities, meaning that the counterparties to treggeements may at any time choose to
restrict or eliminate our future access to thelities and we have no other committed credit féie#i through which we may leverage our
equity. If we are unable to leverage our equitthe extent we currently anticipate, the return®onportfolio could be diminished, which may
limit or eliminate our ability to make distributierio our stockholders.
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The Company's loan delinquencies may increase assult of significantly increased monthly paymemsquired from ARM borrowers afte
the initial fixed period.

The scheduled increase in monthly payments on tadjlesrate mortgage loans may result in highendetency rates on mortgage
loans and could have a material adverse affecuomet income and results of operations. This im&edn borrowers' monthly payments,
together with any increase in prevailing markegiest rates, may result in significantly increasemhthly payments for borrowers with
adjustable rate mortgage loans. Borrowers seekirgaid these increased monthly payments by refingrtheir mortgage loans may no
longer be able to fund available replacement l@arc®mparably low interest rates. A decline in logiprices may also leave borrowers with
insufficient equity in their homes to permit theonréfinance their loans or sell their homes. Initald, these mortgage loans may have
prepayment premiums that inhibit refinancing.

We may be required to repurchase loans if we breatthepresentations and warranties from loan salartsactions, which could harm our
profitability and financial condition.

Loans from our discontinued mortgage lending op@natthat were sold to third parties under agreg¢sieiclude numerous
representations and warranties regarding the manmdrich the loan was originated, the propertyusieg the loan and the borrower. If these
representations or warranties are found to have bezached, we may be required to repurchase sachWe may be forced to resell these
repurchased loans at a loss, which could harm mfitgbility and financial condition.

We are dependent on certain key personnel.

We are dependent upon the efforts of James J. FawéeChairman of our board of directors. In aiddit we are dependent upon the
services of David A. Akre, our Vice Chairman andCloief Executive Officer, and Steven R. Mumma, GorChief Executive Officer,
President and Chief Financial Officer. The losamy of these individuals or their services couldehan adverse effect on our operations.
Risk Related to Our Debt Financing

We may incur increased borrowing costs related épurchase agreements and that would harm our praffility.

Currently, a significant portion of our borrowingee collateralized borrowings in the form of refnase agreements. If the interest
rates on these agreements increase, that woulddarprofitability.

Our borrowing costs under repurchase agreementyagncorrespond to short-term interest rates sichIBOR or a short-term
Treasury index, plus or minus a margin. The margmshese borrowings over or under short-term @serates may vary depending upon:

. the movement of interest rates;
. the availability of financing in the market; and
. the value and liquidity of our mortgage-relatedetss
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If we are unable to renew our borrowings at favoratrates, it may force us to sell assets and owfjtability may be adversely affecte

Since we rely primarily on borrowings under repash agreements to finance our mortgage-backeditseguour ability to achieve
our investment objectives depends on our abilitydorow money in sufficient amounts and on favagaekms and on our ability to renew or
replace maturing borrowings on a continuous basisresponse to the recent mortgage securitiekehdrsruption, investors and financial
institutions that lend in the mortgage securitiggsurchase market, including the lenders underequrchase agreements, have further tight
lending standards in an effort to reduce the laye@ their borrowers. While the haircut requirgdoir lenders increased in 2007, primarily
non-Agency MBS, during March 2008, we have expegerfurther increases in the amount of haircutireduo obtain financing for both our
Agency MBS and non-Agency MBS. Our ability to entép repurchase agreements in the future will ddpen the market value of our
mortgage-backed securities pledged to secure gmfipborrowings, the availability of adequatedirting and other conditions existing in the
lending market at that time. If we are not ableeioew or replace maturing borrowings on favoraétens, we would be forced to sell some of
our assets under possibly adverse market conditiamsh may adversely affect our profitability.

Possible market developments could reduce the antafitiquidity available to us and could cause olanders to require us to pled¢
additional assets as collateral. If we are unabtedbtain sufficient short-term financing or our ags$s are insufficient to meet the collateral
requirements, then we may be compelled to liquidpégticular assets at an inopportune time.

Possible market developments, including a shagimignterest rates, a change in prepayment rateieasing market concern about
the value or liquidity of one or more types of ngarge-related assets in which our portfolio is cotreged may reduce the market value of our
portfolio, which may reduce the amount of liquidétyailable to us or may cause our lenders to recadditional collateral. For example, in
March 2008, news of potential security liquidatidryscertain of our competitors negatively impadteel market value of certain of the
investment securities in our portfolio. In connentiwith this market disruption and the anticipateztease in collateral requirements by our
lenders as a result of such decrease in the maaket of such securities, we elected to increasdiquidity by reducing our leverage through
the sale of an aggregate of approximately $598l8omiof Agency MBS, which resulted in an aggreglaigs of approximately $15.4 million. If
we are unable to obtain sufficient short-term ficiag or our lenders start to require additionalateral, we may be compelled to liquidate our
assets at a disadvantageous time similar to oes $alMarch 2008, thus harming our operating resakt profitability and ability to make
distributions to you.

Adverse developments involving major financial iftations or involving one of our lenders could rekun a rapid reduction in our ability tc
borrow and adversely affect our business and praffiility.

The recent turmoil in the financial markets alates to the solvency of major financial instiba has raised concerns that a material
adverse development involving one or more majarfaial institutions could result in our lendersueidg our access to funds available under
our repurchase agreements. Because all of ouralepse agreements are uncommitted, such a disnugidd cause our lenders to determine
to reduce or terminate our access to future bomgsyiwhich could adversely affect our businesspmn€tability.

If a counterparty to our repurchase transactionsfdelts on its obligation to resell the underlyingsurity back to us at the end of tt
transaction term or if we default on our obligatianunder the repurchase agreement, we would incisses.

When we engage in repurchase transactions, weabngell securities to lenders (i.e., repurchageement counterparties) and
receive cash from the lenders. The lenders aiigaibd to resell the same securities back to tiseatnd of the term of the
transaction. Because the cash we receive froretiter when we initially sell the securities to teder is less than the value of those
securities (this difference is referred to as thaircut”), if the lender defaults on its obligatitmresell the same securities back to us we would
incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amotifite haircut (assuming there was no changedmvéftue of the securities). Further, if we
default on one of our obligations under a repuretieensaction, the lender can terminate the traioseand cease entering into any other
repurchase transactions with us. Our repurchaseagents contain cross-default provisions, soitt@atliefault occurs under any one
agreement, the lenders under our other agreemeuls also declare a default. Any losses we incuoar repurchase transactions could
adversely affect our earnings and thus our casttede for distribution to our stockholders.

Our use of repurchase agreements to borrow fundsyngése our lenders greater rights in the event thether we or a lender files for
bankruptcy.

Our borrowings under repurchase agreements maifytal special treatment under the bankruptcy ¢ageing our lenders the
ability to avoid the automatic stay provisionsloé bankruptcy code and to take possession of gatléite our collateral under the repurchase
agreements without delay in the event that wefditdbankruptcy. Furthermore, the special treatneéméepurchase agreements under the
bankruptcy code may make it difficult for us to@eer our pledged assets in the event that a Idildeifor bankruptcy. Thus, the use of
repurchase agreements exposes our pledged assstsitothe event of a bankruptcy filing by eitleetender or us.
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The Company's liquidity may be adversely affectgdbargin calls under its repurchase agreements hesmthey are dependent in part on
the lenders' valuation of the collateral securinge financing.

Each of these repurchase agreements allows therleindvarying degrees, to revalue the collateralaiues that the lender consider
reflect market value. If a lender determines thatutalue of the collateral has decreased, it miéigti@ a margin call requiring the Company to
post additional collateral to cover the decreaskelithe Company is subject to such a margin ¢afiust provide the lender with additional
collateral or repay a portion of the outstanding@wings with minimal notice. Any such margin catluld harm the Company's liquidity,
results of operation and financial condition. Adzhlly, in order to obtain cash to satisfy a marggll, the Company may be required to
liquidate assets at a disadvantageous time, whiigldcause it to incur further losses and adverabct its results of operations and financial
condition.

Our hedging transactions may limit our gains or nglé in losses.

We use derivatives, primarily interest rate swaps @aps, to hedge our liabilities and this hasaterisks, including the risk that
losses on a hedging transaction will reduce theusntnof cash available for distribution to our stbolders and that such losses may exceed the
amount invested in such instruments. Our boardrettbrs has adopted a general policy with resfetite use of derivatives, and which
generally allows us to use derivatives when we dappropriate for risk management purposes, but doeset forth specific guidelines. To
extent consistent with maintaining our status BEHT, we may use derivatives, including interest mwaps and caps, options, term repurc
contracts, forward contracts and futures contragtsur risk management strategy to limit the efeaf changes in interest rates on our
operations. However, a hedge may not be effectiviininating the risks inherent in any particypasition. Our profitability may be adversely
affected during any period as a result of the dstedvatives in a hedging transaction.

Our use of hedging strategies to mitigate our indst rate exposure may not be effective and may sgpgs to counterparty risks.

In accordance with our operating policies, we masspe various types of hedging strategies, inclydimaps, caps and other
derivative transactions, to seek to mitigate oupedour exposure to losses from adverse changetemest rates. Our hedging activity will v.
in scope based on the level and volatility of iagtrates, the type of assets held and financingeee used and other changing market
conditions. No hedging strategy, however, can detaly insulate us from the interest rate risks/stoch we are exposed or that the
implementation of any hedging strategy would hdeedesired impact on our results of operationsnantial condition. Certain of the U.S.
federal income tax requirements that we must saitisbrder to qualify as a REIT may limit our ahilto hedge against such risks. We will not
enter into derivative transactions if we believattthey will jeopardize our qualification as a REIT

Interest rate hedging may fail to protect or ccadidersely affect us because, among other things:

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguturing periods of rising and volatile intereates;

. available interest rate hedges may not correspinedtly with the interest rate risk for which peotion is sought;
. the duration of the hedge may not match the duradf the related liability;

. the amount of income that a REIT may earn fromgimgy transactions (other than through taxable Ritisidiaries (or TRSSs))
to offset interest rate losses is limited by Uekldral tax provisions governing REITS;

. the credit quality of the party owing money oe thedge may be downgraded to such an extent tingpdirs our ability to sell
or assign our side of the hedging transaction; and

. the party owing money in the hedging transacti@y default on its obligation to pay.

We primarily use swaps to hedge against anticipftienle increases in interest rates on our repselagreements. Should a swap
counterparty be unable to make required paymentipat to such swap, the hedged liability wouldseeta be hedged for the remaining term
of the swap. In addition, we may be at risk foy anllateral held by a hedging counterparty to agvshould such counterparty become
insolvent or file for bankruptcy. Our hedging tsantions, which are intended to limit losses, mawally adversely affect our earnings, which
could reduce our cash available for distributiomto stockholders.

Hedging instruments involve risk since they oftea ot traded on regulated exchanges, guarantead bychange or its clearing
house, or regulated by any U.S. or foreign govemtaiauthorities. Consequently, there are no requénts with respect to record keeping,
financial responsibility or segregation of custorhards and positions. Furthermore, the enforcégluf hedging instruments may depend on
compliance with applicable statutory and commoéditg other regulatory requirements and, dependingeidentity of the counterparty,



applicable international requirements. The busiriabure of a hedging counterparty with whom wéeeinto a hedging transaction
will most likely result in its default. Default by party with whom we enter into a hedging trarisaanay result in the loss of unrealized prc
and force us to cover our commitments, if anyhatthen current market price. Although generakywill seek to reserve the right to termir
our hedging positions, it may not always be possibldispose of or close out a hedging positiohavit the consent of the hedging
counterparty and we may not be able to enter intoftsetting contract in order to cover our ridkle cannot assure you that a liquid secondary

market will exist for hedging instruments purchasedold, and we may be required to maintain atjpmsuntil exercise or expiration, which
could result in losses.
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Since we invest in Agency MBS that are guarantegdHannie Mae and Freddie Mac, we are subject to tfigk that these U.S. Governme-
sponsored entities may not be able to fully satifgir guarantee obligations, which may adverseljezt the value of our investmer
portfolio and our ability to sell or finance thesgecurities.

The payments we receive on the Agency MBS in whielinvest are guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mnlike the securities
issued by Ginnie Mae, the principal and interess@curities issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Maoatr guaranteed by the U.S.
Government. The recent economic challenges ingbiélential mortgage market have affected the fihnesults of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac. For the year ended December 31, 2007, bothiE&mhae and Freddie Mac reported substantial lossamie Mae recently stated that it
expects losses on guarantees of agency secuat@stinue and expects significant increases idicrelated expenses and credit losses
through 2008. If Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac comrtittusuffer significant losses, their ability tonloo their respective agency securities
guarantees may be adversely affected. Furtheraetoyal or perceived financial challenges at eiffenie Mae or Freddie Mac could cause the
Rating Agencies to downgrade securities issueddmnie Mae or Freddie Mac. On January 9, 2008, Maddyestors Service placed Freddie
Mac'’s A- bank financial strength rating, which meges the likelihood it will require financial assince from third parties, on review for
possible downgrade. Any failure to honor guaranteagency securities by Fannie Mae or Freddie diany downgrade of securities issued
by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac by the Rating Agenc@gd cause a significant decline in the cash fiemn, and the value of, any Agency
MBS we may own, and we may then be unable to séihance Agency MBS on favorable terms or at all.

New laws may be passed affecting the relationstépaeen Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, on the one haadd the U.S. Government, ¢
the other, which could adversely affect the priceagency securities.

Legislation has been and may be proposed to chthegelationship between Fannie Mae and Freddie bfathe one hand, and the
U.S. Government, on the other hand, or that regutennie Mae and Freddie Mac to reduce the amdumbdgages they own or limit the
amount of guarantees they provide on agency sesurit

If any such legislation is enacted into law, it mkegd to market uncertainty and the actual or peedeimpairment in the credit quality
of securities issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Miats may increase the risk of loss on investmantsainnie Mae- and/or Freddie Mac-issued
securities. Any legislation requiring Fannie Mad-oeddie Mac to reduce the amount of mortgagesakeyor for which they guarantee
payments on agency securities could adverselytdfiecavailability and pricing of agency securitéesl therefore, adversely affect the value of
our portfolio and our profitability.

Our directors have approved broad investment guiide$ for us and do not approve each investment waken

Our board of directors has given us substantialreion to invest in accordance with our broad gtrreent guidelines. Our board of
directors periodically reviews our investment gliites and our portfolio. However, our board of dias does not review each proposed
investment. In addition, in conducting periodicieavs, our directors rely primarily on informationopided to them by our executive officers.
Furthermore, transactions entered into by us magiffieult or impossible to unwind by the time thaye reviewed by our directors. Our
management substantial discretion within our biiogdstment guidelines in determining the typesssieés we may decide are proper
investments for us.

We may change our investment strategy, operatintigies and/or asset allocations without stockhold=snsent.

We may change our investment strategy, operatifigip® and/or asset allocation with respect to gireents, acquisitions, leverage,
growth, operations, indebtedness, capitalizatiahdistributions at any time without the consentof stockholders. A change in our
investment strategy may increase our exposureéogst rate and/or credit risk, default risk aral estate market fluctuations. Furthermore, a
change in our asset allocation could result inroaking investments in asset categories differemhfour historical investments. These
changes could adversely affect our financial coodjtresults of operations, the market price of @mmon stock or our ability to pay
dividends or distributions.

Risks Related to the Advisory Agreement with IMPAM

We are dependent on JMPAM and certain of its keygmnnel and may not find a suitable replacementJ¥MPAM terminates the adviso
agreement or such key personnel are no longer aaflié to us.

Pursuant to the advisory agreement, subject tosttgrby our board of directors, IMPAM advisesManaged Subsidiaries. IMPAM
identifies, evaluates, negotiates, structuresgesl@nd monitors investments of the Managed Subidjather than assets that we contributt
the Managed Subsidiaries to facilitate complian@é wur exclusion from regulation under the InvestinCompany Act. The departure of any
of the senior officers of IMPAM, or of a signifidamumber of investment professionals or princigdlSMPAM, could have a material adverse
effect on our ability to achieve our investmentemltives. We are subject to the risk that IMPAM tetiminate the advisory agreement or that



we may deem it necessary to terminate the advagrgement or prevent certain individuals from penfog services for us, and that
no suitable replacement will be found to manageMheaged Subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the advisory agreement, JMPAM is ergll to receive an advisory fee payable regardlesthefperformance of the assets of
Managed Subsidiaries

We will pay IMPAM substantial advisory fees, basadhe Managed Subsidiaries’ equity capital (agneefin the advisory
agreement), regardless of the performance of thealgked Subsidiaries’ portfolio. In addition, pursunthe advisory agreement, we will pay
JMPAM a base advisory fee even if they are not mamggany assets of the Managed Subsidiaries' piortftMPAM’s entitlement to non-
performance based compensation may reduce itstimegn devote the time and effort of its professils to seeking profitable opportunities
for the Managed Subsidiaries’ portfolio, which auésult in a lower performance of their portfaiod negatively affect our ability to pay
distributions to our stockholders or to achieveitehappreciation.
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Pursuant to the advisory agreement, IMPAM is extitb receive an incentive fee, which may indude ihake certain investments,
including speculative or high risk investments .

In addition to its advisory fee, JIMPAM is entitleglreceive incentive compensation based, in ppdnuhe Managed Subsidiaries’
achievement of targeted levels of net income. kEwating investments and other management stratethie opportunity to earn incentive
compensation based on net income may lead IMPANate undue emphasis on the maximization of netnrecat the expense of other
criteria, such as preservation of capital, mairntagjtiquidity and/or management of credit risk oanket risk, in order to achieve higher
incentive compensation. Investments with higheldyotential are generally riskier or more speduéatin addition, IMPAM has broad
discretion regarding the types of investments it make pursuant to the advisory agreement. Thidcceesult in increased risk to the value of
the Managed Subsidiaries’ invested portfolio.

We compete with IMPAM'’s other clients for accessitdPAM.

JMPAM has sponsored and/or currently manages pthas of capital and investment vehicles with arestment focus that overlaps
with the Managed Subsidiaries’ investment focus, iarexpected to continue to do so in the fututettiermore, IMPAM is not restricted in
any way from sponsoring or accepting capital fraewtlients or vehicles, even for investing in ast&$ses or investment strategies that are
similar to, or overlapping with, the Managed Sulzsigs’ asset classes or investment strategieseldre, the Managed Subsidiaries compete
for access to the benefits that their relationstith IMPAM provides them. For the same reasonsp#rsonnel of IMPAM may be unable to
dedicate a substantial portion of their time mangghe Managed Subsidiarigsvestments if IMPAM manages any future investnvehicles

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshigvith IMPAM, which could result in decisions thatra not in the best interests of o
stockholders

The Managed Subsidiaries may have investmentscirisies in which JIMPAM has an interest. SimiladfyPAM may invest in
securities in which the Managed Subsidiaries haweay have an interest. Although such investmeratg present conflicts of interest, we
nonetheless may pursue and consummate such tiansaétdditionally, the Managed Subsidiaries magage in transactions directly with
JMPAM, including the purchase and sale of all pogion of a portfolio investment.

JMPAM may from time to time simultaneously seelptwchase investments for the Managed Subsidiang®tner entities with
similar investment objectives for which it servessamanager, or for its clients or affiliates aad ho duty to allocate such investment
opportunities in a manner that favors the Managdesiiaries. Additionally, such investments forigeg with similar investment objectives
may be different from those made on the Managedi8ianies’ behalf. JIMPAM may have economic integastor other relationships with
others in whose obligations or securities the Madagubsidiaries may invest. Each of such ownerhipother relationships may result in
securities laws restrictions on transactions irhsecurities and otherwise create conflicts ofrede In such instances, JMPAM may in its
discretion make investment recommendations andides that may be the same as or different froreehmade with respect to the Managed
Subsidiaries’ investments and may take actionsift to take actions) in the context of these o#wnomic interests or relationships the
consequences of which may be adverse to the Marfagiesidiaries’ interests.

Although the officers and employees of IMPAM devademuch time to the Managed Subsidiaries as JME&dins appropriate, the
officers and employees may have conflicts in allimcatheir time and services among the Managed iSiaoies and IMPAM's and its affiliates'
other accounts. In addition, IMPAM and its afféigtin connection with their other business adtisitmay acquire material non-public
confidential information that may restrict IMPAMM purchasing securities or selling securitiedtg®lf or its clients (including the Managed
Subsidiaries) or otherwise using such informatiantfie benefit of its clients or itself.
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Termination of the advisory agreement may be difficand costly.

Termination of the advisory agreement without caaseibject to several conditions which may malaghsutermination difficult and
costly. The advisory agreement provides that it imaly be terminated without cause following thdialithree year period upon the affirmative
vote of at least two-thirds of our independent ctives, based either upon unsatisfactory performagcBMPAM that is materially detrimental
to us or upon a determination that the manageneenpéyable to IMPAM is not fair, subject to IMPANMght to prevent such a termination
accepting a mutually acceptable reduction of mamage fees. IMPAM will be paid a termination fee @&dgo the amount of two times the sum
of the average annual base advisory fee and thragaz@nnual incentive compensation earned by ihgihe 24-month period immediately
preceding the date of termination, calculated ab®fnd of the most recently completed fiscal tugrior to the date of termination. These
provisions may increase the effective cost to ugwhinating the advisory agreement, thereby aédeedfecting our ability to terminate
JMPAM without cause.

Risks Related to an Investment in Our Common Stock

Our common stock is currently quoted for trading dhe Over the Counter Bulletin Board which may adsely impact the liquidity of our
shares and reduce the value of an investment in stock.

Effective September 11, 2007, our common stockdedisted from quotation on the New York Stock Exaf@and on the same day
our common stock became quoted on the Over thet€oBulletin Board, or OTCBB. We have applied & bur common stock on another
national securities exchange, however, we can geond assurance that our common stock will be agorfor listing on another national
securities exchange in the future. Our common shaskhistorically been sporadically or “thinly teati (meaning that the number of persons
interested in purchasing our shares at or neapiasis at any given time may be relatively smalhon-existent) and no assurances can be
given that a broader or more active public tradimagket for our common stock will develop or be airgd in the future or that current trading
levels will be sustained. A substantial sale, oieseof sales, of our common stock could have &retadverse effect on the market price of
our common stock . You may be unable to sell ate@r ask prices or at all if you desire to liquéedgbur shares. This situation is attributable to
a number of factors, including, among other thirtgs,fact that we are a small company which igtikedly unknown to stock analysts, stock
brokers, institutional investors and others inithestment community that generate or influencesablume. As a consequence, there may be
periods of several days or more when trading agtivi our shares is minimal or non-existent, as parad to a seasoned issuer which has a
large and steady volume of trading activity thdt generally support continuous sales without aveaske effect on share price.

The market price and trading volume of our commotosk may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is highly titdaand subject to wide fluctuations. In additidime trading volume in our
common stock may fluctuate and cause significaiceprariations to occur. Some of the factors ttoatid result in fluctuations in the price or
trading volume of our common stock include, amotigepthings: actual or anticipated changes in ouarent or future financial performance;
changes in market interest rates and general marnkeéconomic conditions. We cannot assure youtlieamnarket price of our common stock
will not fluctuate or decline significantly.

We have not established a minimum dividend paymientl for our common stockholders and there are assurances of our ability to pi
dividends to them in the future.

We intend to pay quarterly dividends and to malsridhutions to our common stockholders in amounthghat all or substantially all
of our taxable income in each year, subject toageddjustments, is distributed. This, along witheo factors, should enable us to qualify for
the tax benefits accorded to a REIT under the C@dehave not established a minimum dividend payrea for our common stockholders
and our ability to pay dividends may be harmedHsyrisk factors described herein. Beginning in 2097, our board of directors elected to
suspend the payment of quarterly dividends on oarroon stock and, as of the date of this reportykaso reinstate a quarterly dividend. The
board of directors' decision reflected our focugtanelimination of operating losses through tHe shour mortgage lending business with a
view to conserving capital to build future earnirfigsm our portfolio management operations. All dizitions to our common stockholders will
be made at the discretion of our board of direcamic will depend on our earnings, our financialditan, maintenance of our REIT status and
such other factors as our board of directors mayrdeslevant from time to time. There are no assigswof our ability to pay dividends in the
future.

21




Table of Contents

Upon conversion of our Series A Preferred Shareg will be required to issue shares of common stezkolders of our Series A Preferred
Shares, which will dilute the holders of our outstding common stock. Our outstanding Series A Pretst Shares are senior to ot
common stock for purposes of dividend and liquidatidistributions and have voting rights equal todke of our common stock.

On January 18, 2008, we completed the issuanceaadf 1.0 million Series A Preferred Shares gocap of investors that are
affiliated with IMP Group Inc. for an aggregateghase price of $20.0 million. The Series A Pref@i®aares entitle the holders to receive a
cumulative dividend of 10% per year, subject toramease to the extent any future quarterly comstook dividends exceed $0.10 per share.
Holders of our Series A Preferred Shares have @iddand liquidating distribution preferences owaldbrs of our common stock, which may
negatively affect your ability to receive dividenalsliquidating distributions on your Shares. Thei&s A Preferred Shares also have voting
rights equal to the voting rights attached to ammon stock, except that each Series A PreferredeSh entitled to a number of votes equi
the conversion rate for the Series A Preferred &har

The Series A Preferred Shares are convertiblesingmes of our common stock based on a conversioa @if $4.00 per share of
common stock, which represents a conversion ratieefthares of common stock for each Series Aderedl Share. Upon conversion of the
Series A Preferred Shares, we will issue commockdimthe holders of our Series A Preferred Shaveg;h will dilute the holders of our
outstanding common stock. Additionally, the holdefreur Series A Preferred Shares have the alvdifyurchase an additional $20.0 million of
Series A Preferred Shares, on identical termsutitrdApril 4, 2008.

The Series A Preferred Shares represent approxirhai% of our outstanding capital stock, on a fulliluted basis, as of March 1, 2008,
excluding the purchase option that expires on Apfil 2008. Therefore, the holders of our Series Aefarred Shares have voting control o\
us.

The Series A Preferred Shares represent approXin2iteo of our outstanding capital stock, on a fuliuted basis, as of March 1,
2008, excluding the purchase option described heldw Series A Preferred Shares also have votgigsiequal to the voting rights attache
our common stock, except that each Series A Pezfe3hare is entitled to a number of votes equilda@onversion rate. In addition, the
holders of our Series A Preferred Shares haveliigyeo purchase an additional $20.0 million adries A Preferred Shares, on identical te
through April 4, 2008. Therefore, the holders of Beries A Preferred Shares have voting controt agewhich may limit your ability to effe:
corporate change through the shareholder votinggs

Future offerings of debt securities, which would mé& senior to our common stock upon our liquidatioand future offerings of equity
securities, which would dilute our existing stocklgiers and may be senior to our common stock for theposes of dividend and liquidatin
distributions, may adversely affect the market griof our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our eapétsources by making offerings of debt or addaimfferings of equity securities,
including commercial paper, mediut®m notes, senior or subordinated notes and dadgareferred stock or common stock. Upon liqualg
holders of our debt securities and shares of medestock and lenders with respect to other bomgw/will receive a distribution of our
available assets prior to the holders of our comstonk. Additional equity offerings may dilute theldings of our existing stockholders or
reduce the market price of our common stock, oln.bdur preferred stock, if issued, could have dgpemce on liquidating distributions or a
preference on dividend payments that could limitaility to make a dividend distribution to theléhers of our common stock. Because our
decision to issue securities in any future offerwvily depend on market conditions and other fact®gond our control, we cannot predict or
estimate the amount, timing or nature of our futfferings. Thus, holders of our common stock hikarrisk of our future offerings reducing
the market price of our common stock and dilutimgjit stock holdings in us.
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Future sales of our common stock could have an acbeseffect on our stock price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of sham@sfiture sales, on the market price
our common stock. For example, upon conversioruofSeries A Preferred Shares, we will be requiceidgue shares of our common stock to
holders of our Series A Preferred Shares, whichimglease the number of shares available foraadedilute existing holders of our common
stock. Sales of substantial amounts of common sturcthe perception that such sales could occuy, adaersely affect prevailing market
prices for our common stock.

Under the registration rights agreement we entetiacconnection with our private placement of commeaiock in February 2008, we will pe
liquidated damages to the holders of the shares@fmon stock purchased in that private placemenwé breech certain provisions.

Under the registration rights agreement we enterednnection with our private placement of comnstotk in February 2008, we
will pay liquidated damages if any of the followiegents occur: (i) we fail to file a registratici@atement covering all of the shares sold in that
private placement before the filing deadline; diijegistration statement covering all of the shaodd in that private placement is not declared
effective prior to the effectiveness deadline) (iiie registration statement is not continuousigtladfective, except during an allowable grace
period; (iv) a grace period exceeds the allowabdeg period under the registration rights agreenwer/) the shares sold in that private
placement may not be sold pursuant to Rule 144nthéeSecurities Act due to our failure to satigfg adequate public information condition
of Rule 144(c) under the Securities Act . The ligied damages will be payable in an amount equaktproduct of one-thirtieth of (i) 0.5%
multiplied by $4.00 for each day that such evehtloccur and be continuing during the first 99<laf such non-compliance, and (ii) 1.0%
multiplied by $4.00 for each day after the'®@ay of such non-compliance for each share soldédrFebruary 2008 private placement which is
then held by the investors in that offering.

Risks Related to Our Company, Structure and Changé Control Provisions

Our Co-Chief Executive Officers have agreementstipaovide them with benefits in the event their eloyment is terminated following a
change in control.

We have entered into agreements with ourGBéef Executive Officers, David A. Akre and Stev®nMumma, that provide them wi
severance benefits if their employment ends unglecified circumstances following a change in cdnifbese benefits could increase the cost
to a potential acquirer of us and thereby prevemnliscourage a change in control that might invavy@aemium price for your shares or
otherwise be in your best interest.
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The stock ownership limit imposed by our charter ynanhibit market activity in our common stock and aw restrict our busines
combination opportunities.

In order for us to maintain our qualification aRBIT under the Internal Revenue Code, not more B4 in value of the issued and
outstanding shares of our capital stock may be dwaetually or constructively, by five or fewer inluals (as defined in the Internal Revel
Code to include certain entities) at any time dytime last half of each taxable year (other tharficat year as a REIT). Attribution rules in the
Internal Revenue Code apply to determine if anyiddal or entity actually or constructively ownaracapital stock for purposes of this
requirement. Additionally, at least 100 persons teseficially own our capital stock during at [£8385 days of each taxable year (other than
our first year as a REIT). To help ensure that veethese tests, our charter restricts the aciuisind ownership of shares of our capital
stock. Our charter, with certain exceptions, at#esrour directors to take such actions as aressacg and desirable to preserve our
qualification as a REIT and provides that, unlessngpted by our board of directors, no person may mare than 9.9% in value of the
outstanding shares of our capital stock. Our boérirectors may grant an exemption from that owhgr limit in its sole discretion, subject to
such conditions, representations and undertakigdgfsnaay determine. This ownership limit could geta prevent a transaction or a change in
control of our company under circumstances thagmitse could provide our stockholders with the aofyndty to realize a premium over the
then current market price for our common stock ould otherwise be in the best interests of ourldtolders.

Certain provisions of Maryland law and our chartemd bylaws could hinder, delay or prevent a charigeontrol which could have an
adverse effect on the value of our securities.

Certain provisions of Maryland law, our charter @il bylaws may have the effect of delaying, défigror preventing transactions
that involve an actual or threatened change inrobrithese provisions include the following, amangers:

. our charter provides that, subject to the rightera# or more classes or series of preferred stoelett one or more directors, a
director may be removed with or without cause dnyythe affirmative vote of holders of at least thirds of all votes entitled
to be cast by our stockholders generally in thetiga of directors;

. our bylaws provide that only our board of directsihgll have the authority to amend our bylaws;

. under our charter, our board of directors has aitthto issue preferred stock from time to timepime or more series and to
establish the terms, preferences;

. and rights of any such series, all without the apal of our stockholders;

. the Maryland Business Combination Act; and

. the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act.

Although our board of directors has adopted a te&wl exempting us from application of the MarylaBwlsiness Combination Act a
our bylaws provide that we are not subject to theWand Control Share Acquisition Act, our boarddatctors may elect to make the
“business combination” statute and “control shatatute applicable to us at any time and may deimut stockholder approval.

Maintenance of our Investment Company Act exemptiomposes limits on our operations.

We have conducted and intend to continue to conalurcbperations so as not to become regulated as/astment company under 1
Investment Company Act. We believe that there areraber of exemptions under the Investment Compantyhat are applicable to us. To
maintain the exemption, the assets that we acaquédéimited by the provisions of the Investment @amy Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated under the Investment Company Act. titeoh, we could, among other things, be requirigldee (a) to change the manner in

which we conduct our operations to avoid being ireglto register as an investment company or (bggister as an investment company,
either of which could have an adverse effect onaparations and the market price for our securities
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Tax Risks Related to Our Structure
Failure to qualify as a REIT would adversely affeour operations and ability to make distributions.

We have operated and intend to continue to opsrtate qualify as a REIT for federal income tax msgs. Our continued qualificati
as a REIT will depend on our ability to meet vas@aquirements concerning, among other thingspwreership of our outstanding stock, the
nature of our assets, the sources of our incontktr@namount of our distributions to our stockhadde

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeae would be subject to federal income tax (inolgdany applicable alternative
minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular coaporates. In addition, if we do not qualify fartain statutory relief provisions we
generally would be disqualified from treatment &ET for the four taxable years following the yé&amwhich we lost our REIT status. Losing
our REIT status would reduce our net earnings alblfor investment or distribution to stockholdeexause of the additional tax liability, and
we would no longer be required to make distribwgiemstockholders. Additionally, we might be regdito borrow funds or liquidate some
investments in order to pay the applicable tax.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeour liquidity.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we generally areuieed each year to distribute to our stockholdéteast 90% of our REIT taxable
income, excluding any net capital gain. To the eixteat we distribute at least 90%, but less thHa®P4 of our REIT taxable income, we will be
subject to corporate income tax on our undistridlR&IT taxable income. In addition, we will be sdijto a 4% nondeductible excise tax on
the amount, if any, by which certain distributiqregd by us with respect to any calendar year @®tlean the sum of (i) 85% of our ordinary
REIT income for that year, (ii) 95% of our REIT d@pgain net income for that year, and (iii) 10@¥our undistributed REIT taxable income
from prior years.

We have made and intend to continue to make digtoibs to our stockholders to comply with the 904ribution requirement and to
avoid corporate income tax and the nondeductibéésexax. However, differences in timing betweemriacognition of REIT taxable income
and the actual receipt of cash could require s®Hloassets or to borrow funds on a short-termshtasineet the 90% distribution requirement
and to avoid corporate income tax and the nondédecixcise tax.

Certain of our assets may generate substantial atisras between REIT taxable income and availalsle. Guch assets could include
mortgage-backed securities we hold that have Is=sered at a discount and require the accrual obteciacome in advance of the receipt of
cash. As a result, our taxable income may exceedash available for distribution and the requiratrte distribute a substantial portion of our
net taxable income could cause us to:

. sell assets in adverse market conditions,
. borrow on unfavorable terms or
. distribute amounts that would otherwise be investefdture acquisitions, capital expenditures qgraygment of debt in order to

comply with the REIT distribution requirements.

Further, amounts distributed will not be availatddund investment activities. We expect to fund imwvestments generally through
borrowings from financial institutions, along wilecuritization financings. If we fail to obtain dels equity capital in the future, it could limit
our ability to grow, which could have a materialarse effect on the value of our common stock.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates on dividend income from regularporations.

The maximum U.S. federal income tax rate for dinidie payable to domestic shareholders that areithdils, trust and estates is 15%
(through 2008). Dividends payable by REITs, howeses generally not eligible for the reduced rafdthough the reduced U.S. federal
income tax rate applicable to dividend income fremular corporate dividends does not adverselyaffee taxation of REITs or dividends
paid by REITs, the more favorable rate applicableegular corporate dividends could cause investbis are individuals, trusts and estates to
perceive investments in REITs to be relatively $sactive than investments in the stocks of n&iTRcorporations that pay dividends, which
could adversely affect the value of the sharesEIfTR, including our common shares.
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

Other than real estate owned, acquired througim lggu of, foreclosures on mortgage loans, the Gany does not own any properties. As of
December 31, 2007, our principal executive and athtnative offices are located in leased space8@t Avenue of the Americas, 7th floor,
New York, New York 1001€On November 13, 2006, the Company entered intossigament and Assumption of Sublease and an Escrow
Agreement, each with Lehman Brothers Holdings, (fleehman”). Under these agreements, the Compasigiasd and Lehman has assumed
the sublease for the Company’s corporate headgaatd 301 Avenue of the Americas. Pursuant t@tgreements, Lehman has funded an
escrow account for the benefit of HC such thaté Company vacates the leased space before Feldru2098, the Company will receive $3.2
million. The escrow amount shall be reduced by $Gilon for each month the Company remains inldased space beginning February 1,
2008. The entire remaining amount held in the es@ocount will be released to the Company whemdates the leased space. Pursuant to the
provisions of the sale transaction with IndyMaaggibaeing August 1, 2007, so long as IndyMac contitgeoccupy and use the leased space at
the Company'’s corporate headquarters, IndyMacpail rent equal to Company’s cost, including anygtées and forgone bonuses resulting
from the delayed vacation of the leased premisasil Bebruary 1, 2008, the Company’s lease costuding penalties and foregone

bonuses, was approximately $0.2 million per mofitte Company anticipates vacating the premises oefare June 1, 2008, and accordin
Indymac’s monthly payment starting on Februaryd&includes both the monthly lease cost of appnaxely of $0.2 million as well as the
penalty assessment of $0.2 million. The Comparsnih$ to relocate its corporate headquarters toatlenfiacility at a location that is yet to be
determined.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is at times subject to various legat@edings arising in the ordinary course of businether than as described below,
the Company does not believe that any of its ctitegyal proceedings, individually or in the aggregavill have a material adverse effect on its
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

On December 13, 2006, Steven B. Yang and Christdphebiere ("Plaintiffs"), filed suit in the Unitestates District Court for the
Southern District of New York against HC and utegihg that we failed to pay them, and similarliyiated employees, overtime in violation of
the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") and New Y@&tate law. The Plaintiffs, each of whom were fore@ployees in our discontinued
mortgage lending business, purported to bring a&-lc®llective action" on behalf of similarly sitwet loan officers in our now discontinued
mortgage lending business and sought unspecifiediata for alleged unpaid overtime wages, liquidatachages, attorney's fee and costs.

On December 30, 2007 we entered into an agreememniriciple with the Plaintiffs to settle this suithe proposed settlement

terms resulted in a charge of approximately $1l0aniin our 2007 fourth quarter. The terms of getlement remain subject to court
approval. We anticipate closing of the settlementrdy the first half of 2008.

Iltem 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of and Dividends on the Regist’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is tr aded on the OTCBB undetrdding symbol “NMTR”. The OTCBB is a regulated ¢@tion service that
displays real-time quotes, last-sale prices, atidme information in over-the-counter (OTC) equigcsrities. As of December 31, 2007, we
had 3,640,209 shares of common stock outstandidgsf March 1, 2008, there were 25 holders afndcThis figure does not reflect the
beneficial ownership of shares held in nominee narhe Company completed a one for five reversekstptit of common stock providing
shareholders of record as of October 9, 2007, @i share of common stock for every five sharesealwn
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The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high, low and quarter end closing sateEes per share of our common
stock and the cash dividends paid or payable mmestf common stock. All stock prices reflect time dor five reverse stock split described
above. Data per Bloomberg.

Common Stock Prices(l) Cash Dividends
Paid or Amount
High Low Close Declared Payable per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Fourth quarter $ 5.0C $ 3.01% 4.3C omittec
Third quarter 9.6% 1.5t 4.2 omittec
Second quarter 14.8( 8.8t 9.5t omittec
First quarter 16.9¢ 11.7¢ 12.7¢ 3/14/07% 4/26/07 $ 0.2t
Common Stock Prices(l) Cash Dividends
Paid or Amount
High Low Close Declared Payable per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Fourth quarter $ 20.2E $ 13.0C $ 15.2¢ 12/18/0¢ 1/26/07 $ 0.2t
Third quarter 24.2¢ 17.9¢ 19.3( 9/18/0¢ 10/26/0¢ 0.7¢
Second quarter 27.8( 19.0( 20.0C 6/15/0¢ 7/26/0¢ 0.7¢
First quarter 34.4( 20.7¢ 27.0C 3/6/0¢ 4/26/0¢ 0.7¢C

1) Commencing September 11, 20our common stock was delisted from the New YorkcBtaxchange and began reporting on
OTCBB.

In order to qualify for the tax benefits accordedtREIT under the Code, we intend to pay quartdiklidends such that all or
substantially all of our taxable income each ysabject to certain adjustments) is distributedupsiockholders. Beginning in July 2007, our
board of directors elected to suspend the paynfequarterly dividends on our common stock and,fat® date of this report, has yet to
reinstate a quarterly dividend. The board of doext decision reflected our focus on eliminatidroperating losses through the sale of our
mortgage lending business with a view to consereapgjtal to build future earnings from our portéofhanagement operations. All of the
distributions that we make will be at the discretad our board of directors and will depend on eamings and financial condition,
maintenance of REIT status and any other factatttie board of directors deems relevant.

During 2007, dividend distributions for the Compangommon stock were $.50 per share (as adjustettiéoreverse stock split). As
of December 31, 2007, the Company’s common stocklisted under the CUSIP #649604-20-44 and trade@uthe ticker symbol NMTR.
For tax reporting purposes, 2007 taxable dividesttidutions will be classified as follows: $0.08 aerdinary income and $0.50 as a return of
capital. The following table contains this infortioa on a quarterly basis.

Total Taxable

Cash Distribution Income Short-term Ordinary Return of
Declaration Date  Record Date Payment Date per share Dividends Capital Gain Dividend Capital
12/18/06 1/5/07 1/26/07 $ 0.2t $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.2
3/14/07 4/9/07 4/26/07 $ 0.2t $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.2t
Total 2007 Cash
Distributions $ 0.5C $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.0000( $ 0.5C

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer afilad¢d Purchaser:

The Company currently has a share repurchase pnogvhich it previously announced in November 208%.management’s
discretion, the Company is authorized to repurclsasees of Company common stock in the open markiétrough privately negotiated
transactions through December 31, 2015. The planbaaemporarily or permanently suspended or dicoed at any time. The Company |
not repurchased any shares since March 2006.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Gensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2007 with respect to compensation pladsr which equity securities
the Company are authorized for issuance. The Coynlpas no such plans that were not approved by isgtwiders.
Number of Securities

Number of Securities tc Weighted Average Remaining Available for
be Issued upon Exercis Exercise Price of Future Issuance under
of Outstanding Options,  Outstanding Options, Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs - $ = 271,88
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Performance Grapt

The following line graph sets forth, for the periodm June 23, 2004 through December 31, 2007 mgadson of the percentage
change in the cumulative total stockholder returritee Company's common stock compared to the cuivelt@tal return of the NYSE
Composite Index and the National Association oflRestate Investment Trusts ("NAREIT") Mortgage REiilex. The graph assumes that the
shares of the Company's common stock were boudhegirice of $100 per share and that the valdheofnvestment in each of the Company's
common stock and the indices was $100 at the begjrof the period.

COMPARISON OF 42 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN'
Among Mew York Morgage Trust, Ine., The NYSE Composite Inday
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The foregoing graph and chart shall not be deemedrporated by reference by any general statemmarporating by reference this Annual
Report on Form 1-K into any filing under the Securities Act of 1383under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, gcethe extent we
specifically incorporate this information by refere, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed utitese acts.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial datderived from our audited consolidated finanstatements and the notes thereto
for the periods presented and should be read ijuotion with the more detailed information theraimd “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” included elsewhere in this annual repopefting results are not necessarily
indicative of future performance.

In connection with the sale of the Company's whalkesnortgage origination platform assets on Felyrd@r 2007 and the sale of its
retail mortgage origination platform assets on Madt, 2007, we are required to classify our mortgagding business as a discontinued
operation in accordance with Statement of Finanstalounting Standards No. 144 (see note 9 in thiesnto our consolidated financial
statements). In connection with this reclassifmatiwe have presented selected financial data beléwo different formats. Table 1 and Table



2 provide summary level data for the continuing disgtontinued business operations of our compaiigr(giving effect to the
reclassification of the mortgage lending business).
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The selected financial data as of and for the yeaded December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 anehitesr 31, 2005, include the
operations of NYMT and its consolidated subsidmrlacluded in the selected financial data forytear ended December 31, 2004 are the
results of NYMT for the period beginning June 2002 (the closing date of our IPO) and HC for tharyte-date period beginning January 1,
2004. Prior to our IPO, NYMT had no operations aasla result, for the year 2003, the financial ga¢sented is for HC only.

Table 1:

As of and For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data

Operating Data:

Net interest incom $ 477 $ 4,78¢ $ 12,87: $ 7,92¢ $ —
(Loss) income from continuing operations (20,790 2,16¢ 3,32 6,89¢ —
(Loss) income from discontinued operation-net &f ta (34,479 (17,19) (8,662) (1,952 13,72¢
Net (loss)/incomt (55,26¢) (15,037 (5,340 4,947 13,72¢
Basic (loss) income per share (15.29) (4.17) (1.49 1.4C —
Balance Sheet Data

Total assets continuing operations 800,38! 1,110,10: 1,542,42: 1,413,72! —
Total assets discontinued operation 8,87¢ 212,80! 248,87: 201,03« 110,08:
Total liabilities continuing operations 785,01( 1,063,63. 1,458,411 1,306,18! —
Total liabilities discontinued operation $ 583: $ 187,70 $ 231,92 $ 189,09! $ 110,55!
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Table 2:

As of and For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data

Operating Data:

Revenues
Interest income $ 50,56 $ 64,88. $ 62,728 $ 20,39 $ —
Interest expense 50,081 60,091 49,85: 12,47( —

Net Interest Income 477 4,78¢ 12,87 7,922 —
Loan losses (1,689 (57) _ — _
(Loss) gain on sale of securities and related hedge (16,830 (529) 2,207 167 —
Impairment loss on investment securities — — (7,440 — _

Total other income (18,519 (58¢€) (5,239 167 —
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 86¢ 714 1,93¢ 382 —
General and administrative expenses 1,88¢ 1,31¢ 2,38¢ 81C _

Total expenses 2,75¢ 2,03; 4,31¢ 1,19: —
(Loss) income before income tax benefit (20,790 2,16¢ 3,322 6,89¢ —
(Loss) income discontinued operation — net of tax (34,47%) (17,197 (8,667) (1,957 13,72¢
Net (loss) incomt $ (55,26§) $ (15,03) $ (5,340 $ 4947 $ 13,72¢
Basic (loss) income per share $ (15.29) $ 4.179) $ (149 $ 14C $ —
Diluted (loss) income per share $ (15.29) $ 4.179) $ 149 $ 13 $ =
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 550¢ $ 96 $ 9,05¢ $ 7,61 $ =
Investment securities available for sale 350,48: 488,96. 716,48: 1,204,74! —_
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts odier

investment 430,71! 588,16( 780,67( 190,15: —

Assets related to discontinued operation 8,87¢ 212,80! 248.87: 201,03: 110,08:
Total assets 809,26: 1,322,90: 1,791,29: 1,614,76; 110,08:
Financing arrangements 315,71« 815,31 1,166,49: 1,115,80 —
Collateralized debt obligations 417,02° 197,44 228,22¢ — —
Subordinated debentures 45,00( 45,00( 45,00( _ _
Liabilities related to discontinued operation 5,83: 187,70! 231,92 189,09! 110,55!
Total liabilities 790,84 1,251,33! 1,690,33! 1,495,28I 110,55!
Equity/(deficit) $ 1841t $ 7157 $ 10095¢ $ 119,48. $ (474
Investment Portfolio Data:
Average yield on investment portfolio 5.5¢% 5.1(% 4.05% 3.9(% _
Net duration of interest earning assets to liabsi 0.12yrs 0.5%yrs 0.91yrs 0.42yrs _
Operational/Performance Data:
Number of employees at period € 8 61€ 802 782 33t
Dividends declared per common share $ 02t $ 23t % 46C $ 20C $ =

Iltem 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
General

New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. (“NYMT,” the “Compariy'we,” “our” and “us”) is a self-advised realtase investment trust
(“REIT") in the business of investing in residehtajustable rate mortgage-backed securities ibgealUnited States government-sponsored



enterprise ("GSE"), such as the Federal Nationatf§éme Association, or Fannie Mae, or the FedeamhélLoan Mortgage
Corporation, or Freddie Mac, prime credit quali#gidential adjustable-rate mortgage ("ARM") loasrsprime ARM loans, and non-agency
mortgage-backed securities. We refer to resideadistable rate mortgage-backed securities througthis Annual Report on Form 10-K as
"MBS" and MBS issued by a GSE as "Agency MBS". ®IBS securities are principally issued by eitheriiarMae and Freddie Mac,
(collectively, the "Agencies").
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On March 31, 2007 the Company sold the majoritthefassets related to the mortgage lending busaiesswholly-owned taxable
REIT subsidiary (“TRS"), Hypotheca Capital, LLC (@), formerly known as The New York Mortgage Compahl C. Since March 31,
2007, we have exclusively focused our resourcesffiods on investing, on a leveraged basis, in MBS

HC was a residential mortgage banking companyghatarily originated a wide range of residentialnigage loans on a retail basis,
with a focus on prime residential first lien loaagad to a lesser extent, residential mortgage loarswholesale basis.

Recent Events
Recent Market Volatility

Recently, the residential mortgage market in théddnStates has experienced a variety of diffieglind changed economic
conditions, including recent defaults, credit Iasaad liquidity concerns. During March 2008, nevpatential and actual security liquidations
has increased the price volatility and liquidityno&ny financial assets, including Agency MBS artteohigh-quality mortgage securities and
loans. As a result, market values and availablgdity to finance mortgage securities, includingngoof our Agency MBS and AAA-rated non-
Agency MBS, have been negatively impacted. As paese to these changed conditions, which have itagacrelatively broad range of
leveraged public and private companies with investinand financing strategies similar to ours, thenfany undertook a number of strategic
actions to reduce leverage and raise liquidityha gortfolio of Agency MBS. Since March 7, 2008 thompany sold, in aggregate,
approximately $598.9 million of Agency MBS that corised $516.4 million of Agency hybrid ARM MBS af82.5 million of Agency CMO
floating rate MBS. These sales resulted in a I6€16.4 million. Additionally, as a result of thesales of MBS, we terminated associated
interest rate swaps that were used to hedge dailitijacosts with a notional balance of $297.7 ioifl at a cost of $2.0 million. After the sale:
MBS, on March 31, 2008, our Agency MBS portfolitated approximately $507.0 million that comprisé®$259.6 million of Agency hybrid
ARM MBS, $216.3 million of Agency CMO floating radBS and $31.1 million of AAA-rated non-Agency MBS&s of March 31, 2008, in
aggregate, our Agency MBS portfolio was financethwipproximately $431.7 million of reverse repusthagreement borrowings (referred to
as “repo” borrowings) with an average advance o&&1% that implies an average haircut of 9% fer ¢intire portfolio. Within our total
portfolio, our Agency hybrid ARM MBS is financed thi$230.2 million of repo funding equating to avauice rate of 93% that implies a
haircut of 7% and our Agency CMO floating rate MBSinanced with $180.7 million of repo funding exdjimng to an advance rate of 88% that
implies a haircut of 12%. The Company also owng@gdmately $401.4 million of adjustable rate moga that were deemed to be of “prime”
or high quality at the time of origination. Thesars are permanently financed with approximateB8$3 million of collateralized debt
obligations and are held in securitization trusts.

We generally finance our portfolio of Agency MBSdamon-Agency MBS through repurchase agreements. result of recent market
disruptions that included company or hedge funidifes and securities portfolio foreclosures by repalers, among other events, securities
repo lenders have tightened their lending standandshave done so in a manner that now distingsibheveen “type” of Agency MBS. For
example, during the month of March 2008, lendergegaly increased haircuts on Agency Hybrid ARMair3% to 7% and also increased
haircuts on Agency floating rate CMO MBS from 5%atoange of 10% to 30% largely dependent upon ftashstructure. Given the volatility
in haircuts in Agency floating rate CMO MBS, in Mar2008 we sold approximately $82.5 million of Ageiffloating rate CMO MBS at a loss
of $4.7 million rather than meet the significantriease in required haircuts. While we believe westsold those Agency floating rate CMO
MBS that have recently been subject to the greatestase in haircuts, we cannot guarantee thatalreuts on our remaining Agency floating
rate CMO MBS will not increase from their currewifcut average of 12% and that a material incr@abaircuts on these securities (or our
Agency hybrid ARM MBS) would likely result in furélr securities sales that would likely negativefigetf our profitability, liquidity and the
results of operations.

Company Completes Two Private Stock Offerings i080

On February 21, 2008, the Company completed thaisse and sale of 15.0 million shares of its comstook to certain accredited
investors (as such term is defined in Rule 501 efiation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as aneehar Securities Act) at a price of $4.00
per share. This private offering of the Compangisimon stock generated net proceeds to the Congfapproximately $57.0 million after
payment of private placement fees, but before esggnPursuant to a registration rights agreenetntden the Company and the investors in
this private offering, the Company is required &y fiquidated damages upon the occurrence of cegtgnts, including, among other things,
the Company's failure to file a registration stagatrcovering all of the shares before the filingdlee. The liquidated damages are payable in
an amount equal to the product of ahetieth of (i) 0.5% multiplied by $4.00 for eaday that such events shall occur and be contindiming
the first 90 days of such non-compliance, andl(id? multiplied by $4.00 for each day after thet9fay of such non-compliance for each
share then held by the investors in the privaterof§.

On January 18, 2008, the Company issued 1.0 midli@res of its Series A Cumulative Redeemable GtblePreferred Stock,
which we refer to as our Series A Preferred ShaoedVIP Group Inc. and certain of its affiliates &m aggregate purchase price of $20.0
million. The Series A Preferred Shares entitletthlglers to receive a cumulative dividend of 10%y@sr, subject to an increase to the extent



any future quarterly common stock dividends excg@dO per share. The Series A Preferred SharegenatuDecember 31, 2010, ¢
are convertible into shares of the Company's comstack based on a conversion price of $4.00 paestfacommon stock, which represents a
conversion rate of five shares of common stoclefmh Series A Preferred Share. At their optiomhblders may purchase up to an additional
$20.0 million of Series A Preferred Shares, on fidahterms, through April 4, 2008. As set forthoae in Item 1, pursuant to a registration
rights agreement between the Company and the orgeist this private offering, in the event the Camnp fails to file a resale registration
statement with the SEC on or before June 30, 20818ers of our Series A Preferred Shares may hiteshto receive an additional cash
dividend at the rate of $0.10 per quarter per sf@reach calendar quarter after June 30, 2008 watfile such resale registration statement.

The net proceeds from both of these private ofégriwere used to purchase an aggregate of appretin®t12.4 million of Agency
hybrid MBS. These acquisitions were financed irt path repurchase agreements and hedged with bttesite swaps. See note 1 in the not
our consolidated financial statements.

Concurrent with the issuance of the Series A PrefeShares, the Company and two of its wholly-owsidokidiaries entered into an
advisory agreement with IMPAM, pursuant to whichPA advises HC and New York Mortgage Funding, Llegarding the acquisition and
management of certain mortgage-related investnesgts, as well as any additional subsidiaries aedwr formed in the future to hold
investments made on the Company's behalf by IMPédUetively, the "Managed Subsidiaries"). Pursuarthe advisory agreement,
JMPAM will receive a base advisory fee in an amaqual the equity of the Managed Subsidiariesiplidt! by 1.50%. Equity is defined to
mean the greater of (i) the net asset value oinéestments of the Subsidiaries, excluding investmenade prior to the date of the advisory
agreement and certain other assets, or (ii) thecf$20.0 million plus 50% of the net proceedshi®e Company or its subsidiaries of
any offering of common or preferred stock compldigdhe Company during the term of the advisoryeagrent. JMPAM is also eligible to
earn incentive compensation for performance in &xoé certain benchmarks. Because the Compangmthgsntends to focus its investment
efforts on the acquisition of Agency MBS, the Comya board of directors has not authorized, antineil authorize, JIMPAM to commence
the acquisition of alternative mortgage relatecestment assets until the risk adjusted returngiaadcing environment for such assets war
the investment of capital in such manner. As ofd¥al, 2008, IMPAM was not managing any assetsdarManaged Subsidiaries, but was
earning a base advisory fee on the net proceettie tGompany from these private offerings.
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Significant Developments in 2007
Sale of Mortgage Lending Business and Change in (Rusiness Strateg

In connection with the Company's exploration otggic alternatives and the significant operating #nancial challenges facing the
mortgage origination business, the Company comghliste separate strategic transactions during tBeduarter of 2007 that resulted in its ¢
from the mortgage lending business. On Februayp@Q@7, the Company completed the sale of the tipgrassets of its wholesale lending
business to Tribeca Lending Corp., or Tribeca Legda subsidiary of Franklin Credit Management ©ceifion, for an estimated purchase
price of $485,000. Shortly thereafter, on March&1Q7, the Company completed the sale of substigraiaof the operating assets related to
the retail mortgage lending platform of HC to IndgerBank, F.S.B., ("Indymac"), for a purchase pdtapproximately $13.5 million in cash
and the assumption of certain of our liabiliti¢dursuant to this transaction, Indymac purchasesdtanbally all of the operating assets relate
HC's retail mortgage lending platform, includingi@g other things, leases held by HC for approxétge80 retail mortgage lending offices
(excluding our corporate headquarters). In addjtiodymac assumed the obligations of HC under sline loans and substantially all of
HC's liabilities arising after March 31, 2007 undlee contracts and assets purchased by Indymae itnansaction. Indymac also agreed to pay
(i) the first $500,000 in severance expenses veigipect to "transferred employees” (as defineddratiset purchase agreement for this
transaction) and (ii) severance expenses in exadekk.1 million arising after the closing with resg to transferred employees. Under the t
of this transaction with Indymac, approximately3gillion was placed in escrow to support warrastiead indemnifications provided to
Indymac by HC as well as other purchase price audgists. As of January 28, 2008, approximately $80@has been paid to Indymac
and approximately $469,000 has been releasedftomsthe escrow account. We expect to pay Indynmeadalitional approximately $150,000
out of the escrow account, with the remaining agipnately $750,000 to be released to us from esdrpwot later than September 30, 2008.
Indymac hired substantially all of our brance engpks and loan officers and a majority of HC empésyleased out of our corporate
headquarters.

Note Regarding Discontinued Operation

In connection with the sale of our wholesale magggkending platform assets on February 22, 200tandale of our retail mortgage
lending platform assets to Indymac on March 31,72@ring the fourth quarter of 2006, we classifiedl mortgage lending business as a
discontinued operation in accordance with the miowis of SFAS No. 144. As a result, we have regaeenues and expenses related to the
mortgage lending business as a discontinued operatid the related assets and liabilities as aasdtfiabilities related to a discontinued
operation for all periods presented in the accomipgnconsolidated financial statements. Certairtsssuch as the deferred tax asset, and
certain liabilities, such as subordinated debt l&tiilities related to leased facilities not asgdrto Indymac will become part of the ongoing
operations of NYMT and accordingly, we have nossified as a discontinued operation in accordarittetive provisions of SFAS No. 144.
See Note 9 in the notes to our consolidated firsstatements.

Strategic Overview

We earn net interest income from purchased AgenBg Mrime ARM loans held in securitization trustlaron-agency MBS. We
have acquired and over time seek to acquire additiassets that will produce competitive returakingy into consideration the amount and
nature of the anticipated returns from the invesiimeur ability to pledge the investment for sed mllateralized borrowings and the costs
associated with financing, the affects of prepayisien the asset returns, and managing and resdouitigese investments. We intend to
focus our efforts on managing our existing pord@ind on the acquisition of Agency MBS.
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As of December 31, 2007, our investment portfoleswomprised of approximately $350.5 million in MB®luding $318.7 of
Agency MBS, approximately $31.8 million of non-AggnMBS of which $30.6 million are rated in the hégih category by two rating agencies
and $430.7 million of prime ARM loans held in sdtimation trusts.

Funding Diversification We strive to maintain and achieve a balanceddaretse funding mix to finance our investment paitf. We
rely primarily on repurchase agreements in orddinence our investment portfolio of MBS and onlatdralized debt obligations (“CDO”) to
finance our loans held in securitization trusts.

During 2005 we issued $45 million of trust prefersecurities classified as subordinated debentbegsemain outstanding as of
December 31, 2007.

Risk ManagementAs a manager of MBS and mortgage loan investmemsattempt to mitigate key risks inherent in thbasinesse
principally interest rate risk, prepayment riskdamedit risk, while maintaining positive earnings.

Interest Rate Risk ManagemeAtprimary risk to our investment portfolio of MB®i@ mortgage loans is interest rate risk. We use
hedging instruments to extend the maturities ofagr the interest rates on, our short-term repgeebgreement obligations, CDOs and other
financing arrangements. We hedge our financingsdosan attempt to maintain a net duration gags$ than one year; as of December 31,
2007, our net duration gap was approximately thmeaths.

As we acquire mortgage-backed securities, we sebkdge interest rate risk in order to stabilizeasset values and earnings. To
accomplish this, we use hedging instruments inwtetjon with our borrowings to approximate the regipg characteristics of our
ARM assets. The Company utilizes a model basedanisiysis system to assist in projecting portfpisformances over a variety of different
interest rates and market stresses. The modelpacates shifts in interest rates, changes in prapays and other factors impacting the
valuations of our financial securities, includind®, repurchase agreements, interest rate swapgataneist rate caps. However, given the
prepayment uncertainties of mortgage assetsnitipossible to definitively lock-in a spread beémehe earnings yield on our investment
portfolio and the related cost of borrowings. Ndwdess, through the use of evaluative stress sosr@rthe portfolio, we believe that we can
mitigate a significant amount of both value anchesgs volatility. See further discussion of inténede risk in Item 7A. “Quantitative And
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk - IntdrBsite Risk” section of this report.

Prepayment Risk ManagemeRtepayment risk, which is the risk that some op&bur investment portfolio assets may prepayrprio
to their maturities, is another important risk thet seek to manage. Historically, prepayment rask leen most influenced by borrowers that
refinance their current mortgage loans in an attampeduce their monthly mortgage payment. Becatesese hedging instruments to extend
the maturities of our short-term repurchase agre¢woigligations, prepayments that exceed our modedsdmptions could deteriorate our
portfolio margin as higher yielding assets wouldtee most likely to refinance and prepay. In aprafit to mitigate prepayment risk, we see
limit the premium we pay for MBS assets to appraadiety 102% of current balance, and look to purcfdB& securities that exhibit
characteristics that we feel will reduce their likeod to prepay. We believe the following Agenc¥BBl characteristics can help mitigate
prepayment risk: low average loan size, high awetagn-to-value ratios, low average borrower creditre, and high percentage of loans from
underperforming real estate markets.

Liquidity Risk.Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtehcash requirements, including ongoing committaeéa repay
borrowings, fund and maintain investments, payd#inds to our stockholders and other general busimesds. We recognize the need to have
funds available to operate our business. It ispalicy to have adequate liquidity at all times. Ylan to meet liquidity through normal
operations with the goal of avoiding unplanned salleassets or emergency borrowing of funds.

Investment Portfolio Credit Quality We retain in securitization trusts high-qualityrpei ARM loans that we originated or acquired
from third parties. These loans are permanentirfoed with the issuance of collateralized debtgaltibns (“CDQO”). Despite the financing of
these loans, we retain the risk of credit losse$ofans that default, up to the amount of equityhage invested in these securitizations, which
is approximately $13.7 million. Since we began martgage portfolio investment operations in Jun@42@ve have incurred approximately
$85,000 of credit losses. As of December 31, 2@@proximately 2.04% of loans in securitization tsusre 60 days or more delinquent and
approximately $4.1 million of loans have gone tlylothe foreclosure process, resulting in real esiained (“REQO”).

The weighted average seasoning of loans in oustment portfolio of mortgage loans was approxinya88 months at December 31,
2007. Delinquencies for prime loans typically p@akhe fourth to sixth year. Losses that may refsaln loans that become delinquent will
normally lag the initial delinquency event by sixttventy four months due, in part, to the fact thatforeclosure process in many states,
involves a relatively high degree of consumer priooa.

Other Risk Consideration®ur business is affected by a variety of economitiadustry factors. Management periodically rexdew
and assesses these factors and their potentiatirapaur business. The most significant risk fectnanagement considers while managin



business and which could have a material advefsetefn our financial condition and results of giems are:
« the overall leverage of our portfolio and the apitd obtain financing to leverage our equity;
« a prolonged economic slow down, a recession oiirdeglreal estate values could cause increasedt ¢osdes;

« adecline in the market value of our portfolio asskie to changes in interest rates;
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« increasing or decreasing levels of prepaymenthiemtortgages underlying our mortgage-backed sezsrit

« the concentration of our mortgage loans held ims#zation trusts in specific geographic regions;

« the possibility that our assets are insufficientnieet the collateral requirements of our lendersitfig us to liquidate those assel
inopportune times and at disadvantageous prices;

« if we are disqualified as a REIT, we will be subjertaxation as a regular corporation and woute faubstantial tax liability; al
compliance with REIT requirements might cause ustgo otherwise attractive opportunities.

« a quick increase or decrease in interest ratesadae unforeseen, or exogenous event.
Financial Overview

Revenues Our primary source of income is net interest inemn our portfolio of mortgage assets. Net intdrepme is the
difference between interest income, which is tleeme that we earn on our MBS and loans in secatiitiz trusts and interest expense, which
is the interest we pay on borrowings and subordihdebt. Prior to our exit from the mortgage legdinsiness, net interest income was also
earned on the majority of loan originations by HC€ the period of time commencing upon the closihg tban and ending upon the sale of ¢
loan to a third party.

Other Income (Expense).oan losses include reserves for, or actual costsried with respect to, the disposition of rgerforming o
early payment default loans we have originateduncipased from third parties or from losses incumedhon-performing loans held in
securitization trusts.

Prior to our exit from the mortgage lending busfmeaxgher sources of other income (expense) incléelesireceived by HC on
brokered loans and income from the sale of seearénd related hedges.

Expenses Non-interest expenses we incur in operating asirtess consist primarily of salary and employeeehts, occupancy and
equipment expenses, and other general and admihistexpenses. Salary and employee benefits ¢qnsisarily of the salaries and wages
paid to our employees, payroll taxes and exper@dssalth insurance, retirement plans and otheld@mp benefits. Occupancy and equipment
expenses, furniture and equipment expenses, maimtenreal estate taxes and other associatedatastsupancy. Other general and
administrative expenses include expenses for psifieal fees, office supplies, postage and shippaigphone, insurance, travel and
entertainment and other miscellaneous operatingresgs.

Prior to our exit from the mortgage lending bussexpenses also included brokered loan expermsas|dss reserves, marketing, and
variable expense. Brokered loan expenses primanitylved direct commissions and other costs astettiaith brokered loans when such lo
were closed with the borrower. Marketing and praoroexpenses included the cost of print, radioiaternet advertisements, promotions,
third-party marketing services, public relationsl @ponsorships. Variable expenses included comonissin loan originations and certain
office supplies, promotions and other miscellanemxenses.

Loss from discontinued operatiori:oss from discontinued operation includes all rexenand expenses related to our discontinued
mortgage lending business excluding those costsiitidbe retained by us, which are primarily expen related to rent expense for leased
locations not assigned as part of the dispositfayuo mortgage lending business and certain alkmtptyroll expenses for employees
remaining with us.

Description of Business

Mortgage Portfolio Managemer

Our business plan consists of investing in and miaigea. portfolio of MBS and prime ARM loans and adesser extent, non-Agency
MBS. Our mortgage portfolio currently generatesoalbur current earnings. In managing our portfolianortgage assets we:

« invest in high-credit quality Agency MBS and négency MBS, including ARM securities, collateralizenortgage obligatic
floaters (“CMO Floaters”), and high-credit qualityortgage loans;

. generally operate as a long-term portfolio investor



« finance our portfolio by entering into repurchageegments or issuing CDOs relating to our loan sézations; and

« generate earnings from the return on our mortgagergies and spread income from our mortgage pmatfolio.
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We will in the future focus on the acquisition ofj@ncy MBS, taking into consideration the amount aaire of the anticipated
returns from the investment, our ability to pledige investment for secured, collateralized borr@siand the costs associated with obtaining,
financing and managing for these investments.

We entered into an advisory agreement with IMPANspant to which IMPAM will advise the Managed Sdlzsies and is expecte
at some point in the future, to implement an alitwe mortgage related investment strategy foMa@aged Subsidiaries. Although we
currently have no plans to acquire alternative gage related investments to be held in the Man&uédidiaries, we do expect that IMPAM
will, in the future, as an advisor to the ManagedhsSdiaries, focus on the acquisition of alterrativortgage investments on behalf of the
Managed Subsidiaries that will allow us to utilz@ortion of the net operating loss cafoyward to the extent available by law. This stgytaf
and when implemented, will vary from our core stggt We can make no assurance that we or IMPAMbwiuccessful at implementing any
alternative investment strategy.

A significant risk to our operations, relating torgortfolio management, is the risk that interasés on our assets will not adjust ai
same times or amounts that rates on our liabila@jast. Even though we retain and invest in ARMany of the Agency MBS and ARM loans
in our portfolio are hybrid ARM securities or loatft have fixed rates of interest for a periodiok ranging from two to five years. Our
funding costs are variable and the maturities hogtgerm in nature. As a result, we use derivaitistruments (interest rate swaps and interest
rate caps) to mitigate the risk of our cost of fingdncreasing or decreasing at a faster rate the@mterest on our investment assets.

As of December 31, 2007, our investment portfoleswomprised of approximately $350.5 million in MB®luding $318.7 of
Agency MBS, approximately $31.8 million of non-AggnMBS of which $30.6 million are rated in the hégih category by two rating agencies
and $430.7 million of prime ARM loans held in sdtimation trusts.

Such assets are evaluated for impairment on agqlyabtasis or, if events or changes in circumstamodicate that these assets or the
underlying collateral may be impaired, on a moegjfrent basis. We evaluate whether these asseatersiglered impaired, whether the
impairment is other-than-temporary and, if the impant is other-than-temporary, recognize an impaint loss equal to the difference
between the asset’s amortized cost basis andritedlae.

During March 2008, news of potential security ldafions significantly increased the volatility ofiny financial assets, including
those held in our portfolio. Specifically, thedigation of several large financial institutionsaarly March 2008 caused a significant decline in
the fair market value of the CMO Floaters held um portfolio. The CMO Floaters in our portfolio goeedged as collateral for borrowings
under our repurchase agreements. As a resuledigimificant decline in the fair market value of €MO Floaters, as determined by the
lenders under our repurchase agreements, the hegquired by our lenders to obtain new or addaldimancing on these
securities experienced a significant increase. fesalt of the combination of lower fair marketwas on our CMO Floaters and rising haircut
requirements to finance those securities, we electémprove our liquidity position by selling agpimately $82.5 million of CMO Floaters
from our portfolio in March 2008. Given the conted volatility in the mortgage securities markeg, determined that we may not be able to
hold the CMO Floaters or other MBS securities in portfolio for the foreseeable future because veg sell them to satisfy margin calls from
our lenders or to otherwise manage our liquiditgipon. Therefore, we have determined that lossegur entire MBS securities portfolio wi
considered to be other than temporary impairments ®ecember 31, 2007 and have taken a $8.5 miligpairment charge in the fourth
quarter of 2007 as a result.

We recorded an impairment loss of $7.4 million dgr2005, because we concluded that we no longethigaiditent to hold certain
lower-yielding mortgage-backed securities untilithvalues recovered.

Mortgage Lending (Discontinued Operatiot

Until March 31, 2007, our discontinued mortgagediag operation contributed to our then currentgetfinancial results. Subsequent
to March 31, 2007, our discontinued mortgage legdiperation has impacted our financial resultstdu@bilities remaining after the sale of
the operation’s assets. As of December 31, 20@0bdimued operations consist of $8.9 in assetst&lin liabilities down from $212.8
million in assets and $187.7 million in liabilities of December 31, 2006.

We originated a wide range of mortgage loan pralintiuding prime, alternative-A, and to a lessdest sub-prime loans, home
equity lines of credit, second mortgages, and leridgns. During 2005 and the first quarter of 2@@6aggregated certain high-quality, shorter-
term ARM loans in order to hold such loans on aylterm basis in our investment portfolio. For tleass ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
we originated $0.4 billion and $2.5 billion in mgage loans, respectively. We recognized gains lenofanortgage loans totaling $2.5 million
and $18.0 million for the years ended Decembe2B0y and 2006, respectively.

Our wholesale lending strategy had been a smalpoment of our loan lending operations. On Febr2ary2007, we sold
substantially all of the assets of our wholesalerapions to Tribeca Lending.



Known Material Trends and Commentary Regarding Fisal Year 2007

Declines in the prices of mortgage assdts/estors’ appetite for U.S. mortgage assetsadesad globally in 2007. Higher
delinquencies, resulted in numerous credit ratingrijrades on non-Agency MBS collateralized by rexsiidl mortgage loans, principally
loans that were originated in 2006 and 2007. Noexsy MBS lack the direct backing of Government Suoed Enterprises (“GSE”),
principally Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and argesuitto changes in their credit ratings. As a restiboth the higher delinquencies and
downgrades, many institutional holders of mortgagsets sold their holdings of MBS, principally mdgency holdings. This selling, along
with decreased demand for these assets amongonsestused mortgage asset prices to decline.

Increased prepayment rates.Prepayment rates generally increase when Bttemtes fall and decrease when interest rates rise
however, changes in prepayment rates are diffioudiccurately predict. When interest rates fall, B®prepayment rates rise, which can im
our net income. We seek to mitigate this risk bychasing a mix of assets with both a premium asdadint price.
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Tightening in the financing markets and reduceditiity . As prices of mortgage assets decreased, mangrietitht finance mortgage
assets began to take measures to insure theidilignieeds would not be compromised. Principallgnsnfinancial institutions began to
withdraw financing and liquidity that they typicalbffered clients as part of their daily businepsmations. The most common forms of
liquidity provided to the mortgage market are ia form of repurchase agreements for MBS, and warsshtines for lenders. This reduced
availability of financing led to numerous failures the part of mortgage lenders, specialty finaswapanies, hedge funds, and a small number
of non-U.S. banks. Forced liquidations due to failar financial stress have exacerbated the prablem

Despite these liquidity concerns in the marketweee able to finance our Agency MBS with repurchageements throughout 2007.
Decreased loan amounts relative the value of tberes, also known as an increase in “haircu&ravseen in the second half of 2007. We
were able to meet all increased haircuts on the MBS3inanced. Generally, haircuts on our Agency MBSeased from 3% to 5%, and mar
values attributed to our Agency MBS by repurchageament counterparties decreased by approxim2#elio 3%. As with increases in
haircuts, decreases in market value reduce the mmaiare able to borrow against our assets.

Volatility in financing costs The dislocations in the mortgage market led tweéased volatility in the cost of financing. The
relationships between certain short-term interatgs;, normally very consistent, became less doeisecond half of 2007. The Federal Funds
rate, an interest rate used by banks for overtigints to each other and determined by the FedesdiiRe Board, is a benchmark used by
others to determine similar short term rates. Toedon Inter Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), a marketermined rate for short term loans,
normally 0.10% higher than the Federal Funds eatefaged well above that for most of the seconfidi&007. As our repurchase agreements
have rates determined by one month LIBOR, our aafstimancing increased on a relative basis, ingeond half of 2007. The Federal Funds
rate averaged 40 basis points lower in the secaticohthe 2007 as compared to the first half 0dd20LIBOR only experienced a 14 basis p
decline. The Company’s funding is generally deteediby a spread to the LIBOR interest rate.

Hedging. We generally seek to reduce the volatility of nat income by entering into interest rate swapagents. As of December
31, 2007, we had entered into interest rate swageawents with an aggregate notional amount of $2ilion. Although we believe this
hedging strategy will be effective under normaénesst rate environments and over longer periogsytiprecedented market environment
described above during the second half of 2007ezhtiEs strategy to be less effective than expiectsit Typically interest rate swaps are used
to offset price declines in our investment portiplhowever, over the second half of the year therést rate swaps and investment portfolio
experienced price declines resulting in a largantbxpected increase in the Other Comprehensive daaponent of our equity. The Compi
discontinued hedge accounting treatment for trerést rate swap positions during the forth quart@007 as part of strategic portfolio
realignment related to the JMP capital investmerthe Company. (See note 18) Accordingly, the Uimed loss was recorded as an unrealized
loss in the Statement of Operations and no lorgfézated as part of other comprehensive incombearBalance Sheet.

Changes in the U.S. econom@hanges in the U.S. economy also affected usUl8eeconomy in the second half of 2007 began to
show signs of slowing. Adverse trends in the hayisirarket and increased stress on borrowers, imaudi particular, residential mortgage
borrowers, has had a ripple effect throughout ttf. ©conomy. The Federal Reserve began to redocetsim interest rates in September of
2007. Recently, increased concern regarding iofteltias arisen principally due to increases in codity@rices globally. The concern with
inflation kept longer term interest rates high tiglato short term rates. This so called steepdyielrve generally results in increased returns on
equity for companies that employ our Agency MB&tstgy. The possibility of an increase in inflattoowever increases the possibility of
interest rates moving higher.

Loan repurchase requestsligher delinquency rates, as noted earlier, wereprimarily to lax underwriting standards on Isan
originated in 2006 and 2007. Increased delinqueneiad to increased requests for loan repurchasesdurchasers of loans. Requests for loan
repurchases for loans originated and sold by @eaoditinued mortgage lending business affectedesuits in 2007. At their height, as
measured by loan balance, repurchase requestsdapproximately $25.2 million as of June 30, 209¥ of December 31, 2007, we had $4.4
million of outstanding repurchase requests. Dugiig7, we repurchased a total of $6.7 million of tgage loans due to repurchase requests
from loan investors. We resold most of these repased loans at discounts, increasing our lossdfor 2For loans we did not repurchase, we
were able to eliminate repurchase requests byirgterto settlement agreements with the partiesiesting the repurchases. The settlements
provided for a payment of a negotiated amount basesissumed or actual loss, further increasindamses for 2007. The settlements in a
majority of the cases also provided for a releasm fall future claims.

For a discussion of additional risks relating to business see “Risk Factors” and “—Quantitative @uialitative Disclosures About
Risk.”

Results of OperationsWe expect that our revenues will derive primafiiym the difference between the interest incomesanmm
on the mortgage assets in our portfolio and thésaafsour borrowings, net of hedging expenses. Yeet our operating expenses to be
significantly lower in the future due to the redantin personnel resulting from the sale of oucdiginued mortgage lending operation. The
sale of each of our retail and wholesale mortgagiking platforms has resulted in gross proceedévivl T of approximately $13.5
million before fees and expenses, and before destuof approximately $2.3 million, which is beinglt in escrow to support warranties and



indemnifications provided to Indymac by HC as veallother purchase price adjustments. HC recorde éime taxable gain of $4.4
million on the sale of its assets to Indymac.
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Liquidity . We depend on the capital markets to finance owdtiaents in MBS. As it relates to our investmentfpbio, we use a
combination of repurchase agreements, loan sezatrdns, cash from our operations and the issuahcemmon and preferred equity to
finance our portfolio of MBS and mortgage loansioPto exiting the mortgage lending business inda2007, we used “warehoudatilities
provided by commercial or investment banks to foeathe mortgage loans held for sale that wereratgd by HCThese warehouse lines hi
been terminated in connection with our exit frora thortgage lending business.

Commercial and investment banks have provided fagunit liquidity to finance our operations. Duerexent credit market
developments, the availability of short-term cafatized borrowing through repurchase agreemegfsatined considerably beginning in the
second half of 2007 and continuing through the détais Annual Report. Possible market developmentluding a sharp rise in interest re
a change in prepayment rates or increasing madketern about the value or liquidity of one or miyges of mortgage-related assets in which
our portfolio is concentrated may reduce the mavkéiie of our portfolio, which may reduce the antoofriquidity available to us or may
cause our lenders to require additional collatdrals may require the Company to sell assets atdantaged prices. Although we presently
expect the short-term collateralized borrowing regsko continue providing us with necessary finag¢hrough repurchase agreements, we
cannot assure you that this form of financing Wélavailable to us in the future on comparable seffrat all. See “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” below for further discussion of liquiditsks and resources available to us.

Loan Loss Reserves on Mortgage LoansAs with any mortgage asset, or a liability retbte a mortgage asset in either NYMT or
HC, we have policies and procedures in place terdehe the appropriate levels of loan loss resemasive to non-performing assets. Loan
loss reserves are taken against non-performinglbald in securitizations trust and non-performogns held for sale in our discontinued
mortgage lending operation. We use a slightly difife methodology to determine loan loss reserve#ms held in securitizations trusts as
compared to loans held in HC. We consider a lodyetaon-performing once it becomes 60 days delinjW&e also reserve for possible
losses against loans we have been asked to regarfioan investors, and for loans in which we hademnified investors against loss in
accordance with the policy described below.

In determining loan loss reserves we generally oelynanagement’s estimate of loan loss severithdgament ’ s estimation
involves, most importantly, the loan-to-value rat{tLTV") of a loan, historical credit loss sevgritates, property appreciation or depreciation
rates for the property’s market, purchased mortgagirance, the borrower’s credit and other facti@mmed to warrant consideration.
Comparing the current loan balance to the currespiqrty value determines the current loan-to-vaat® of the loan. We utilize various
internet based property data services to look mipewable properties in the same area, or constlitaviealtor in the property’s area to
determine the current value of the property segutie delinquent loans.

For loans held in securitization trusts, generakyestimate that any loan that goes through foseiceand results in Real Estate
Owned (“REQ”) by us results in proceeds returnetheoCompany equal to 68% of the property’s curvahie at the time the loan became 60
days delinquent, which is based on historical éepee. Thus, for a first lien loan that is 60 orrendays delinquent we will take the difference
between the current loan’s balance and 68% of thegpty’s current value as a loan loss reserve.diffierence determines the base loan loss
reserve taken for that loan. This base reserva fmarticular loan may be adjusted if we are awéspecific circumstances that may affect the
outcome of the loss mitigation process for thahld&edominately, however, we use the base resemwber for our loan loss reserve.

Loans that were originated and sold by HC to variowestors and for which we (i) have been askaépurchase, (ii) held for sale in
HC, or (iii) indemnified the investor against losger some specified time period, may also reqail@an loss reserve. A large portion of the
repurchase requests, commonly resulting from gajyment defaults (“EPDs”) came as a result of wers failing to timely make their first
three loan payments. Similar to the above desoriptf our reserve procedures for loans held in riization trusts, we compare the current
balance of loans for which we have been askedporchase, and loans in which we have indemnifiedritiestor to the current value of the
property securing the mortgage note. Different hawvdor this group of loans, we assume that we oatgive proceeds equal to 65% of the
property’s current value at such time that the Ibacomes 60 days delinquent.

Given the current economic environment, the Comges/reserved 100% for all non-performing secondgages and 60% for all
performing second mortgages. As of December 317 2@ Company had $1.4 million in second mortgag#s a total reserve of $1.2 millic
with net exposure of $0.2 million.

While we believe these policies are prudent, wemake no assurance that they will be adequateverdature losses.
Significance of Estimates and Critical Accounting Blicies

We prepare our consolidated financial statement®iriormity with accounting principles generallycapted in the United States of
America, or GAAP, many of which require the usesftimates, judgments and assumptions that affpottex amounts. These estimates are

based, in part, on our judgment and assumptioregdégy various economic conditions that we beliarereasonable based on facts and
circumstances existing at the time of reportinge Tésults of these estimates affect reported armamfrassets, liabilities and accumulated other



comprehensive income at the date of the consotidétancial statements and the reported amounitscoime, expenses and other
comprehensive income during the periods presented.

Changes in the estimates and assumptions couldshaagerial effect on these financial statementsofinting policies and estimates
related to specific components of our consolidéiteahcial statements are disclosed in the notesitaonsolidated financial statements. In
accordance with SEC guidance, those material aticgupolicies and estimates that we believe aretmritical to an investor’'s understanding
of our financial results and condition and whichjuige complex management judgment are discusseavbel
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Revenue Recognitiorinterest income on our residential mortgage laarsmortgagdacked securities is a combination of the int:
earned based on the outstanding principal balahtteeainderlying loan/security, the contractuairierof the assets and the amortization of
yield adjustments, principally premiums and disdsunsing generally accepted interest methodsnEh&AAP cost over the par balance
self-originated loans held for investment and premand discount associated with the purchase ofgage-backed securities and loans are
amortized into interest income over the lives & timderlying assets using the effective yield meti® adjusted for the effects of estimated
prepayments. Estimating prepayments and the rengatarm of our interest yield investments requisnagement judgment, which involves,
among other things, consideration of possible fitoterest rate environments and an estimate ofifmvowers will react to those
environments, historical trends and performance. dd¢tual prepayment speed and actual lives coufddse or less than the amount estimated
by management at the time of origination or puretzEshe assets or at each financial reportingoperi

Fair Value. Generally, the financial instruments we utilize aidely traded and there exists a ready anddiguérket. The fair values
for such financial instruments are generally basedharket prices provided by five to seven dealdrs make markets in these financial
instruments. If the fair value of a financial instrent is not reasonably available from a dealenagament estimates the fair value based on
characteristics of the security that the Compangikes from the issuer and on available marketriméion.

Recent events in the financial and credit markatgehesulted in significant numbers of investmessets offered in the marketplace
with limited financing available to potential bugein addition, there has been a lack of confidexsmneng potential investors regarding the
validity of the ratings provided by the major ratiagencies. This increase in available investmssgta and investordiminished confidence
assessing the credit profile of investments hagdtezsin significant price volatility in previoushktable asset classes, including our AAA-rated
non-Agency MBS portfolio. As a result, the pricing pess for certain investment classes has becomechatlenging and may not necessa
represent what we could receive in an actual trade.Company had $31.8 million on non-Agency MB®&Becember 31, 2007.

In the normal course of our discontinued mortga&geling business, we entered into contractual isteage lock commitments, or
(“IRLCs"), to extend credit to finance residentiabrtgages. Mark-to-market adjustments on IRLCs wecerded from the inception of the
interest rate lock through the date the underlfa@g was funded. The fair value of the IRLCs isedeiined by an estimate of the ultimate gain
on sale of the loans net of estimated net costsiginate the loan. To mitigate the effect of theerest rate risk inherent in issuing an IRLC
from the lock-in date to the funding date of a loae generally entered into forward sale loan amwify, or (“FSLCs”). Since the FSLCs were
committed prior to mortgage loan funding and tthese¢ was no owned asset to hedge, the FSLCs ia ptaar to the funding of a loan were
undesignated derivatives under SFAS No. 133 ancharked to market with changes in fair value reedrtb current earnings.

Impairment of and Basis Adjustments on Securitiirdncial Assets As previously described herein, during 2005 aatlye2006, we
regularly securitized our mortgage loans and rethihe beneficial interests created by such ségatidn. Such assets are evaluated for
impairment on a quarterly basis or, if events @mngjes in circumstances indicate that these ass#ts anderlying collateral may be impaired,
on a more frequent basis. We evaluate whether tiessets are considered impaired, whether the impairis other-than-temporary and, if the
impairment is other-than-temporary, recognize apaimment loss equal to the difference between $isets amortized cost basis and its fair
value. These evaluations require management to estkaates and judgments based on changes in niatdedtst rates, credit ratings, credit
and delinquency data and other information to deitez whether unrealized losses are reflective editideterioration and our ability and int:
to hold the investment to maturity or recovery.sTbiher-than-temporary impairment analysis requsigsificant management judgment and
we deem this to be a critical accounting estimate.

We recorded an impairment loss of $7.4 million dgr2005, because we concluded that we no longethigaiditent to hold certain
lower-yielding mortgage-backed securities untilithvalues recovered.

During March 2008, news of potential security ldafions significantly increased the volatility ofiny financial assets, including
those held in our portfolio. Specifically, thedigation of several large financial institutionsaarly March 2008 caused a significant decline in
the fair market value of the CMO Floaters held im portfolio. The CMO Floaters in our portfolio gokedged as collateral for borrowings
under our repurchase agreements. As a resuledigimificant decline in the fair market value of €MO Floaters, as determined by the
lenders under our repurchase agreements, the tsaremjuired by our lenders to obtain new or add#idinancing on these
securities experienced a significant increase. fesalt, of the combination of lower fair marketuas on our CMO Floaters and rising haircut
requirements to finance those securities, we electémprove our liquidity position by selling agpimately $82.5 million of CMO Floaters
from our portfolio in March 2008. Given the conted volatility in the mortgage securities markeg, determined that we may not be able to
hold the CMO Floaters or other MBS securities in portfolio for the foreseeable future because vey sell them to satisfy margin calls from
our lenders or to otherwise manage our liquiditgitfion. Therefore, we have determined that lossesur entire MBS securities portfolio of
CMO Floaters were considered to be other than teanpampairments as of December 31, 2007 and hekenta $8.5 million impairment
charge in the fourth quarter of 2007 as a result.

Loan Loss Reserves on Mortgage Loaée evaluate reserves for loan losses based oagearent’s judgment and estimate of credit
losses inherent in our portfolio of residential tgage loans held for sale and mortgage loans heddduritization trusts. If the credit



performance of any of our mortgage loans deviata®s Expectations, the allowance for loan lossesljgsted to a level deemed
appropriate by management to provide for estimptetlable losses in the portfolio. One of the caitizssumptions used in estimating the loan
loss reserve is severity. Severity representstpeated rate of realized loss upon dispositionitggm of the collateral that has gone into
foreclosure.

Securitizations We have in the past created securitizationiestéts a means of either:
« creating securities backed by mortgage loans wivigleld and financed; or

» securing longerm collateralized financing for our residentiabmgage loan portfolio and matching the income edrior
residential mortgage loans with the cost of reldiggdailities, otherwise referred to as match furgdour balance sheet.

Residential mortgage loans are transferred to aragpbankruptcy-remote legal entity from whictvate-label multi-class mortgage-
backed notes are issued. On a consolidated Isasigiitizations are accounted for as secured finga@s defined by SFAS No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilit, and, therefore, no gain or loss is recorded in
connection with the securitizations. Each seaaiton entity is evaluated in accordance with Fai@nAccounting Standards Board
Interpretation, or FIN, 46(R};onsolidation of Variable Interest Entitieand we have determined that we are the primamgfimary of the
securitization entities. As such, the securitmatntities are consolidated into our consolidéiidnce sheet subsequent to securitization.
Residential mortgage loans transferred to seeatitin entities collateralize the mortgage-backe@sissued, and, as a result, those
investments are not available to us, our creditoistockholders. All discussions relating to sétations are on a consolidated basis and do
not necessarily reflect the separate legal ownershihe loans by the related bankruptcy-remotellegtity.
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Derivative Financial InstrumentsThe Company has developed risk management pragaach processes, which include investments
in derivative financial instruments designed to aganmarket risk associated with its mortgage-baskedrities investment activities.

All derivative financial instruments are reportedegither assets or liabilities in the consoliddiathnce sheet at fair value. The gains
and losses associated with changes in the faiewaflderivatives not designated as hedges aretezpior current earnings. If the derivative is
designated as a fair value hedge and is highltffein achieving offsetting changes in the faitue of the asset or liability hedged, the
recorded value of the hedged item is adjusteddogtiange in fair value attributable to the hedggld tf the derivative is designated as a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of change in fhie value of the derivative is recorded as ottmnprehensive income and is recognized in the
income statement when the hedged item affectsreggniThe Company calculates the effectivenesseskthedges on an ongoing basis, and, to
date, has calculated effectiveness of approximat@dpso. Ineffective portions, if any, of changesha fair value or cash flow hedges are
recognized in earnings.

New Accounting Pronouncements -September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Fait, Value MeasurementsSFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring falue, and enhances fair value measurement diselosuFebruary 2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position 157-1, “Application of FASB SBAL57 to FASB SFAS 13 and Other Accounting Pronements that Address Fair
Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Cladsificar Measurement under SFAS 13 and FASB Stadftioo 157-2, “Effective Date of
FASB SFAS 157.” FASB Staff Position 157-1 amendé&SHA57 to remove certain leasing transactions fitsracope. FASB Staff Position
157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 fonah-financial assets and non-financial liabilitiegcept for items that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statememts recurring basis (at least annually), ungélbleginning of the first quarter of fiscal year
2009. The measurement and disclosure requiremelated to financial assets and financial liabiditage effective for the Company beginning
in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008. The adtmpiof SFAS 157 for financial assets and finank#ilities will not have a significant impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statemetdsvever, the resulting fair values calculated urleAS 157 after adoption may be
different from the fair values that would have bealculated under previous guidance. SFAS 157beilapplied to non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities beginning January 1, 20@8d is not expected to have a material impat¢herCompany’s consolidated financial
statements.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FINAdBpunting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — aeiiptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109( “FIN 48 "), which clarifies the accounting foncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enieprs financial statements, FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureatgiftute for the financial statement recognitiowl aneasurement of tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 aftswigdes guidance on de-recognition, classificatioterest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. Interest agwhjties are accrued and reported as interest sgpamd other expenses reported in the
consolidated statement of income are booked whairiied. In addition, the 2003-2006 tax years rermaien to examination by major taxing
jurisdictions. The adoption of FIN 48 has had nderial impact on the Compa’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. I5®% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fiogl Liabilities (“SFAS No.
159"), which provides companies with an optiongpart selected financial assets and liabilitieiatvalue. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is
to reduce both complexity in accounting for finadénstruments and the volatility in earnings calibg measuring related assets and liabilities
differently. SFAS No. 159 establishes presentadiot disclosure requirements and requires compsmg®vide additional information that
will help investors and other users of financialteinents to more easily understand the effecteo€timpany's choice to use fair value on its
earnings. SFAS No. 159 also requires entitiesgpldy the fair value of those assets and lialsliter which the company has chosen to use
value on the face of the balance sheet. SFAS Nbisl&ffective for financial statements issuedfiecal years beginning after November 15,
2007. The Company did not elect the fair valueapfor any existing financial assets on the effectate.

In June 2007, the EITF reached consensus on Issu@aN11Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of DividendsSbare-Based
Payment Award("EITF 06-11"). EITF 06-11 requires that the taxbét related to dividend equivalents paid on liestd stock units, which
are expected to vest, be recorded as an increaskdlitional paid-in capital. EITF 06-11 is to bephgd prospectively for tax benefits on
dividends declared in fiscal years beginning ditecember 15, 2007, and the Company expects to dueptrovisions of EITF 06-11
beginning in the first quarter of 2008. The Compéngurrently evaluating the potential effect oa tonsolidated financial statements of
adopting EITF 06-11.

In June 2007, the AICPA issued SOP No. 07/arification of the Scope of the Audit and Acdino Guide Investment Companies
and Accounting by Parent Companies and Equity Mektheestors for Investments limvestment Companies (“SOP 07-1"). SOP 07-1
addresses whether the accounting principles oAtB&A Audit and Accounting Guidelnvestment Companiesay be applied to an entity by
clarifying the definition of an investment compaenyd whether those accounting principles may bénedaby a parent company in
consolidation or by an investor in the applicatidrihe equity method of accounting. In October @72, the provisions of SOP 07-1 were
deferred indefinitely.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS Naihcontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financighf@ments—an Amendment of



Accounting Research Bulletin No. 55FAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin Sstablish accounting and reporting
standards for the noncontrolling interest in a glibgy and for the deconsolidation of a subsididtrglarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary is an ownership interest in the constéid entity that should be reported as equity éncthnsolidated financial statements. SFAS
changes the way the consolidated income statem@nésented. It requires consolidated net inconie teeported at amounts that include the
amounts attributable to both the parent and theomnolling interest. It also requires discloswe,the face of the consolidated statement of
income, of the amounts of consolidated net incotiiéatable to the parent and to the noncontrolliimgrest. SFAS 160 will become effective
for the Company on January 1, 2009, and is notaggeao have a material impact on the Company’saiiated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (re\288d),Business CombinationsSFAS 141 retains the fundamental
requirements in SFAS 141 that the acquisition mettfoaccounting (which SFAS 141 called the purchraséhod) be used for all business
combinations and for an acquirer to be identifieddach business combination. SFAS 141(R) reqainescquirer to recognize the assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any nonodiimtg interest in the acquiree at the acquisititate, measured at their fair values as of that
date. SFAS 141(R) requires costs incurred to effectcquisition and restructuring costs to begaized separately from the acquisition.
SFAS 141(R) applies to business combinations fdackvthe acquisition date is on or after Januar30D9.
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Overview of Performance

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we repomed lass of $55.3 million, as compared to a nss lof $15.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in net fdg$003 was due to the following factors: an $1®idlion non cash charge to reserve 100%
of the deferred tax asset resulting from the sht®iomortgage lending business, an $8.5 million nash impairment related to the investment
portfolio, a decrease in net interest margin oB$4illion, an increase of $7.8 million related ts$es on sale of securities and hedges and an
increase in loan losses of $1.6 million relatetbtms held in securitization trust.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, total mgetgaiginations, including brokered loans, weretdflllion as compared to $2.5
billion and $3.4 billion for the same period of B08nd 2005, respectively. Total employees decremsejht at December 31, 2007 from 616
at
December 31, 2006.

Summary of Operations and Key Performance Measurenmsgs

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our net iaagas dependent upon our mortgage portfolio manageaperations and the net
interest (interest income on portfolio assets f¢he interest expense and hedging costs associdttedthe financing of such assets) generated
from our portfolio of mortgage loans held in thewgtization trusts and residential mortgage-backeclrities in our mortgage portfolio. The
following table presents the components of ourimterest income from our investment portfolio of mgage securities and loans for the year
ended December 31, 2007:

Net Interest Income Portfolio:

Average
Outstanding Effective
Amount Balance Rate

(Dollars in

Millions)
Net Interest Income Components:
Interest Income
Investment securities and loans held in the seézatiibn trusts $ 52,18 $ 907.( 5.748%
Amortization of premium (1,616 2.4 (0.19%
Total interest income $ 50,56 $ 909.4 5.5€%
Interest Expense
Repurchase agreements $ 48,108 $ 864.7 5.4%%
Interest rate swaps and caps (1,576 (0.16%
Total interest expense $ 46,52¢ $ 864.7 5.31%
Net Interest Income $ 4,03t 0.25%

The key performance measures for our portfolio rgangent activities are:
« the net interest spread on the portfolio;

« the characteristics of the investments and the nlyidg pool of mortgage loans including but not iied to credit quality, coupt
and prepayment rates; and

« the return on our mortgage asset investments ancethted management of interest rate risk.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, our net inceas also affected by losses in our discontinuedgage lending operation,
which includes the mortgage loan sales and mortQegjeering activities on mortgages sold or brokerethird parties. Our mortgage banking

activities generated revenues in the form of gaimsales of mortgage loans to third parties andlancfee income and interest income from
borrowers. Our mortgage brokering operations geedrarokering fee revenues from third party buyers.
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Financial Condition
Balance Sheet Analysis - Asset Quality

Investment Portfolio Related Assets

Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts and Mgage Loans Held for Investmentincluded in our portfolio are ARM loans
that we originated or purchased in bulk from thpedties that met our investment criteria and pédfieequirements. These loans are classified
as “mortgage loans held for investment” during aqukof aggregation and until the portfolio reachesize sufficient for us to securitize such
loans. If the securitization qualifies as a finawgcfor SFAS No. 140 purposes, the loans are thahassified as “mortgage loans held in
securitization trusts.”

New York Mortgage Trust 2006-1, our most recentusidization, qualified as a sale under SFAS No.,Mich resulted in the
recording of residual assets and mortgage servitggs. The residual assets total $1.2 million arglincluded in investment securities
available for sale.

Except for the loans in securitization trusts, ¢heere no mortgage loans held for investment aeBéer 31, 2007 or December 31,
2006.

The following table details mortgage loans heldégcuritization trusts at December 31, 2007 and Dbee 31, 2006 (dollar amounts
in thousands):

Par Value Coupon Carrying Value Yield
December 31, 2007 $ 429,62¢ 578 $ 430,71! 5.3€%
December 31, 2006 $ 584,35¢ 556% $ 588,16( 5.5%

At December 31, 2007 mortgage loans held in sezatibn trusts totaled approximately $431 million,55% of our total assets. Of
this mortgage loan investment portfolio 100% aaglitional ARMs or hybrid ARMs and 79% are ARM loahat are interest only. On our
hybrid ARMs, interest rate reset periods are predately five years or less and the interest-onlydiration period is typically 10 years,
which mitigates the “payment shock” at the timerérest rate reset. No loans in our investmentfglar of mortgage loans are option-ARMs
or ARMs with negative amortization.

Characteristics of Our Mortgage Loans Held in Secuitization Trusts and Retained Interest in Securitiation:

The following table sets forth the composition af tbans held in securitization trusts as of Deceng@i, 2007 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

# of Loans Par Value Carrying Value
Loan Characteristics:
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts 97z % 429,62¢ $ 430,71!
Retained interest in securitization (included imdstment securities available fc
sale) 391 209,45! 3,39¢
Total Loans Held 1,36 $ 639,08: $ 434,10¢
Average High Low
General Loan Characteristics:
Original Loan Balance $ 49C $ 3,50C $ 48
Current Coupon Rate 5.7<% 9.92% 4.0(%
Gross Margin 2.3%% 6.5(% 1.1%
Lifetime Cap 11.1%% 13.7%% 9.0(%
Original Term (Months) 36C 36C 36C
Remaining Term (Months) 33C 33¢ 29t

The following table sets forth the composition af tbans held in securitization trusts as of Deceindi, 2006 (dollar amounts in
thousands):



Loan Characteristics:

Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts
Mortgage loans held for investment

Total Loans Held

General Loan Characteristics:
Original Loan Balance
Current Coupon Rate

Gross Margin

Lifetime Cap

Original Term (Months)
Remaining Term (Months)

# of Loans Par Value Carrying Value

1,25¢ % 584,35¢ $ 588,16(

45¢ 249,62 23,93(

1,717 % 833,98 $ 612,09(

Average High Low

$ 501 $ 3,50 $ 25
5.671% 8.12% 3.88%
2.3% 6.5(% 1.15%
11.14% 13.7%% 9.0(%

36C 36C 36C

341 351 307
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Arm Loan Type

Traditional ARMs
2/1 Hybrid ARMs
3/1 Hybrid ARMs
5/1 Hybrid ARMs
7/1 Hybrid ARMs

Total

Percent of ARM loans that are Interest Only
Weighted average length of interest only period

Traditional ARMs - Periodic Caps

None
1%

Over 1%
Total

Hybrid ARMs- Initial Cap

3.00% or less
3.01%-4.00%
4.01%-5.00%
5.01%-6.00%

Total

FICO Scores

650 or less

651 to 700

701 to 750

751 to 800

801 and over

Total

Average FICO Score

Loan to Value (LTV)
50% or less
50.01%-60.00%
60.01%-70.00%
70.01%-80.00%
80.01% and over
Total

Average LTV

Property Type

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage

2.2% 2.9%

1.€% 3.8%

10.2% 16.8%

83.%% 74.5%

2.5% 2.C%

100.(% 100.(%

77.2% 75.%

8.3 year 8.0 year

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage
72.% 61.€%
1.4% 8.8%
25.1% 29.5%
100.(% 100.(%

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage
8.2% 14.£%
5.1% 7.5%
85.6% 76.€%
1.C% 1.1%
100.(% 100.(%

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage

3.8% 3.8%
17.(% 16.%
32.2% 34.(%
42.5% 41.5%
4.2% 3.8%
100.(% 100.(%

73€ 737

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage

9.5% 9.8%

8.6% 8.8%

27.2% 28.1%

52.2% 51.1%

2.1% 2.2%

100.(% 100.(%

69.7% 69.4%

December 31, 2007
Percentage

December 31, 2006
Percentage




Single Family
Condominium

Cooperative

Planned Unit Development
Two to Four Family

Total

51.2% 52.52%
22.8% 22.%
9.6% 8.8%
13.(% 13.(%
3.1% 3.C%
100.(% 100.(%
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Occupancy Status
Primary
Secondary
Investor

Total

Documentation Typ

Full Documentation

Stated Income

Stated Income/ Stated Assets
No Documentatiot

No Ratio

Total

Loan Purpose
Purchase

Cash out refinance
Rate & term refinance

Total

Geographic Distribution: 5% or more in any one séat

NY
MA
FL

CA
NJ
Other (less than 5% individually)

Total

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage
84.2% 85.5%
12.(% 10.7%
3.6% 4.C%
100.(% 100.(%

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage
72.(% 70.1%
19.7% 21.2%
6.8% 7.2%
1.C% 0.%
0.5% 0.5%
100.(% 100.(%

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage
57.8% 57.52%
15.%% 26.1%
26.2% 16.€%
100.(% 100.(%

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Percentage Percentage

31.2% 29.1%

17.4% 17.5%

8.2% 11.&%

%

7.2 7.5%

5.7% 5.1%

30.2% 29.4%

100.(% 100.(%
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The following table details loan summary informatior loans held in securitization trust at Decenti 2007 (all amounts in
thousands)

Principal
Amount of

Loans
Subject to
Periodic Delingent

Description Interest Rate Final Maturity ~ Payment Original ~ Current  Principal

Property Loan Term Prior Amount of Amount of or

Type Balance Count Max Min Avg Min Max (months) Liens Principal Principal Interest
Single <= $100,00( 17 8.3¢ 4.7¢ 6.0¢ 07/01/3: 11/01/3: 36C NA $ 3,50z $ 1,145 $ -
Family <= $250,00( 10€ 9.6c 4.5C 5.71 09/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 20,09 19,39: 24¢
<= $500,00( 174 8.0C 4.2¢ 5.7z 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 62,864 60,65¢ 50C
<=$1,000,00 8C 9.9t 4.3t 6.01 07/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 58,41« 56,16 2,43t
> $1,000,00( 41 7.9% 5.0C 5.8C 06/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 72,27¢ 71,60( -
Summary 42C 9.9t 4.2F 5.7¢ 09/01/3. 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 217,15:$ 208,95¢ $ 3,181
2-4 <= $100,00( 1 6.65 6.6 6.6 02/01/3¢ 02/01/3: 36C NA $ 80 $ 77 $ -
FAMILY <= $250,00( 7 6.7¢ 43¢ 57: 12/01/3: 11/01/3t 36C NA 1,36¢ 1,291 -
<= $500,00( 25 7.6 5.1: 6.0C 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 9,181 9,00¢ 662
<=$1,000,00 4 6.8t 478 5.6¢ 07/01/3¢ 10/01/3t 36C NA 3,06¢ 3,05: 517
>$1,000,00( 2 56 55C b55€ 12/01/3: 08/01/3t 36C NA 4,00¢ 4,00¢ -
Summary 38 7.65 4.3t 591 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 17,70:$ 17,43: $ 1,17¢
Condo <= $100,00( 20 7.1: 43¢ 5.7¢ 01/01/3t 12/01/3t 36C NA $ 3,52¢ $ 1,42¢ $ -
<= $250,00( 104 7.8¢ 4.2 5.6t 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 19,59 18,97¢ 23C
<= $500,00( 11€ 8.1: 4.0C 5.5¢ 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 42,14( 40,65 37¢
<=$1,000,00 47 7.8¢ 4.5( 5.5¢ 08/01/3: 11/01/3t 36C NA 35,75( 32,68: -
> $1,000,00( 16 7.7¢ 4.6 5.6 07/01/3: 09/01/3: 36C NA 25,72¢ 23,53¢ 1,14¢
Summary 30t 8.1 4.0C 5.61 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 126,73 $ 117,27t $ 1,75
CO-OP <= $100,00( 7 55C 4.7t 5.0¢ 09/01/3: 06/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 98¢ $ 444 $ -
<= $250,00( 29 7.6% 4.0C 55% 10/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 5,40¢ 5,10¢ -
<= $500,00( 56 7.6 4.2t 55: 08/01/3: 12/01/3* 36C NA 21,91¢ 20,501 -
<=$1,000,00 32 6.7¢ 47t 53t 11/01/3: 11/01/3t 36C NA 23,28. 22,46( -
> $1,000,00! 7 7.1: 48t 557 11/01/3:¢ 12/01/3* 36C NA 9,81« 9,60¢ -
Summary 131 7.7¢ 4.0C 5.4/ 08/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA $ 61,40¢$ 58,12( $ -
PUD <= $100,00¢ 1 5.6: 563 563 07/01/3% 07/01/3: 36C NA $ 10C $ 97 $ -
<= $250,00( 33 7.7% 4.0C 5.6¢ 07/01/3: 12/01/3¢ 36C NA 6,57¢ 5,97t -
<= $500,00( 3C 8.8t 4.6 6.50 08/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 11,017 10,42} 45t
<=$1,000,00 9 7.5C 4.7t 5.8< 09/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 6,19¢ 6,12( 854
> $1,000,00! 4 7.2z 5.6: 6.21 04/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 5,23: 5,227 1,34:
Summary 77 8.8t 4.0C 6.0 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 2912:$ 27,84. % 2,652
Summary <= $100,00( 46 8.3¢ 4.3¢ 5.7¢ 07/01/3¢ 12/01/3t 36C NA $ 8,19¢ $ 3,18¢ $ -
<= $250,00( 281 9.6 4.0C 5.6¢ 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 53,03t 50,74 47¢€
<= $500,00( 40z 8.8¢ 4.0 5.7z2 08/01/3. 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 147,12( 141,24¢ 1,99¢
<=$1,000,00 172 9.9 43¢ 5.7% 07/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 126,71( 120,47’ 3,80¢
> $1,000,00! 70 7.9 4.6 b5.7€¢ 04/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 117,06: 113,97: 2,49z
Grand Total 97z 9.9 4.0C 5.71 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 452,12:$ 429,62¢( $ 8,76¢

The following table details activity for loans hetdsecuritization trust for the year ended Decen®die 2007.

Net Carrying
Principal Premium Loan Reserve Value

Balance, January 1, 2007 $ 584,35¢ $ 3,802 $ 0 $ 588,16(

Additions - - - -
Principal repayments (154,729 - - (154,729



Reserve for loan loss - - (1,647 (1,647
Amortization for premium - (1,069 - (1,069

Balance, December 31, 2007 $ 429,62¢ $ 2,737 $ (1,647 $ 430,71!

45




Table of Contents
Delinquency Statu

As of December 31, 2007, we had 14 delinquent Idatading approximately $8.8 million categorizedMsrtgage Loans Held in
Securitization Trusts. In addition we had four RE©perties totaling approximately $4.1 million. Tiable below shows delinquencies in our
loan portfolio as of December 31, 2007 (dollar anteun thousands):

Number of Total % of
Days Late Delinquent Loans Dollar Amount Loan Portfolio
$
30-60 - - -
61-90 2 1,85¢ 0.4%
90+ 12 $ 6,91( 1.61%

As of December 31, 2006, we had six delinquentddataling $6.2 million categorized as Mortgage ho#leld in Securitization
Trusts. In addition we had approximately $0.6 milliof REO. The table below shows delinquenciesuiinl@an portfolio as of December 31,
2006 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Number of Total % of
Days Late Delinquent Loans Dollar Amount Loan Portfolio
30-60 1 $ 16€ 0.0%%
61-90 1 19¢ 0.02%
90+ 4 $ 5,81¢ 0.9%

Interest is recognized as revenue when earneddingdo the terms of the mortgage loans and whethe opinion of management, it
is collectible. The accrual of interest on loandigcontinued when, in management’s opinion, tier@st is not collectible in the normal course
of business, but in no case beyond when paymeatloan becomes 90 days delinquent. Interest cetlemth loans for which accrual has been
discontinued is recognized as income upon receipt.

Investment Securities - Available for Sal®©ur securities portfolio consists of Agency sedesior AAA-rated residential MBS. At
December 31, 2007, we had no investment secuiitiasingle issuer or entity, other than the Agescihat had an aggregate book value in
excess of 10% of our total assets. The followirgeta set forth the credit characteristics of owusiéies portfolio as of December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006:

Characteristics of Our Investment Securities (dollaamounts in thousands):

Sponsor or Par Carrying % of
December 31, 2007 Rating Value Value Portfolio Coupon Yield
Credit
Agency REMIC CMO %
Floating Rate FNMA/FHLMC/GNMA  $ 324,67t $ 318,68¢ 91% 5.9¢ 5.55%
Private Label Floating Rate AAA 29,76¢ 28,40: 8% 5.6€% 5.5(%
NYMT Retained Securitie AAA-BBB 2,16¢ 2,16¢ 1% 6.31% 6.2¢%
NYMT Retained Securitie Below Investment Grad: 2,75¢ 1,22¢ 0% 5.66% 12.9%
Total/Weighted Average $ 359,36! $ 350,48« 10Co, 5.950, 5.61%
Characteristics of Our Investment Securities (dollaamounts in thousands):
Sponsor or Par Carrying % of
December 31, 2006 Rating Value Value Portfolio Coupon Yield
Credit
Agency REMIC CMO
Floating Rate FNMA/FHLMC/GNMA  $ 163,12 $ 163,89¢ 34% 6.72% 6.4(%
Private Label Floating Rate AAA 22,39: 22,28¢ 5% 6.12% 6.4€%
Private Label ARMs AAA 287,01 284,87: 58% 4.82% 5.71%

NYMT Retained Securitie AAA-BBB 15,99¢ 15,89¢ 3% 5.671% 6.02%



NYMT Retained Securitie Below Investment Grad 2,761 2,01z 0% 5.67% 18.3:%
Total/Weighted Average $ 491,29: $ 488,96: 100% 5.54% 6.06%
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The following table sets forth the stated resetgolsrand weighted average yields of our investrsentirities at December 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006 (dollar amounts in thousands)

Less than More than 6 Months More than 24 Months
6 Months To 24 Months To 60 Months Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average
December 31, 2007 Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield
Agency REMIC CMO Floating Rate $ 318,68t 5.55%$ — —%$ — —%$ 318,68 5.55%
Private Label Floating Rate 28,40: 5.5(% — —% — —% 28,40! 5.5(%
NYMT Retained Securitie 2,16¢ 6.2% — —% 1,22¢ 12.9% 3,39¢ 10.0:%
Total/Weighted Average $ 349,25! 5.55%$ — —%$ 1,22¢ 12.9%%$ 350,48: 5.61%
Less than More than 6 Months More than 24 Months
6 Months To 24 Months To 60 Months Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average
December 31, 2006 Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield
Agency REMIC CMO Floating Rate $ 163,89¢ 6.4(%$ — — 3 — — $ 163,89 6.4(%
Private Label Floating Rate 22,28¢ 6.46% — — — — 22,28¢ 6.4€%
Private Label ARMs 16,67 5.6(% 78,56¢ 5.8(% 183,61: 5.64% 278,85( 5.68%
NYMT Retained Securities 6,024 7.1:% — — 17,90¢ 7.82% 23,93( 7.66%
Total/Weighted Average $ 208,87¢ 6.371%$ 78,56 5.8(%$ 201,51¢ 5.82%$ 488,96 6.0€%

Non Investment Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent®Ve had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.bfr8llion at December 31, 2007.

Restricted CashRestricted cash totaled $7.5 million as of Decen®1er2007. Included in restricted cash were $4lianirelated to
amounts deposited to meet margin calls on inteatstswaps, $2.3 million in escrow related to thdymac transaction and $0.5 million related
to deposits for leased spaces.

Prepaid and Other AssetsPrepaid and other assets totaled $2.2 milliorf &ecember 31, 2007. Prepaid and other assetsstonsi
mainly of $1.3 million of capitalization expensetated to equity and bond issuance cost. Thess aostbeing amortized into earnings over
time related to the maturity of the underlying &sce. In addition, $0.3 million of capitalizatioargicing costs related to our fourth
securitization accounted for a sale during 2006.

Balance Sheet Analysis - Financing Arrangements

47




Table of Content

Financing Arrangements, Portfolio InvestmentsAs of December 31, 2007, there were approximat85% million of repurcha:
borrowings outstanding. Our repurchase agreemgptisally have terms of 30 days. As of December Z1]7, the current weighted aver
borrowing rate on these financing facilities is23&

Collateralized Debt Obligations There were no new securitization transactions ateoufor as a financing during 2007. As
December 31, 2007 we have CDO, outstanding of apedely $417.0 million with an average intereseraf 5.25%.

Subordinated DebenturesAs of December 31, 2007, we have trust preferredritees outstanding of $45.0 million. The secestar
fully guaranteed by the Company with respect terithistions and amounts payable upon liquidatiodereption or repayment. These secur
are classified as subordinated debentures indhdity section of the Company’s consolidated baésheet.

$25.0 million of our subordinated debentures hafleating interest rate equal to threresnth LIBOR plus 3.75%, resetting quarte
(8.68% at December 31, 2007). These securitiesrmatu March 15, 2035 and may be called at par byCtbmpany any time after March
2010. HC entered into an interest rate cap agreetodimit the maximum interest rate cost of thestrpreferred securities to 7.5%. The teri
the interest rate cap agreement is five years esets quarterly in conjunction with the reset migiof the trust preferred securities.

$20 million of our subordinated debentures havixedfinterest rate equal to 8.35% up to and inclgdiuly 30, 2010, at which po
the interest rate is converted to a floating rafeat to onemonth LIBOR plus 3.95% until maturity. The secwd#timature on October 30, 2(
and may be called at par by the Company any tinge &fctober 30, 2010.

Derivative Assets and Liabilities We generally hedge only the risk related to charigethe benchmark interest rate used in
variable rate index, usually a London Interbanke@tl Rate (“LIBOR”), or a U.S. Treasury rate.

In order to reduce these risks, we enter into @gerate swap agreements whereby we receive ftpadite payments in exchange
fixed rate payments, effectively converting therbaing to a fixed rate. We also enter into intemegé cap agreements whereby, in exch
for a fee, we are reimbursed for interest paidxitess of a contractually specified capped rate.

Derivative financial instruments contain credikrie the extent that the institutional countergartinay be unable to meet the terrr
the agreements. We minimize this risk by using iplétcounterparties and limiting our counterparti@snajor financial institutions with go
credit ratings. In addition, we regularly monitbetpotential risk of loss with any one party rasgltfrom this type of credit risk. According
we do not expect any material losses as a resdifaiult by other parties, but can not guarantydav@ot have counterparty failures.

We enter into derivative transactions solely f@krinanagement purposes. The decision of whetheota given transaction, o
portion thereof, is hedged is made on a casedsg basis, based on the risks involved and otftéors as determined by senior managet
including the financial impact on income and asgdtiation and the restrictions imposed on REIT lagl@ctivities by the Internal Rever
Code, among others. In determining whether to hedgsk, we may consider whether other assetdlitiab, firm commitments and anticipa
transactions already offset or reduce the risk. tilhsactions undertaken as a hedge are enteredvitit a view towards minimizing tl
potential for economic losses that could be inaiby us. Generally, all derivatives entered in® iatended to qualify as hedges in accord
with GAAP, unless specifically precluded under SFR8. 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments adddging Activities. To this en
terms of the hedges are matched closely to thestefrhedged items.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falue of derivative assets and liabilities as of &@eber 31, 2007 and December
2006 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006

Derivative Assets:
Interest rate caps $ 41 $ 2,011
Interest rate swaps — 621
Total derivative assets $ 41€ $ 2,632
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 3517 $ —
Total derivative liabilities $ 3517 $ —

Balance Sheet Analysis - Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2007 was $a8lbn and included $2.0 million of net unrealizosses related to cash flow
hedges presented as accumulated other comprehémsivee.
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Prepayment Experience

The cumulative prepayment rate (“CPR”) on our magggloan portfolio averaged approximately 19% du#607 as compared to
19% during 2006. CPRs on our purchased portfolimedéstment securities averaged approximately 12#evthe CPRs on loans held for
investment or held in our securitization trustsraged approximately 24% during 2007. When prepayrepectations over the remaining life
of assets increase, we have to amortize premiumsaghorter time period resulting in a reducettyie maturity on our investment assets.
Conversely, if prepayment expectations decreaseyitamium would be amortized over a longer pergsiiiting in a higher yield to maturity.
We monitor our prepayment experience on a montagidand adjust the amortization of our net premsiaotordingly.

50




Table of Content
Results of Operations

The operating results for our mortgage portfolicagement business during a given period typicafilect the net interest spread
earned on our investment portfolio of residentiaktgage securities and loans. The net interesaddseimpacted by factors such as our cost of
financing, the interest rate our investments araieg and our interest hedging strategies. Furtbeenthe cost of loans held in our portfolio,
the amount of premium or discount paid on purchasetfolio investments and the prepayment rateparitfolio investments will impact the
net interest spread as such factors will be anegttver the expected term of such investments.

Results of Operations - Comparison of Years Ended &ember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Net Income- Overview
Comparative Net Income

(dollar amounts in thousanc For the Years Ended December 3]
2007 2006 % Change 2005 % Change

Net interest incom $ 477 $ 4,78¢ (90.0% $ 12,87: (62.8%
Total expense $ 2,75¢ % 2,032 35.5% $ 4,31¢ (52.9%
(Loss) income for continuing operatio $ (20,79() $ 2,16¢ (1,059.9% $ 3,322 (34.9%
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (34,479 $ (17,199 (100.5% $ (8,667) 98.5%
Net loss $ (55,26¢) $ (15,037 (267.9% $ (5,340 181.5%
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (15.29) $ (4.17) (265.9% $ (1.49) 179.%

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we repomed lass of $55.3 million, as compared to a ngs lof $15.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in net fd&4003 was due to the following factors: an $1®ilion charge to reserve 100% of the
deferred tax asset, a decrease in net interesimair§4.3 million, an $8.5 million non cash impakent related to the investment portfolio, an
increase of $7.8 million related to losses on sélgecurities and hedges and an increase in lemesoof $1.6 million related to loans held in

securitization trust.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we repomed lass of $15.0 million, as compared to a nss lof $5.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005. The increase in net f&$. 0 was due to the following factors: a decrdageet interest margin of $8.1 million, an
increase of $8.5 million related discontinued magtg lending business and a decrease in loss ohgilligh related to losses from sale of

securities and related hedges.
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Revenue

Comparative Net Interest Income

For the years ended December 3:

(dollar amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Amount Rate Balance Amount Rate Balance Amount Rate
($ Millions) ($ Millions) ($ Millions)
Interest Income:
Investment securities and loans held in
securitization trusts $ 907.C 52,18( 5700 % 1,266.- $66,97: 52%$ 1,347.: $60,98¢ 4.52%
Loans held for investment — — —% — — —% 145.7 7,77¢ 5.32%
Amortization of net premium 24 (1,616 (0.1&% 5.8 (2,097 (0.16% 14.7 $ (6,04]) (0.42)%
Interest income $ 909.2 50,56¢ 556% $ 1,272.: $64,88: 51% $ 1,507.¢ $62,72¢ 4.16%
Interest Expense:
Investment securities and loans held in
securitization trusts $ 864.7 46,52¢ 531% $ 1,201.; $56,55: 4686$% 1,283.0 $42,00: 3.25%
Loans held for investment — — — — — —% 142.7 5,84 4.0%
%
Subordinated debentures 45.C 3,55¢ 7.8C 45.C 3,54« 7.71% 26.€ 2,00 7.52%
Interest expense $ 909.7 50,087 549% $ 1,246.. $60,09° 476% $ 1,452.¢ $49,85: 3.3%
Net interest incom $ (0.9) 477 0.1% $ 26.13$ 4,78¢ 0.3% $ 55.2 $12,87: 0.77%

For our portfolio investments of investment sedesitmortgage loans held for investments and Ibaldin securitization trusts, our
net interest spread for each quarter since we begiaportfolio investment activities follows:

Weighted
Average Yield
on
Average Interes Weighted Interest
Earning Assets Average Earning Cost of Net Interest

As of the Quarter Ended ($ millions) Coupon Assets Funds Spread

December 31, 2007 $ 799.2 5.9(% 5.7% 5.32% 0.4€%
September 30, 2007 $ 865.7 5.92% 5.72% 5.3¢% 0.34%
June 30, 2007 $ 948.¢ 5.6€% 5.55% 5.4% 0.12%
March 31, 2007 $ 1,022.° 5.5% 5.3% 5.3%% 0.02%
December 31, 2006 $ 1,111.( 5.5% 5.352% 5.2% 0.0¢%
September 30, 2006 $ 1,287.¢ 5.5(% 5.2&% 5.12% 0.1%
June 30, 2006 $ 1,217.¢ 5.2% 5.08% 4.3(% 0.7¢%
March 31, 2006 $ 1,478.¢ 4.85% 4.7%% 4.02% 0.71%
December 31, 2005 $ 1,499.( 4.84% 4.4% 3.81% 0.62%
September 30, 2005 $ 1,494.( 4.65% 4.08% 3.3% 0.7%
June 30, 2005 $ 1,590.( 4.5(% 4.06% 3.06% 1.00%
March 31, 2005 $ 1,447.¢ 4.3%% 4.01% 2.86% 1.15%
December 31, 2004 $ 1,325.° 4.2% 3.84% 2.5&8% 1.2€%
September 30, 2004 $ 776.5 4.04% 3.8€% 2.4%% 1.41%
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Comparative Expenses

(dollar amounts in thousanc For the Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 % Change 2005 % Change

Salaries and benefi $ 86t $ 714 21.1% $ 1,93¢ (63.2)%
Marketing and promotio 14t 78 85.9% 124 (37.)%
Data processing and communicatit 194 23C (15.7)% 14¢ 54.2%
Professional fee 612 59¢ 2.3% 853 (29.9%
Depreciation and amortizatic 32t 27€ 17.8% 171 61.42%
Other 613 13€ 350.7% 1,08 (87.5%

$ 2,75¢ $ 2,032 35.5% $ 4,31¢ (52.9%

The 21.1% increase in salaries from December 316 2@as primarily due to an increase in payroll@lions from the discontinued
operations to the continuing operations. The $0lkom increase in other expenses was due to thesarse in premiums for directors’ and
officers ' insurance as well as a greater allasatf directors’ and officers ' insurance costsite continuing operations. On going expenses
will be reduced significantly as the Company hahefull time employees as it has fully transitidrte a passive REIT strategy.

The decrease in total expenses of $2.3 million fteenyear ended December 31, 2005 to Decembel0B5, ®as due mainly to a
severance payment made to a senior executive.

It should be noted that certain expenses are shgréte Company and are included as a discontiopedation for this presentation.

Discontinued Operations
For the Year Ended December 31

2007 2006 % Change 2005 % Change

Revenues:

Net interest incom $ 1,07C $ 3,62 (69.€)%3% 4,49¢ (21.79)%
Gain on sale of mortgage loa 2,561 17,981 (85.9)% 26,78 (32.9%
Loan losse! (8,879 (8,229 7.€% — (2100%
Brokered loan fee 2,31¢ 10,931 (78.9% 9,991 9.5%
Gain on sale of retail lending segmi 4,36¢ — — — —
Other income (expens (67) (294) (77.2% 231 (227.9%
Total net revenue 1,37¢ 23,92¢ (94.2)% 41,50/ (42.9%
Expenses:

Salaries, commissions and bene 7,20¢ 21,717 (66.€)% 29,04¢ (25.9%
Brokered loan expens 1,731 8,271 (79.1% 7,54 9.7%
Occupancy and equipme 1,81¢ 5,077 (64.2)% 6,07¢ (16.9%
General and administratiy 6,74 14,55 (53. )% 16,05 (9.9%
Total expense 17,50: 49,611 (64.7)% 58,71¢ (15.5%
Loss before inomce tax benefi (16,12¢) (25,69)) (37.29% (17,21 49.2%
Income tax (provision) benei (18,357) 8,49/ (316.2)% 8,54¢ (0.6)%
Loss from discontinued operations— net of tax $ (34,479 $ (17,19) (100.5)%$ (8,662 08.50%
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Since inception, we have not maintained any ratatigps with unconsolidated entities or financiatiparships, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special pugodities, established for the purpose of fatititaoff-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furthveg, have not guaranteed any obligations of uncodatd entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sectities. Accordingly, we are not materially expddo any market, credit, liquidity or
financing risk that could arise if we had engageduch relationships.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committe¢a repay borrowings, fund
and maintain investments, fund our operations,digiglends to our stockholders and other generahless needs. We recognize the need to
have funds available for our operating businesedsmeet these potential cash requirements. Ousimants and assets generate liquidity on
an ongoing basis through mortgage principal arerést payments, prepayments and net earnings fietdgpayment of dividends. In
addition, depending on market conditions, capitatkat transactions may provide additional liquiditye intend to meet our liquidity needs
through normal operations with the goal of avoidimgplanned sales of assets or emergency borroviiignds. However, in March 2008ews
of potential security liquidations by certain ofrmompetitors negatively impacted the market valueertain of the investment securities in
portfolio. In connection with this market disrugtiand the anticipated increase in collateral reguoénts by our lenders as a result of such
decrease in the market value of such securitiegleaed to increase our liquidity by reducing werage through the sale of an aggregate of
approximately $598.9 million of Agency MBS, whiobsulted in an aggregate loss of approximately $aillfon including losses related to 1
termination of interest rate swaps. As of the dditihis report, we believe our existing cash batanéunds available under our current
repurchase agreements and cash flows from opesatirmeet our liquidity requirements for at ledis¢ next 12 months, absent any
significant decline in financing availibility orgmificant increase in cost to obtain financing.Ddicember 31, 2007, we had cash balances of
$5.5 million and borrowings of $315.7 million undartstanding repurchase agreements. At Decemb@08Y, we also had longésrm capite
resources from CDOs outstanding of $417.0 milliod rom subordinated debt of $45.0 million. Howewdtould further volatility and
deterioration in the broader residential mortgage MBS markets occur in the future, we cannot &sgau that our existing sources of
liquidity will be sufficient to meet our liquidityequirements during the next 12 months.

We had outstanding repurchase agreements, a fooallateralized shorterm borrowing, with four different financial ingttions as ¢
December 31, 2007. These agreements are secumd byortgage-backed securities and bear intertest that have historically moved in
close relationship to LIBOR. Our borrowings undgpurchase agreements are based on the fair vatue afortgage backed securities
portfolio. See “ Market (Fair Value) Risk " undiéem 7A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Intereate changes can have a negative
impact on the valuation of these securities, rauythe amount we can borrow under these agreemedts.repurchase agreements allow the
counterparties, to varying degrees, to determinevamarket value of the collateral to reflect catmmarket conditions. If a counterparty
determines that the value of the collateral hasedsed, whether as a result of interest rate clsangacern regarding the fair value of our
mortgage-backed securities portfolio, or otheriligfy concerns in the credit markets , it may &g a margin call and require us to either post
additional collateral to cover such decrease aayepportion of the outstanding borrowing, on miaimotice. Moreover because these lines of
financing are not committed, the counterparty calhtbe loan at any time. In the event a counteypalected to not reset the outstanding
balance at its maturity into a new repurchase agee¢, we would be required to repay the outstandaignce with proceeds received from a
new counterparty or to surrender the mortgage-lwhskeurities that serve as collateral for the antiihg balance. If we are unable to secure
financing from another counterparty and surrendercollateral, we would expect to incur a significkoss. External disruptions to credit
markets might also impair access to additionalidity.

During and subsequent to the month of August, 268@¥ availability of short-term collateralized bmaing through repurchase
agreements worsened considerably, primarily asualtref the fall-out from increasing defaults iretbub-prime mortgage market and losses
incurred at a number of larger companies in thetgage industry. At December 31, 2007, we had apmately $315.7 million of outstanding
borrowings under repurchase agreements with fdterdnt counterparties. More recently, in March 08ews of potential security
liquidations by certain of our competitors negdtnienpacted the market value of certain of the stweent securities in our portfolio. As noted
above,in connection with this market disruption and tiéicpated increase in collateral requirements biylenders, we elected to increase
liquidity by reducing our leverage through the saldgency MBS from our portfolio. Because we lidated these investment securities at
prices lower than the amortized costs of such itnvest securities, we incurred a loss. As a redutiese actions, a s of the date of this Annual
Report, we have been successful at resetting ttanding balances under our various repurchaseagmts as they have become due. As of
March 31, 2008, we had approximately $6.5 milliorcash and $30.0 million in unencumbered secariieneet margin calls.

In addition, in response to the March 2008 mark&tgtion, investors and financial institutionsttiend in the mortgage securities
repurchase market, including the lenders underepurchase agreements, have further tightenedngraéandards in an effort to reduce the
leverage of their borrowers. While the haircut iieegh by our lenders increased in 2007, primarilynonAgency MBS, during March 2008, \
have experienced further increases in the amoumdiofut required to obtain financing for both dwgency MBS and non-Agency MBS. As of



March 31, 2008, our MBS securities portfolio cotesisof approximately of $475.9 million of Agency MEand $31.1 of non-Agency MBS,
which was financed with approximately $431.7 milliof repurchase agreement borrowing with an avelnageut of 9%. If the haircuts
required by our lenders continue to increase, oafitpbility and liquidity will be materially adveely affected.

Commencing the week of March 17, 2008, the Fedeeakrve took actions that are designed to suppembrtgage securities market
by providing additional financing to both banks grimary broker dealers. Additionally, actions taksy regulators to allow Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac and the Federal Home Loan Banks torekfieeir holdings of Agency MBS have provided fertisupport to the market. Althou
we presently expect these actions to improve tbet-gbrm collateralized borrowing markets, we caragsure you that this form of financing
will be available to us in the future on comparaielens, if at all.
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To finance our MBS investment portfolio, we genlgrakek to borrow between eight and 12 times thewsrnof our equity. At
December 31, 2007 our leverage ratio for our MB&atment portfolio, which we define as our outstagdndebtedness under repurchase
agreements divided by total stockholdexguity, was 17.1 to one. This definition of thedeage ratio is consistent with the manner in witine
credit providers under our repurchase agreemeatledé our leverage. The Company also has $45omitif subordinated trust preferred
securities outstanding and $417.0 million of celfatized debt obligations outstanding both of whacé not dependent on market values of
pledged securities or changing credit conditionsliylenders. As of March 31, 2008 our estimatedrage ratio was 7.2 to 1 for our MBS
investment portfolio.

We enter into interest rate swap agreements toesttee maturity of our repurchase agreements aschamism to reduce the interest
rate risk of the securities portfolio. At DecemB&r 2007 we had $220.0 million in interest rate psvautstanding with two different financial
institutions. Should market rates for similar tanterest rate swaps drop below the rates we haegezhinto on our interest rate swaps, we
be required to post additional margin to the swaynterparty, reducing available liquidity. Typigalthe value of our MBS would increase in a
declining interest rate environment, offsetting ¢henge in value of the interest rate swaps. Dutiegsecond half of 2007 the market
experienced a dislocation in this relationship puiity due to the credit crisis in the mortgage nedsk This created a flight to quality by
investors that caused our interest rate swap valsiegell as our MBS valuations to decrease. Thglwed average maturity of the swaps was
469 days at December 31, 2007. Concurrent withsaler of Agency MBS during March 2008, we sold agpnately $290 million in interest
rate swaps. As of March 31, 2008 we had approxin&E58 million in interest rate swaps outstanding.

As of December 31, 2007 the approximate $430.7anilbf loans we have held in securitization trdsige been permanently financ
by our issuance of approximately $417.0 milliorCaflateralized Debt Obligations (“CDQ”). The differce between these two amounts,
approximately $13.7 million, is the equity we hdesl up in our loans held in securitization trustisd represents the maximum amount of our
investment in the loans.

On January 18, 2008, we issued 1.0 million shafesioSeries A Cumulative Redeemable ConvertibkfdPred Stock, which we ref
to as our Series A Preferred Shares, to JMP Gilagpand certain of its affiliates for an aggregatechase price of $20.0 million.The interest
rate on the preferred is the higher of 10% or tiw@ldnd rate of our common shares and is payab&eqsarterly dividend to preferred
shareholders. The conversion price is $4.00 paesha

On February 21, 2008, we completed the issuancaaedf 15.0 million shares of our common stockedain accredited investors
(as such term is defined in Rule 501 of Regulalioof the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ouBies Act) at a price of $4.00 per share.
This private offering of our common stock generatetiproceeds to us of approximately $57.0 miladter payment of private placement fees,
but before expenses. The net proceeds from bdtiesé private offerings were used to purchase greggte of approximately $712.4 of
Agency hybrid MBS in January and February 2008 .sEtecquisitions were financed in part with repusehagreements, and hedged with
interest rate swaps. Pursuant to a registratidrigiggreement between the Company and investthgsiprivate offering, the Company is
required to pay liquidated damages, subject to @aivpon the occurrence of certain events. Seerfdgement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —€Ré&vents. The payment of any liquidated damages would résudtreduction in our ca
position.

Our ability to sell the approximate $8.0 millioretrof loan loss reserve, of mortgage loans we avutdcadversely affect our
profitibility as any sale for less than the curresgerved balance would result in a loss. Curreghtge loans are not financed or pledged.
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As it relates to loans sold previously under cartaan sale agreements by our discontinued mortgengiing business, we may be
required to repurchase some of those loans or indgrthe loan purchaser for damages caused bybtieatch in the loan sale agreement. While
in the past we complied with the repurchase demhbgdspurchasing the loan with cash and reselliag & loss, thus reducing our cash
position; more recently we have addressed theseests by negotiation of a net cash settlement bas¢lde actual or assumed loss on the loan
in lieu of repurchasing the loans.

During 2007 we repurchased a total of approximasély million of loans as compared to a total giragimately $28.9 million in
2006. In addition, we settled $20.8 million in reghase requests during 2007. During the quarteecBecember 31, 2007 we repurchasec
loan with a balance of approximately $0.2 millias,compared to no loans for the quarter endingeSeptr 30, 2007. As of December 31, 2
the amount of repurchase requests outstanding pasx@mately $4.4 million, against which we hacdeaerve of approximately $0.5 million.
We cannot assure you that we will be successfséitling the remaining repurchase demands on faletarms, or at all. If the we are unable
to continue to resolve our current repurchase desitirough negotiated net cash settlements, auidity could be adversely affected. In
addition, we may be subject to new repurchase stgdimm investors with whom we have not settledithh respect to repurchase obligations
not covered under the settlement.

Beginning in July 2007, our board of directors &#edo suspend the payment of quarterly dividend®tders of our common stock
and, as of the date of this Annual Report, haso/etinstate a quarterly dividend. Our board oédiors’ decision continues to reflect our
company'’s focus on elimination of operating lossdated to the discontinued mortgage lending bissingth a view to conserving capital to
build future earnings from our portfolio managemepérations. Our board of directors will continoest/aluate our dividend policy each
guarter and will make adjustments as necessarggdhas a variety of factors, including, among otémngs, the need to maintain our REIT
status, our financial condition, liquidity, earngngrojections and business prospects. Our divigefidy does not constitute an obligation to
pay dividends, which only occurs when the boardigctors declares a dividend. During the year dridecember 31, 2007, we distributed
approximately $1.8 million in common stock dividend

We intend to make distributions to our stockholdersomply with the various requirements to maimtair REIT status and to
minimize or avoid corporate income tax and the maoluttible excise tax. However, differences in tigniretween the recognition of REIT
taxable income and the actual receipt of cash ceagdire us to sell assets or to borrow funds shaat-term basis to meet the REIT
distribution requirements and to avoid corporat®ine tax and the nondeductible excise tax.

Certain of our assets may generate substantial atitras between REIT taxable income and availalsle. dehese assets could inclt
mortgage-backed securities we hold that have esered at a discount and require the accrual obtexiacome in advance of the receipt of
cash. As a result, our REIT taxable income may edtarir cash available for distribution and the nemment to distribute a substantial portion
of our net taxable income could cause us to:

« sell assets in adverse market conditions;
¢ borrow on unfavorable terms;

« distribute amounts that would otherwise be investeassets or repayment of debt, in order to comyilly the REIT distribution
requirements.

Inflation

For the periods presented herein, inflation has bekatively low and we believe that inflation hrast had a material effect on our
results of operations. The impact of inflation igarily reflected in the increased costs of ouergpions. Virtually all our assets and liabilities
are financial in nature. Our consolidated finanstatements and corresponding notes thereto haregrepared in accordance with GAAP,
which require the measurement of financial posidod operating results in terms of historical dsllaithout considering the changes in the
relative purchasing power of money over time dumfiation. As a result, interest rates and otlatdrs influence our performance far more
than inflation. Inflation affects our operationsmparily through its effect on interest rates, sintterest rates typically increase during periot
high inflation and decrease during periods of laflation. During periods of increasing interesesatdemand for mortgages and a borrower’s
ability to qualify for mortgage financing in a ptiase transaction may be adversely affected. Dy@nipds of decreasing interest rates,
borrowers may prepay their mortgages, which in tnay adversely affect our yield and subsequengywtidue of our portfolio of mortgage
assets.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company had the following contractual obligasigexcluding derivative financial instrumentspetcember 31, 2007:



($ in thousands

Operating lease

Repurchase agreemei
Collateralized debt oblidgations (1)(
Subordinated debentures

Interest rate sway

Employment agreements (

Less than 1

Total year 1to 3 years 4to5years  after 5 years
7328 $ 252 $ 4,80t $ 1$ =
317,03: 317,03: - - -
488,28( 94,66 167,24. 123,64 102,72¢
151,55! 3,60« 7,39t 7,80z 132,75:
2,06( 72€ 1,13¢ 20C -
2,45¢ 86¢ 1,591 - -
968,71 $ 419,41! $ 182,16° $ 131,65. $ 235,48(
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(1)  Amounts include interest paid during the periodetest based on interest rates in effect on DeceB8ihe007.

(2)  Maturities of our CDOs are dependent upon cashdlmeeived from the underlying loans receivable: €timate of their repayment is
based on scheduled principal payments on the widgtioans receivable. This estimate will diffeorin actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experienced.

(3) Represents base cash compensation of the Comp&uoyCGhief Executive Officers, David A. Akre ance®n R. Mumma.

Amounts due under our advisory agreement with IMRA&& below) are not included in the table abowabse the amounts are not fixed and
determinable.

Advisory Agreemen
On January 18, 2008, we entered into an advisaeagent with IMPAM, pursuant to which IMPAM wilhask, manage and make
investments on behalf of two of our wholly-ownedbsidiaries. Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, AMRs entitled to receive the

following compensation:

« base advisory fee equal to 1.50% per annum ofebaity capital” (as defined in Item 1 of this Anh&eport) of the Managed
Subsidiaries is payable by us to JIMPAM in cashrtguly in arrears; and

» incentive compensation equal to 25% of the GAAPima@me of the Managed Subsidiaries attributabkéoinvestments that are
managed by JMPAM that exceed a hurdle rate equhaktgreater of (a) 8.00% and (b) 2.00% plus they&ar treasury rate for
such fiscal year will be payable by us to IMPAM&sh, quarterly in arreanstovided, howevethat a portion of the incentive
compensation may be paid in shares of our comnumk st
If we terminate the advisory agreement (other floarcause) or elect not to renew it, we will beuiegd to pay IMPAM a cash
termination fee equal to the sum of (i) the averaigreual base advisory fee and (ii) the averageanncentive compensation earned during
24-month period immediately preceding the dateeohtnation.
Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We seek to manage our risks related to interess rliquidity, prepayment speeds, credit qualitpwf assets and the market value
while, at the same time, seeking to provide an dppdy to stockholders to realize attractive tatturns through ownership of our capital
stock. While we do not seek to avoid risk, we seelassume risk that can be quantified from histréxperience, and actively manage such

risk; earn sufficient returns to justify the takinfisuch risks; and maintain capital levels coesistvith the risks that we undertake.

We are not subject to foreign currency exchangause we are invested solely in U.S. dollar denotathanstruments, primarily
residential mortgage assets, and our borrowingalacedomestic and U.S. dollar denominated risk.

Management recognizes the following primary risksogiated with our business and the industry irctviaie conduct business:

. Interest rate risk
. Liquidity risk

. Prepayment risk
. Credit risk

. Market (fair value) risk

Interest Rate Risl

Interest rates are sensitive to many factors, diolyigovernmental, monetary, tax policies, domestid international economic
conditions, and political or regulatory matters dweg our control. Changes in interest rates affeetvalue of our MBS and ARM loans we
manage and hold in our investment portfolio, thealde-rate borrowings we use to finance our pdidfand the interest rate swaps and caps
we use to hedge our portfolio. All of our portfolitterest market risk sensitive assets, liabiliiad related derivative positions are managed
with a long term perspective and are not for trgginrposes.
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Interest rate risk is measured by the sensitivityur current and future earnings to interest vatatility, variability of spread
relationships, the difference in re-pricing intds/aetween our assets and liabilities and the effext interest rates may have on our cash flows,
especially the speed at which prepayments occouonesidential mortgage related assets. Changageirest rates can affect our net interest
income, which is the difference between the intdreome earned on assets and our interest exjrnsgeed in connection with our
borrowings.

Our CMO floater assets have interest rates thasadjonthly, at a margin over LIBOR, as do the repase agreement liabilities that
we use to finance those CMO assets.

Our adjustable-rate hybrid ARM assets reset orouardates that are not matched to the reset datesraepurchase agreements. In
general, the repricing of our repurchase agreenumsrs more quickly than the repricing of our ésdeirst, our floating rate borrowings may
react to changes in interest rates before our tatjlesrate assets because the weighted averageengriting dates on the related borrowings
may have shorter time periods than that of thestaple rate assets. Second, interest rates ontaulpisate assets may be limited to a “periodic
cap”or an increase of typically 1% or 2% per adjustnpartod, while our borrowings do not have compaegdiohitations. Third, our adjustak
rate assets typically lag changes in the applicaibdeest rate indices by 45 days due to the ngigsed provided to adjustable rate borrowers
when the interest rates on their loans are schddalehange.

We seek to manage interest rate risk in the pdotfo} utilizing interest rate swaps, caps and Ealled futures, with the goal of
optimizing the earnings potential while seekingraintain long term stable portfolio values. We ammally monitor the duration of our
mortgage assets and have a policy to hedge theciimgsuch that the net duration of the assetsbotrowed funds related to such assets, and
related hedging instruments, are less than one year

Interest rates can also affect our net return dmilyARM securities and loans net of the cost péficing hybrid ARMs. We
continually monitor and estimate the duration of leybrid ARMs and have a policy to hedge the finagof the hybrid ARMs such that the
net duration of the hybrid ARMs, our borrowed fumdkated to such assets, and related hedging imstits are less than one year. During a
declining interest rate environment, the prepaynoéhiybrid ARMs may accelerate (as borrowers maytopefinance at a lower rate) causing
the amount of liabilities that have been extendgthk use of interest rate swaps to increase vel&ti the amount of hybrid ARMs, possibly
resulting in a decline in our net return on hybAlRMs as replacement hybrid ARMs may have a loweldyihan those being prepaid.
Conversely, during an increasing interest raterenvinent, hybrid ARMs may prepay slower than expiatequiring us to finance a higher
amount of hybrid ARMs than originally forecast aatca time when interest rates may be higher, rieguih a decline in our net return on hyt
ARMSs. Our exposure to changes in the prepaymemdspehybrid ARMs is mitigated by regular monitayiof the outstanding balance of
hybrid ARMs, and adjusting the amounts anticipdtelde outstanding in future periods and, on a @guhsis, making adjustments to the
amount of our fixed-rate borrowing obligations foture periods.
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We utilize a model based risk analysis system stsam projecting portfolio performances over argrio of different interest rates.
The model incorporates shifts in interest rateanges in prepayments and other factors impactiegatluations of our financial securities,
including mortgage-backed securities, repurchaseeagents, interest rate swaps and interest rate cap

Based on the results of the model, as of Decemhbe2@7, changes in interest rates would havealh@iing effect on net interest
income: (Amounts in thousands)

Changes in Net Interest Income

Changes in Interest Rates Changes in Net Interest Income
+200 $ 3,195
+100 $ 603
-100 $ 336

Interest rate changes may also impact our net bahle as our mortgage assets and related hedgatiles are marked-to-market
each quarter. Generally, as interest rates incréasealue of our mortgage assets decreases antbeest rates decrease, the value of such
investments will increase. In general, we wouldextghowever that, over time, decreases in vallmipportfolio attributable to interest rate
changes will be offset, to the degree we are hedmethcreases in value of our interest rate swapd,vice versa. However, the relationship
between spreads on securities and spreads on swegpgary from time to time, resulting in a net aggate book value increase or decline.
However, unless there is a material impairmentailue that would result in a payment not being netion a security or loan, changes in the
book value of our portfolio will not directly affeour recurring earnings or our ability to makeigtribution to our stockholders.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtehcash requirements, including ongoing committada repay borrowings, fund
and maintain investments, pay dividends to ourldtollers and other general business needs. Wernizeotine need to have funds available to

operate our business. It is our policy to have adagliquidity at all times. We plan to meet ligitydhrough normal operations with the goal of
avoiding unplanned sales of assets or emergencgwing of funds.
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Our principal sources of liquidity are the repuredagreements on our MBS, the CDOs we have issu@thnhce our loans held in
securitization trust, the principal and interestrpants from mortgage assets and cash proceed fromduance of equity securities. We bel
our existing cash balances and cash flows fromatjpers will be sufficient for our liquidity requineents for at least the next 12 months.

As it relates to our investment portfolio, derivatifinancial instruments we use to hedge interst nisk subject us to “margin call”
risk. If the value of our pledged assets decredise to change in interest rates, credit charatitjor other pricing factors, we may be reqt
to post additional cash or asset collateral, oucedhe amount we are able to borrower versusdteeral. Under our interest rate swaps
typically we pay a fixed rate to the counterpartidsle they pay us a floating rate. If interesesatirop below the rate we are paying on an
interest rate swap, we may be required to post washin.

Prepayment Risl

When borrowers repay the principal on their moregkogans before maturity or faster than their schestiamortization, the effect is to
shorten the period over which interest is earnad,therefore, reduce the yield for mortgage agaetshased at a premium to their then current
balance, as with the majority of our assets. Ca®lgr mortgage assets purchased for less thantltegircurrent balance exhibit higher yields
due to faster prepayments. Furthermore, prepayspaeds exceeding or lower than our modeled prepayspeeds impact the effectivenes
any hedges we have in place to mitigate financimfa fair value risk. Generally, when market ietgrrates decline, borrowers have a
tendency to refinance their mortgages, therebyeaging prepayments.

Our prepayment model will help determine the amadittedging we use to off-set changes in interastsr. If actual prepayment rates
are higher than modeled, the yield will be lessitheodeled in cases where we paid a premium fopdincular mortgage asset. Conversely,
when we have paid a premium, if actual prepaymatesrexperienced are slower than modeled, we vautittize the premium over a longer
time period, resulting in a higher yield to matyrit

In an increasing prepayment environment, the tindiifiigrence between the actual cash receipt otjpal paydowns and the
announcement of the principal paydown may resudtiditional margin requirements from our repurcheg®ement counterparties.

We mitigate prepayment risk by constantly evalugatinr mortgage assets relative to prepayment spegsved for assets with a
similar structure, quality and characteristics.tkermore, we stress-test the portfolio as to preat speeds and interest rate risk in order to
further develop or make modifications to our hetgkances. Historically we have not hedged 100%uofiability costs due to prepayment
risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that we will not fully ceitt the principal we have invested in mortgage daarsecurities due to either borrower
defaults, or a counterparty failure. Our portfa® of December 31, 2007 consisted of approxim&480.7 million of securitized first liens
originated in 2005 and earlier, approximately $80%illion of Agency MBS backed by the credit of RéMae or Freddie Mac,
approximately $31.8 million of non-Agency floatinate securities rated AAA by both Standard and Baord Moody'’s. In addition we own
approximately $8.0 million of loans held for sateHC, net of loan loss reserve.

The approximate $430.7 million of securitized fifshs were principally originated by our subsigi&C prior to our exit from the
mortgage lending business. These are predominaitgiyquality loans with average loan-to-value (“L")\fatio at origination of approximate
69%, and average borrower credit score of appraeiyna38, well above what is considered prime.ddiion approximately 69% of these
loans were originated with full income and asseification. The remaining 31% were originated pipaily with stated income and full asset
verification, and had an average LTV ratio at aré@ion at origination of 65%, further reducing ri¥khile we feel that our origination and
underwriting of these loans will help to mitigaketrisk of significant borrower default®n these loans, we cannot assure you that atblwers
will continue to satisfy their payment obligatiomsder these loans, thereby avoiding default.

Our loans held in securitization are concentratetthé Northeast, principally in the New York andsBm metropolitan areas. To date
these markets have proven to have less exposdextimes in housing values than those markets whaste an oversupply of housing such as
Florida, Nevada, and California. Although we expgbese markets to continue to be more resistatfietaleclines in housing values in the
future, we cannot assure you that these marketsiotiexperience significant declines in home valirethe futureMacro economic events a
trends could greatly affect future performancehefse markets and thus the performance of our loans.

The $430.7 million of loans held in securitizationsts are permanently financed with $417.0 millidrcollateralized debt obligations
leaving the Company with a net exposure of $13llianiof credit exposure.
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Market (Fair Value) Risk

Changes in interest rates also expose us to maskehat the market value (fair) value on our &sseay decline. For certain of the
financial instruments that we own, fair values wiilit be readily available since there are no adtaging markets for these instruments as
characterized by current exchanges between willargjes. Accordingly, fair values can only be dedwor estimated for these investments
using various valuation techniques, such as comgukie present value of estimated future cash flesusg discount rates commensurate with
the risks involved. However, the determination stfreated future cash flows is inherently subjectinel imprecise. Minor changes in
assumptions or estimation methodologies can hawatarial effect on these derived or estimatedvalues. These estimates and assumptions
are indicative of the interest rate environmentsfd3ecember 31, 2007, and do not take into conafite the effects of subsequent interest
fluctuations.

We note that the values of our investments in nagggbacked securities and in derivative instrumgmisarily interest rate hedges
on our debt, will be sensitive to changes in maikierest rates, interest rate spreads, creditggrand other market factors. The value of these
investments can vary and has varied materially fp@mod to period. Historically, the values of enortgage loan portfolio have tended to vary
inversely with those of its derivative instruments.

The following describes the methods and assumpti@ngse in estimating fair values of our finanamstruments:

Fair value estimates are made as of a specifid pptime based on estimates using present vala¢her valuation techniques. These
techniques involve uncertainties and are signifigaaffected by the assumptions used and the judd¢smaade regarding risk characteristics of
various financial instruments, discount rates neaté of future cash flows, future expected loseerpce and other factors.

Changes in assumptions could significantly affaese estimates and the resulting fair values. Bériair value estimates cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent magketsin many cases, could not be realized in aneidiate sale of the instrument. Also,
because of differences in methodologies and assomspised to estimate fair values, the fair valused by us should not be compared to tl
of other companies.

The fair values of the Company's residential mayggbacked securities are generally based on mprioets provided by five to seven

dealers who make markets in these financial instnim If the fair value of a security is not reasulg available from a dealer, management
estimates the fair value based on characteristitsecsecurity that the Company receives from #iseér and on available market information.
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The fair value of mortgage loans held for in se@zation trusts are determined by the loan prighget which is based third party Ic
origination entities in similar products and masket

The market risk management discussion and the aimestimated from the analysis that follows arevéyd-looking statements that
assume that certain market conditions occur. Acesllts may differ materially from these projectedults due to changes in our portfolio
assets and borrowings mix and due to developmeriteeidomestic and global financial and real estatgkets. Developments in the financial
markets include the likelihood of changing intemegés and the relationship of various interegsaind their impact on our portfolio yield, cost
of funds and cash flows. The analytical methodseause to assess and mitigate these marketstigkdd not be considered projections of
future events or operating performance.

As a financial institution that has only investadJ.S.dollar denominated instruments, primarily residaimaortgage instruments, a
has only borrowed money in the domestic marketargenot subject to foreign currency exchange ormodity price risk. Rather, our market
risk exposure is largely due to interest rate risterest rate risk impacts our interest incomtergst expense and the market value on a large
portion of our assets and liabilities. The manag#méinterest rate risk attempts to maximize eagaiand to preserve capital by minimizing
the negative impacts of changing market ratest asskliability mix, and prepayment activity.

The table below presents the sensitivity of theketavalue changes of our portfolio using a discedrtash flow simulation model.
Application of this method results in an estimatadrihe fair market value change of our assetbiliiges and hedging instruments per 100 b
point (“bp”) shift in interest rates.

The use of hedging instruments is a critical paduw interest rate risk management strategiestlameéffects of these hedging
instruments on the market value of the portfolie maflected in the model's output. This analysse éhkes into consideration the value of
options embedded in our mortgage assets includingtraints on the re-pricing of the interest rdtassets resulting from periodic and lifetime
cap features, as well as prepayment options. Assetdiabilities that are not interest rate-semsi8uch as cash, payment receivables, prepaid
expenses, payables and accrued expenses are @kclude

Changes in assumptions including, but not limitgdvblatility, mortgage and financing spreads, psepent behavior, defaults, as w
as the timing and level of interest rate changdisaffect the results of the model. Therefore, atresults are likely to vary from modeled
results.

Market Value Changes
(Amount in thousands)

Changes in Changes in Net
Interest Rates Market Value Duration
+200 (1,789) 0.66 years
+100 (515) 0.36 years
Base — 0.12 years
-100 (478) (0.03) years

It should be noted that the model is used as attoidientify potential risk in a changing interegte environment but does not include
any changes in portfolio composition, financingttgies, market spreads or changes in overall megkelity.

Based on the assumptions used, the model outpgestsya very low degree of portfolio price chanigeryincreases in interest rates,
which implies that our cash flow and earning chemastics should be relatively stable for compagatiianges in interest rates.

Although market value sensitivity analysis is widatcepted in identifying interest rate risk, iedaot take into consideration char
that may occur such as, but not limited to, chamgésvestment and financing strategies, changesarket spreads and changes in business
volumes. Accordingly, we make extensive use ofamiags simulation model to further analyze ouelef interest rate risk.

There are a number of key assumptions in our egsréimulation model. These key assumptions inctind@ges in market conditions
that affect interest rates, the pricing of ARM puots, the availability of investment assets andathalability and the cost of financing for
portfolio assets. Other key assumptions made imgusie simulation model include prepayment speads@anagement's investment, financing
and hedging strategies, and the issuance of neityee typically run the simulation model undevaxiety of hypothetical business scenarios
that may include different interest rate scenaidifferent investment strategies, different prepagtrpossibilities and other scenarios that
provide us with a range of possible earnings ouom order to assess potential interest rate Tis&.assumptions used represent our estimate
of the likely effect of changes in interest ratad do not necessarily reflect actual results. Tdraiags simulation model takes into account



periodic and lifetime caps embedded in our assedgiermining the earnings at risk.
Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements of the Company and theedInotes and schedules to the financial statemtegiether with the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm theyas required by this Iltem 8, which are set fbehinning on page F-1 of this annual
report on Form 10-K are incorporated herein byrexfee.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceduras.of the end of the period covered by this repwe,carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision of and with the participattbiour management, including our Co-Chief Exeai®fficers and Chief Financial Officer,
of the effectiveness of the design and operatioouofdisclosure controls and procedures (as defm@&iiles 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of DecembeRBQ7 to ensure that information required to beldged in the reports that we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 raended, is recorded, processed, summarizeegparded within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, arad $lach information is accumulated and communicttenir management timely. Based u
that evaluation, our management, including our @iefCExecutive Officers, and Chief Financial Offiemncluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of December 317.20

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting. Our management is responsible for establishimgraaintaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13#-10ur internal control system was
designed to provide reasonable assurance to ougearent and board of directors regarding the riétiglpreparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements in accordance wétiegally accepted accounting principles. Undestigervision and with the participation of
our management, including our principal executiffecers and principal financial officer, the Compactonducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting based on the frameworkliernal Control - Integrated Frameworkssued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (“COSQ”). Based on our evaluationauritie framework ifnternal
Control -Integrated Frameworkour management concluded that our internal cbaotrer financial reporting was effective as of Dexxer 31,
2007. The effectiveness of our internal controlrdiancial reporting as of December 31, 2007 heenbaudited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in their report which is included herein @ye F-2 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Remediation of Material Weakne#s previously disclosed in the Company's Annuald@®epn Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006, filed with the SEC on April @02, we identified a material weakness in our imaécontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. A material weakness is a cod&fatiency or combination of control deficienctbat results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the atrmu interim financial statements will not be peated or detected. The material weakness
identified was an inadequacy in the operation afamntrol activities involving the completion arnglview of the accounting period closing
process for the year ended December 31, 2006. 8laetsubstantially all of the operating assetswfmortgage lending platform to IndyMac
Bank, F.S.B., which closed on March 31, 2007, figantly increased the workload demands of thetexgsaccounting staff, thereby disrupti
the timely completion and review of the accountiregiod closing process. In addition, in connectigth the uncertainty of the consummation
and effect of the Indymac transaction, the accogntiepartment was affected by the departure odicekey accounting personnel during this
time. The increased workload and decreased stadfdeesulted in a significant number of post-aiggournal entries and contributed to a
request for additional time to file our Annual Retpan Form 10-K.

As previously disclosed in our Annual Report onrrdr0-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, amdiirguarterly reports on Form
10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2007, JOn2@07 and September 30, 2007, during the fiestpisd and third quarters of 2007,
management actively assessed our accounting neel@sermine appropriate staffing levels. Subseqgteektarch 31, 2007, management
identified and engaged certain accounting conststemnperform the functions of controller for ther@pany. Since October 1, 2007, the
Company has employed a full-time controller. Inifidd, with the completion in the third quarter2007 of substantially all of the posising
requirements related to the IndyMac transactiomwbrkload demands on our accounting staff andigigyns to the accounting period closing
process have been greatly reduced. Managementéelieat our internal controls have improved amdntiaterial weakness remediated as a
result of these actions and events.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial RepogifVhile the planned remediation steps were designddraplace by the
beginning of the fourth quarter of 2007, managensentinued to evaluate the operating effectivetiesaigh the end of fiscal year 2007 when
management concluded that the Company’s interrmataloover financial reporting had improved in ammar sufficient to support an
assessment that the controls were effective. Tiave been no changes in the Company's internalatavter financial reporting during the
quarter ended December 31, 2007 that have mayeaifiéicted, or are reasonably likely to materialffect, the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANTAND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information on our directors and executive officansl the audit committee of our board of directsiigcorporated by reference from
our Proxy Statement (under the headings “Propadalettion of Directors,” “Information on Our Boadd Directors and its Committees,”
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte” and “Executive Officers”) to be filed witespect to our Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 20, 2008 (the “2008P®tatement”).

In addition, we have filed, as exhibits to this AmhReport on Form 10-K, the certifications of guincipal executive officers and
principal financial officer required under Secti®d2 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information presented under the headings “Cosgigon of Directors”, “Executive Compensation'Cdmpensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “CompdisaCommittee Report” in our 2008 Proxy Statentertte filed with the SEC is

incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information presented under the heading “Sgc@nvnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Maragnt” in our 2008 Proxy
Statement to be filed with the SEC is incorpordtetkin by reference.

The information presented under the heading “Maitethe Registrant’'s Common Equity and Relatecc&tolder Matters —
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity @ensation Plans” in Iltem 5 of Part Il of this Foi@K is incorporated herein by referen

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information presented under the heading “Cefalationships and Related Party Transactions” ‘dnfibrmation on Our Board
of Directors and its Committees” in our 2008 Pr&tptement to be filed with the SEC is incorpordtetkin by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information presented under the headings “Rréh@ccountant Fees and Services” and “Audit CotteriPre-Approval Policy”
in our 2008 Proxy Statement to be filed with theC3E incorporated herein by reference.

64




Table of Content

PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements and Schedules. The followimgntial statements and schedules are includddsmeport:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’/Membegsiity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
(b) Exhibits.

The information set forth under “Exhibit Index” bel is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this repot
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC.

Date: March 31, 2008 By: /s/ DAVID A. AKRE
Name: David A. Akre
Title: Co-Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptine following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ David A. Akre Co-Chief Executive Officer March 31, 2008
David A. Akre and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Steven R. Mumma President, Co-Chief Executive Officer and March 31, 2008
Steven R. Mumma Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ James J. Fowler Chairman of the Board March 31, 2008
James J. Fowler

/s/ David R. Bock Director March 31, 2008
David R. Bock
/s/ Alan L. Hainey Director March 31, 2008
Alan L. Hainey
/sl Steven G. Norcutt Director March 31, 2008

Steven G. Norcutt

/s/ Steven M. Abreu Director March 31, 2008
Steven M. Abreu
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
New York Mortgage Trust, Inc
New York, New York

We have audited the internal control over financéglorting of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and siglaries (the “ Company ") as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria establishedemal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Comjs management is responsible for maintainingatiffe internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifecéveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FimgriReporting. Our responsibility is to expressoginmion on the Company'’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audituided obtaining an understanding of internal cdraxver financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiagutne design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemigrg similar functions, and effected by the compatypard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anltet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymiedeaccounting principles. A company’s interratcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheataintenance of records that, in reasonableldataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactioneereded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengmaadcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) peowédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company'’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods atebject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policdeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year endszeBiber 31, 2007 of the Company and our reportddtech 31, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 31, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
New York Mortgage Trust, Inc
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and slidnses (the “ Company ") as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related coiasetl statements of operations, stockholders’ yaaiitd cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Tiresecial statements are the responsibility of @menpan’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, orsaliasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodisids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteg@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinarficial position of New York Mortgage Trust,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 808,2and the results of their operations and esh flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity \@itbounting principles generally accepted in theté¢hBtates of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2007, based on the criteria establightddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission and our report datecch&1, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 31, 2008
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investment securities available for sale
Accounts and accrued interest receivable
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts -ofaeserves
Prepaid and other assets
Derivative assets
Property and equipment (net)
Assets related to discontinued operation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments
Collateralized debt obligations
Derivative liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Subordinated debentures
Liabilities related to discontinued operation

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 400,000,000 shatbe@zed 3,635,854 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 3,665,03&slissued and 3,615,576 outstanding at
December 31, 2006

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2007 2006
$ 550¢ $ 96¢
7,51F 3,151

350,48: 488,96

3,48t 5,18¢

430,71 588,16(

2,20( 20,95:

41€ 2,63:

62 8¢

8,87¢ 212,80!

$ 809,26 $ 1,322,90:
$ 315,71« $ 815,31
417,02 197,44

3,517 —

3,75: 5,871

45,00( 45,00(

5,83: 187,70:

790,84 1,251,33

36 37

99,33¢ 99,65t

(1,95(0) (4,381)
(79,007 (23,739

18,41¢ 71,57:

$ 809,26 $ 1,322,90:
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data

REVENUES:
Interest income:
Investment securities and loans held in securitimatusts
Loans held for investment
Total interest income
Interest expense:
Investment securities and loans held in securitimatusts
Loans held for investment
Subordinated debentures
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Other (expense) income:
Loan losses
(Loss) gain on securities and related hedges
Impairment loss on investment securities
Total other expense
EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Marketing and promotion
Data processing and communications
Professional fees

Depreciation and amortization
Other

Total expenses

(Loss) Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation - net of tax

NET LOSS
Basic and diluted loss per share
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic anedilut

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
50,56+ 64,88 § 55,05(
_ — 7,67¢
50,56+ 64,88 62,72
46,52 56,55: 42,00
_ — 5,847
3,55¢ 3,54¢ 2,00¢
50,08’ 60,09’ 49,85:
477 4,78¢ 12,87:
(1,689) (57) —
(8,350) (529) 2,207
(8,480) — (7,440
(18,517 (586) (5,239
86t 714 1,93¢
145 78 124
194 23C 14¢
612 59¢ 852
32t 27€ 171
61z 13€ 1,087
2,75¢ 2,03z 4,31¢
(20,790) 2,16¢ 3,32:
(34,47%) (17,19) (8,667)
(55,26¢) (15,03) $ (5,340)
(15.29) @417 $ (1.49)
3,62¢ 3,60¢ 3,57¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 300
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Accumulated

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2005

Net loss

Dividends declared

Restricted stock

Performance shares

Stock options

Decrease in net unrealized gain on
available for sale securities

Increase derivative instruments

Comprehensive loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005

Net loss

Dividends declared

Repurchase of common stock

Restricted stock

Performance shares

Stock options

Decrease in net unrealized gain on
available for sale securities

Decrease in derivative instruments

Comprehensive loss
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006
Net loss

Dividends declared
Restricted stock

Decrease in net unrealized loss on avail

for sale securities
Decrease in derivative instruments

Comprehensive loss
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007

F-6

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Additional Other
Common Paid-In  Accumulated Comprehensive Comprehensive
Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Total

36$ 119,29 $ —$ 25€ $ — $ 119,48
— — (5,340 — (5.340 (5,340
— (13,37 (3,36¢) — — (16,749
1 1,311 — — — 1,31:
— 54¢ — — — 54¢
— 44 — — — 44
— — — (1,230 (1,130 (1,130
— — — 2,78¢ 2,78¢ 2,78¢
— — — — 9% (3,686 —
37 107,71¢ (8,70¢) 1,91C 100,95¢
— — (15,03)) —$ (15,03) (15,03)
— (8,595 — — — (8,595
(1) (299) — — — (300)
1 81¢ — — — 82(C
— 8 — — — 8
— 3 — — — 3
— — — (879) (879 (879
— — — (5,41 (5,412) (5,417
— — — — % (21,32) —
37 99,65¢ (23,739 (4,38)) 71,57:
— — (55,26%) —$ (55,26¢) (55,26%)
— (909) — — — (909)
(1) 59: — — — 592
— — — 3,81t 3,81¢ 3,81¢
— — — (1,389 (1,389 (1,389
— — — — 9% (52,83)) —
36 % 99,33¢ $ (79,00)% (1,950 18,41¢
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (55,26¢) $ (15,03) $ (5,340
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 765 2,10¢ 1,71¢
Amortization of premium on investment securitiesl amortgage loans 1,61¢ 2,48: 6,26¢
Loss (gain) on sale of securities, loans and relhtzlges 8,35( 1,27¢ (2,207
Impairment loss on investment securities 8,48( — 7,44(
Purchase of mortgage loans held for investment — (222,90 —
Origination of mortgage loans held for sale (300,86°) (1,841,01) (2,316,73)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans 398,67¢ 2,059,98 2,293,841
Allowance for deferred tax asset / tax (benefit) 18,35 (8,499 (8,549
Gain on sale of retail lending platform (4,36%) — —
Change in value of derivatives 78t 28¢ (3,155
Loan losses 2,54¢ 6,80( —
Other 1,111 80¢€ 1,93
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from loan purchasers 88,35: 33,46: (41,909
Escrow deposits-pending loan closings 3,814 (2,380 14,80z
Accounts and accrued interest receivable 4,141 7,18¢ 714
Prepaid and other assets 2,90: (1,58¢) (3,987)
Due to loan purchasers (7,115 4,20¢ 1,301
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,009 (7,957) 3,99(
Other liabilities (131 (45%) (4,100
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 167,13¢ 18,78: (53,969
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Restricted cash (4,369 2,317 (3,12¢)
Purchases of investment securities (231,93) (292,51)) (92,65¢)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 246,87: 356,89! 169,83:
Purchase of mortgage loans held in securitizatiasts — — (167,09)
Principal repayments received on loans held in rtezation trust 154,72¢ 191,67: 120,83!
Proceeds from sale of retail lending platform 12,93¢ — —
Origination of mortgage loans held for investment — (558,559
Principal paydown on investment securities 113,49( 162,18! 399,69«
Payments received on loans held for investment — — 13,27¢
Purchases of property and equipment (39€) (2,469 (3,929
Sale of fixed asset and real estate owned property 88C — 75
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 29221 419,009: (121,64)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common stock — (300) —
Decrease in financing arrangements, net (672,570) (403,400 (78,91)
Collateralized debt obligation borrowings 337,43: = 228,22t
Collateralized debt obligation paydow (117,85.) (30,779 —
Dividends paid (2,826 (11,529 (17,25¢)
Capital contributions from minority interest mem| — 42 —
Issuance of subordinated debentures — — 45,00(
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (454,81) (445,96 177,05¢




NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 4,53¢ (8,087%) 1,44:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning 96¢ 9,05¢ 7,61°
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End $ 550¢ $ 96¢ $ 9,05¢
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Cash paid for interest $ 41,33t $ 76,90f $ 57,87
NON CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Non-cash purchase of fixed assets $ —  $ —  $ 16¢
NON CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends declared to be paid in subsequent period $ — 3 90t $ 3,83¢
Grant of restricted stock $ — $ — $ 271

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-7




Table of Content

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollar amounts in thousands unless otherwise indated)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization- New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. together with iensolidated subsidiaries (‘“NYMT”, the “Company”, &y “our”, and
“us”) is a self-advised real estate investmenttfraisREIT, in the business of investing in resititdradjustable rate mortgage-backed securities
issued by a United States government-sponsoredpeiste (“GSE” or “Agency”), such as the Federal iNaal Mortgage Association (“Fannie
Mae"), or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporafi&reddie Mac”), prime credit quality residentadjustable-rate mortgage (“ARM")
loans, or prime ARM loans, and non-agency mortdaagked securities. We refer to residential adjustedie mortgage-backed securities
throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K as “MB8id MBS issued by a GSE as “ Agency MBS”. We sdtlactive longterm investmer
returns by investing our equity capital and borrdviiends in such securities. Our principal busiregsctive is to generate net income for
distribution to our stockholders resulting from #pread between the interest and other income meogeour interest-earning assets and the
interest expense we pay on the borrowings thatseea finance these assets, which we refer to agetlinterest income.

The Company is organized and conducts its opematmiualify as a REIT for federal income tax pusgm As such, the Company \
generally not be subject to federal income taxha portion of its income that is distributed tocitholders if it distributes at least 90% of its
REIT taxable income to its stockholders by the dat of its federal income tax return and comphiék various other requirements.

Recent DevelopmentsThe Company received net proceeds of $77 mifiiom capital through a private placement raiseximuary
and February of 2008 and invested the proceedsgroaimately $712 million of Agency MBS. These phmses were funded in part by
approximately $665 million in repurchase agreeme#ss of February 29, 2008 the Company had appratéiy $1.5 billion in total assets,
including $712 million in Agency MBS, $320 millian Agency CMO floating rate securities, $31 millionnon-Agency securities and $416
million in loans held in securitization trusts. TBempany financed these assets in part with apprately $972 million in repurchase
agreements and $402 million in collateralized deigations.

During the month of March 2008 financial marketperienced a significant contraction in market iitity that had a more pronounced
effect on the market for Agency MBS due to securgyidation by several large leveraged investéisa result of these liquidations as well as
reduced availability of market liquidity, many mathparticipants reduced holdings of mortgage séesnwhile institutional demand
diminished.

To meet these adverse market conditions the Compatuced the overall portfolio leverage by sellapproximately $ 547 million of
Agency Arm MBS. These sales resulted in a realiass of $16 million including the termination ofaed hedging transactions. The sales
reduced overall repurchase agreements outstangifig36 million to $472 million as of March 31, 200he Company currently has $9
million in cash as well as $30 million in unencumdzbsecurities to meet additional margin calls el as increases in higher collateral
requirements related to our repurchase agreemervibiogs. We believe we have adequate liquiditfuted our operations for the forseeable
future, at least for the next year.

Until March 31, 2007, the Company operated a mgedanding business through its wholly-owned subsjg Hypotheca Capital,
LLC (“"HC”) (formerly known as The New York Mortgageéompany, LLC).

On March 31, 2007, we completed the sale of subathnall of the operating assets related to H€tsil mortgage lending platform
IndyMac Bank, F.S.B. (“Indymac”), a wholly-ownedbsidiary of Indymac Bancorp, Inc. On February 202, we completed the sale of
substantially all of the operating assets relateld€'s wholesale mortgage lending platform to Teébbkending Corp. (“Tribeca Lending”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Franklin Credit Manager€orporation.

In connection with the sale of the assets of ounledale mortgage origination platform assets ol 22, 2007 and the sale of the
assets of our retail mortgage lending platform aardh 31, 2007, during the fourth quarter of 2006 classified our mortgage lending busir
as a discontinued operation in accordance wittptheisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrigi@rds (“SFAS”) No. 144ccounting fo
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived AsseAs a result, we have reported revenues and egpaatated to the mortgage lending business
as a discontinued operation and the related aasdtBabilities as assets and liabilities relatethie discontinued operation for all periods
presented in the accompanying consolidated finhataéements. Certain assets and liabilities, ssigaed to Indymac or Tribeca Lending will
become part of the ongoing operations of NYMT aocbadingly, have not been classified as a discaetinoperation in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 144 (See note 9).

While the Company sold substantially all of thees®f its wholesale and retail mortgage lendiradfpfms and exited the mortgage



lending business as of March 31, 2007, it reta@rsain assets and liabilities associated with timmér line of business. Among the
assets are mortgage loans held for sale and thtedgbrincipal and interest receivable balances.|iEbilities include costs associated with the
disposal of the mortgage loans held for sale, gisterepurchase and indemnification obligationspoeviously sold mortgage loans and
remaining lease payment obligations on real andqmal property not assigned as part of these tcénga.

Basis of PresentationThe consolidated financial statements includesttepunts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions are eliedniatconsolidation. Certain prior period amouraséhbeen reclassified to conform to
current period classifications. In addition, certpreviously reported discontinued operation baarttave been reclassified to continuing
operations, including $1.1 million in restrictecsba$1.0 million derivative balance related to iegt rate caps, $0.1 million in property and
equipment (net) and $0.3 million in accounts pagarld accrued expenses. These balances were ifedestier final determination of the
asset sale to Indymac Bank.
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As used herein, references to the “Company,” “NYMWe,” “our” and “us” refer to New York Mortgagerst, Inc., collectively
with its subsidiaries.

The Board of Directors declared a one for five regestock split of our common stock, as of Octéther007, decreasing the numbe
common shares outstanding to approximately 3.6anilPrior year share amounts and earnings pee slisclosures have been restated to
reflect the reverse stock split.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in comfity with accounting principles generally accepiethe United
States of America (“GAAP”) requires management aikenestimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at theedat the financial statements and the reported atsaf revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The Company’s estimates and agsans primarily arise from risks and uncertainéssociated with interest rate volatility,
prepayment volatility and credit exposure. Althoughnagement is not currently aware of any factuaswould significantly change its
estimates and assumptions in the near term, feharges in market conditions may occur which cealase actual results to differ materially.

Cash and Cash Equivalert€ash and cash equivalents include cash on hamyrats due from banks and overnight deposits. The
Company maintains its cash and cash equivaleritigyily rated financial institutions, and at timbsse balances exceed insurable amounts.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash is held by counterparties agishtl for hedging instruments, amounts held dstesél for two
letters of credit related to the Company’s leaseffi€e space, including its corporate headquarmesamounts held in an escrow account to
support warranties and indemnifications relatethéosale of the retail mortgage lending platforninlymac.

Investment Securities Available for Salthe Company's investment securities are resialemibrtgage-backed securities comprised
of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and “AAA”- rated adalse-rate securities, including adjustable-rat@soat have an initial fixed-rate period.
Investment securities are classified as availabiadle securities and are reported at fair valitie wnrealized gains and losses reported in ¢
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The fair value forsgcurities in this classification are based oadjusted price quotes for similar securities
in active markets obtained from independent deakeslized gains and losses recorded on the s@wedtment securities available for sale
are based on the specific identification methodianhlided in gain (loss) on sale of securities exldted hedges. Purchase premiums or
discounts on investment securities are accretednartized to interest income over the estimateddifthe investment securities using the
interest method. Investment securities may be stibjanterest rate, credit and/or prepayment risk.

When the fair value of an available for sale segtisiless than amortized cost, management corssidieether there is an other-than-
temporary impairment in the value of the security(, whether the security will be sold prior te tiecovery of fair value). Management
considers at a minimum the following factors thetth individually or in combination, could indicatee decline is “other-than-temporary:” 1)
the length of time and extent to which the fainnahas been less than book value; 2) the finanoradition and near-term prospects of the
issuer; or 3) the intent and ability of the Compémyetain the investment for a period of time might to allow for any anticipated recovery in
market value. If, in management's judgment, anreithen-temporary impairment exists, the cost bakthe security is written down to the
then-current fair value, and the unrealized logsaissferred from accumulated other comprehensigeme as an immediate reduction of
current earnings (i.e., as if the loss had beelizezhin the period of impairment). Even thoughanedit concerns exist with respect to an
available for sale security, an other-than-tempoi@pairment may be evident if management determihat the Company does not have the
intent and ability to hold an investment until agfioasted recovery of the value of the investment.

As of December 31, 2005, management concludeddlmséhe decision to potentially sell in the figstarter of 2006 certain of its
available for sale securities, that the declinthose securities was other-than-temporary. Accgidirthe cost basis of those securities of
$395.7 million was written down to fair value amdunrealized loss of $7.4 million was transferremif accumulated other comprehensive
income as an impairment loss on investment seestiti the accompanying consolidated statementexftpns.
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Accounts and Accrued Interest Receivabdecounts and accrued receivable includes intesestivable for investment securities and
mortgage loans held in securitization trusts.

Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trustglortgage loans held in securitization trusts@gain Adjustable Rate Mortgage
("ARM") loans transferred to New York Mortgage Tr2905-1, New York Mortgage Trust 2005-2 and Newky®lortgage Trust 2005-3 that
have been securitized into sequentially rated elas$ beneficial interests. Mortgage loans helgeicuritization trusts are carried at their
unpaid principal balances, including unamortizeghpium or discount, unamortized loan originationts@d allowance for loan lossen
accordance with SFAS 140 , Securitized ARM loars ARM loans collateralizing debt are accounteda®toans and are not considered
investments subject to classification under SFAS, Atcounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgSiecurities See Collateralized
Debt Obligations below for further description.

Interest income is accrued and recognized as rewathen earned according to the terms of the moettzans and when, in the
opinion of management, it is collectible. The aetf interest on loans is discontinued when, imaggement’s opinion, the interest is not
collectible in the normal course of business, huio case when payment becomes greater than 9@ldbiyguent. Loans return to accrual
status when principal and interest become curnmethtaae anticipated to be fully collectible.

Loan Loss Reserves on Mortgage Loans Held in Seratidon Trusts—We establish a reserve for loan losses based oagearent's
judgment and estimate of credit losses inherentimportfolio of mortgage loans held in securitiaattrusts.

Estimation involves the consideration of variousdit-related factors including but not limited toacro-economic conditions, the
current housing market conditions, loan-to-valu®ga delinquency status, historical credit losgesity rates, purchased mortgage insurance,
the borrower's credit and other factors deemedatwamt consideration. Additionally, we look at thedance of any delinquent loan and com
that to the current value of the property. We z#ilvarious internet-based property data servicesview comparable properties in the same
area or consult with a realtor in the propertytsaar

Comparing the current loan balance to the propaatlye determines the current loan-to-value (“LTY&)io of the loan. Generally, we
estimate that a first lien loan on a property th@s into a foreclosure process and becomes ot @svned (“REQ”), results in the property
being disposed of at approximately 68% of the prigfgeoriginal value. This estimate is based on agament's long term experience. It is
possible given today's deteriorating market coad&j we may realize less than that return in aedases. Thus, for a first lien loan that is
delinquent, we will adjust the property value dawrapproximately 68% of the current property vadnel compare that to the current balance
of the loan. The difference determines the baservegaken for that loan. This base reserve fardqular loan may be adjusted if we are
aware of specific circumstances that may affecbtiteome of the loss mitigation process for thahldPredominately, however, we use the
base reserve number for our reserve.

The loan loss reserves will be maintained througtoing provisions charged to operating income aifido& reduced by loans that ¢
charged off. As of December 31, 2007 the allowdncéoan losses held in securitization trusts &da$1.6 million. The allowance for loan
losses was zero at December 31, 2006. Determihigltowance for loan losses is subjective in matlure to the estimation required.

Property and Equipment, (NetProperty and equipment have lives ranging froragho ten years, and are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Deptiecias determined in amounts sufficient to chattggcost of depreciable assets to
operations over their estimated service lives ufiegstraight-line method. Leasehold improvemergsaaortized over the lesser of the life of
the lease or service lives of the improvementsgusie straight-line method. (see note 4)
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Financing Arrangements, Portfolio InvestmentsPortfolio investments are typically financed wittpurchase agreements, a form of
collateralized borrowing which is secured by pditf@ecurities on the balance sheet. Such finayscare recorded at their outstanding
principal balance with any accrued interest dueng®d as an accrued expense (see note 6).

Collateralized Debt Obligations (“CDO") We use CDOs to permanently finance our loans meggcuritization trusts. For financial
reporting purposes, the ARM loans and restrictesth ¢eeld as collateral are recorded as assets @dahgany and the CDO is recorded as the
Company’s debt. The transaction includes interst caps which are held by the securitization tnstrecorded as an asset or liability of the
Company.

The Company, as transferor, securitizes mortgagesliand securities by transferring the loans asrgezs to entities (“Transferees”)
which generally qualify under GAAP as “qualifyingecial purpose entities” (“QSPE's”) as defined urgfAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets andngxishment of Liabilities-a replacement of FASEit®ment No. 125 (“Off Balance Sheet
Securitizations”)”. The QSPEs issue investment graad norinvestment grade securities. Generally, the investrgrade securities are solc
third party investors, and the Company retainsth@investment grade securities. If a transactieetsithe requirements for sale recognition
under GAAP, and the Transferee meets the requirenteine a QSPE, the assets transferred to the @&R#onsidered sold, and gain or los
recognized. The gain or loss is based on the pfitlee securities sold and the estimated fair vafugny securities and servicing rights retained
over the cost basis of the assets transferredfigtrsaction costs. If subsequently the Transf@a#®to continue to qualify as a QSPE, or the
Company obtains the right to purchase assets dbedfransferee, then the Company may have todedluits financial statements such as
or potentially, all the assets of such Transferee.

Subordinated Debenturessubordinated debentures are trust preferred seutitat are fully guaranteed by the Company vétipec
to distributions and amounts payable upon liquatatredemption or repayment. These securitieslassified as subordinated debentures in
the liability section of the Company’s consolidate&dance sheet.

Derivative Financial InstrumentsThe Company has developed risk management pragaach processes, which include investments
in derivative financial instruments designed to aga market risk associated with its mortgage banaind its mortgage-backed securities
investment activities.

Derivative instruments contain an element of riskhie event that the counterparties may be unabigeet the terms of such
agreements. The Company minimizes its risk expasyieniting the counterparties with which it ergénto contracts to banks, investment
banks and certain private investors who meet d@stedal credit and capital guidelines. Managemens do¢ expect any counterparty to default
on its obligations and, therefore, does not exfietcur any loss due to counterparty default.

The Company uses other derivative instrumentsudic treasury, Agency or mortgageeked securities forward sale contracts w
are also classified as free-standing, undesigragegatives and thus are recorded at fair valué thié changes in fair value recognized in
current earnings.

Interest Rate RiskThe Company hedges the aggregate risk of inteséstluctuations with respect to its borrowingsyardless of the
form of such borrowings, which require paymentsslasn a variable interest rate index. The Compamerally intends to hedge only the risk
related to changes in the benchmark interest kaedon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or a Treasuate).

In order to reduce such risks, the Company entgosswap agreements whereby the Company recenatnt) rate payments in
exchange for fixed rate payments, effectively coting the borrowing to a fixed rate. The Compargoanters into cap agreements whereby,
in exchange for a fee, the Company is reimbursedhferest paid in excess of a certain capped rate.

To qualify for cash flow hedge accounting, interagé swaps and caps must meet certain criteghadimng:

. the items to be hedged expose the Company to stexte risk; and

. the interest rate swaps or caps are expecteddaadeontinue to be highly effective in reducing @ampany's
exposure to interest rate risk.

The fair values of the Company's interest rate ssgapements and interest rate cap agreementssed ba values provided by dea
who are familiar with the terms of these instrunse@@orrelation and effectiveness are periodicabeased at least quarterly based upon a
comparison of the relative changes in the fair @salar cash flows of the interest rate swaps ansd aag the items being hedged.

For derivative instruments that are designatedcuadify as a cash flow hedge (i.e. hedging the syp®to variability in expected
future cash flows that is attributable to a patticuisk), the effective portion of the gain or $osn the derivative instruments are reported as a



component of OCI and reclassified into earningth@ésame period or periods during which the hedgatsaction affects earnings.
The remaining gain or loss on the derivative insients in excess of the cumulative change in thegmtevalue of future cash flows of the
hedged item, if any, is recognized in current eggsiduring the period of change.
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With respect to interest rate swaps and caps that hot been designated as hedges, any net payamelets or fluctuations in the fair
value of, such swaps and caps, will be recognizexiirent earnings.

Termination of Hedging Relationship§he Company employs a number of risk managemenitoring procedures to ensure that the
designated hedging relationships are demonstraimg)are expected to continue to demonstrate taléigl of effectiveness. Hedge accoun
is discontinued on a prospective basis if it isdained that the hedging relationship is no loridghly effective or expected to be highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair value oé thedged item.

Additionally, the Company may elect to un-desigrateedge relationship during an interim period sxdesignate upon the

rebalancing of a hedge profile and the corresp@nbedge relationship. When hedge accounting iodigwed, the Company continues to
carry the derivative instruments at fair value witranges recorded in current earnings.
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Other Comprehensive Income (Los§ther comprehensive income (loss) is compris@daily of income (loss) from changes in
value of the Company’s available for sale secwjtéand the impact of deferred gains or losses angds in the fair value of derivative
contracts hedging future cash flows.

Employee Benefits Pland’The Company sponsors a defined contribution filaa “Plan”) for all eligible domestic employeesel
Plan qualifies as a deferred salary arrangemergruBection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.ddtide Plan, participating employees r
defer up to 15% of their priax earnings, subject to the annual Internal Regeé@rde contribution limit. The Company may matchtdbution:
up to a maximum of 25% of the first 5% of salarmioyees vest immediately in their contribution aegdt in the Company’s contribution at a
rate of 25% after two full years and then an ineatal 25% per full year of service until fully vedtat 100% after five full years of service.
The Company’s total contributions to the Plan w&t8,495, $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the ye@nded December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 respectively.

Stock Based Compensatiofihe Company accounts for its stock options andictstl stock grants in accordance with the SFAS No.
123 R,Share-Based Paymen{'SFAS No. 123 R”) which requires all companiesiieasure compensation for all share-based payments
including employee stock options, at fair values(aete 16).

Income Taxes The Company operates so as to qualify as a RE#lEuthe requirements of the Internal Revenue CRdquirements
for qualification as a REIT include various redioas on ownership of the Company’s stock, requésts concerning distribution of taxable
income and certain restrictions on the nature sétsand sources of income. A REIT must distriltifeast 90% of its taxable income to its
stockholders of which 85% plus any undistributedaris from the prior year must be distributed witthie taxable year in order to avoid the
imposition of an excise tax. The remaining balamas extend until timely filing of the Company’s teeturn in the subsequent taxable year.
Qualifying distributions of taxable income are detille by a REIT in computing taxable income.

HC is a taxable REIT subsidiary and therefore suthifiecorporate Federal income taxes. Accordindgferred tax assets and liabilit
are recognized for the future tax consequencdabuttible to differences between the financial steiet carrying amounts of existing assets
liabilities and their respective tax base upondhange in tax status. Deferred tax assets anditi@dbiare measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeawghith those temporary differences are expectdxbtecovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a chandgexirrates is recognized in income in the period itheludes the enactment date. (see note 13)

Earnings Per ShareBasic earnings per share excludes dilution amdmsputed by dividing net income available to commo
stockholders by the weighted-average number ofshaircommon stock outstanding for the period. eduearnings per share reflects the
potential dilution that could occur if securitiesather contracts to issue common stock were es@dladr converted into common stock or
resulted in the issuance of common stock that éiamned in the earnings of the Company.

Loan Loss Reserves on Repurchase Requests andageftinder Indemnification Agreemenige establish reserves for loans we
have been requested to repurchase from investdrioaitoans subject to indemnification agreeme@tsnerally loans wherein the borrowers
not make each of all the first three payments éortw investor once the loan has been sold, regsjrender the terms of purchase and sale
agreement entered into with the investor, to repase the loan.
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For the twelve months ended December 31, 2007emarchased a total of approximately $6.7 milliommafrtgage loans that were
originated in 2005, 2006 or 2007, the majority dfieth were due to early payment defaults. Duringttinee month period ended December 31,
2007, we received $1.0 million of new repurchaspiests. As of December 31, 2007, we had pendingcbpse requests totaling
approximately $4.4 million in unpaid principal bates, against which the Company has taken a reséamproximately $0.5 million . The
reserve is based on historical settlement ratepegpty value securing the loan in question andifipesettlement discussion with third parties.
The Company intends to address the approximately/ iddlion in outstanding repurchase requests bgngpting to enter into settlement
agreements.

New Accounting Pronouncements -September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Falt, Value MeasurementSFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring falue, and enhances fair value measurement diseloEhe measurement and disclosure
requirements related to financial assets and fia&habilities are effective for the Company begjimg in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008.
The adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets amaiicial liabilities will not have a significant pact on the Company’consolidated financi
statements. However, the resulting fair valuesutated under SFAS 157 after adoption may be diffefrom the fair values that would have
been calculated under previous guidance, and wédwilequired to provide certain additional disoles.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FINAdBounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — aeifiptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109( “FIN 48 "), which clarifies the accounting foncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enigeprs financial statements, FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureatgiftute for the financial statement recognitiowl aneasurement of tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 aftswigdes guidance on de-recognition, classificatioterest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. Interest agwhjties are accrued and reported as interest sgp@md other expenses reported in the
consolidated statement of income are booked whamiied. In addition, the 2003-2006 tax years remogien to examination by major taxing
jurisdictions. The adoption of FIN 48 has had nderial impact on the Compa’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. I5®% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fiogl Liabilities (“SFAS No.
159"), which provides companies with an optiongpart selected financial assets and liabilitieiatvalue. The objective of SFAS No. 159 is
to reduce both complexity in accounting for finadénstruments and the volatility in earnings calibg measuring related assets and liabilities
differently. SFAS No. 159 establishes presentagioa disclosure requirements and requires compémig®vide additional information that
will help investors and other users of financialteients to more easily understand the effecteo€timpany's choice to use fair value on its
earnings. SFAS No. 159 also requires entitiesgpldy the fair value of those assets and lialsliter which the company has chosen to use
value on the face of the balance sheet. The Comgianyot elect the fair value option for any ofétsisting financial assets on the effective
date.

In June 2007, the EITF reached consensus on Issu@a\11,Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividend$Sbare-Based
Payment Award("EITF 06-11"). EITF 06-11 requires that the taxbét related to dividend equivalents paid on liestd stock units, which
are expected to vest, be recorded as an increaskdlitional paid-in capital. EITF 06-11 is to bephg@d prospectively for tax benefits on
dividends declared in fiscal years beginning ditecember 15, 2007, and the Company expects to dueptrovisions of EITF 06-11
beginning in the first quarter of 2008. The Compéngurrently evaluating the potential effect oa tonsolidated financial statements of
adopting EITF 06-11.

In June 2007, the AICPA issued SOP No. 07/arification of the Scope of the Audit and Acdino Guide Investment Companies
and Accounting by Parent Companies and Equity Miktheestors for Investments in Investment Compa(lie®P 07-1"). SOP 07-1
addresses whether the accounting principles oAtB&A Audit and Accounting Guidelnvestment Companies may be applied to an entity by
clarifying the definition of an investment compaenyd whether those accounting principles may bénedaby a parent company in
consolidation or by an investor in the applicatidrthe equity method of accounting. In October @2, the provisions of SOP 07-1 were
deferred indefinitely.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS Mhcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financi&htements—an Amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. !SFAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin Sistablish accounting and reporting standards for
the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary andtfer deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifieat a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is
an ownership interest in the consolidated entit #hould be reported as equity in the consolidfieshcial statements. SFAS 160 changes the
way the consolidated income statement is presehtegfjuires consolidated net income to be repaateimounts that include the amounts
attributable to both the parent and the noncontiglihterest. It also requires disclosure, on tieefof the consolidated statement of income, of
the amounts of consolidated net income attributabtbe parent and to the noncontrolling inter88AS 160 will become effective for the
Company on January 1, 2009, and is not expecthdue a material impact on the Company’s consolitiitencial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R (ré\2887),Business CombinationSFAS 141R retains the fundamental
requirements in SFAS 141 that the acquisition mettifoaccounting (which SFAS 141 called the purchaséhod) be used for all business
combinations and for an acquirer to be identifiedefach business combination. SFAS 141(R) reqainescquirer to recognize the assets



acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any nonotlittg interest in the acquiree at the acquisitilatte, measured at their fair values as
of that date. SFAS 141(R) requires costs incuroegffect the acquisition and restructuring costiseagecognized separately from the
acquisition. SFAS 141(R) applies to business coatlins for which the acquisition date is on or f@nuary 1, 2009.
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2. Investment Securities Available For Sale

Investment securities available for sale consisheffollowing as of December 31, 2007 and Decertie2006 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Amortized cost $ 350,48: $ 492,77
Gross unrealized gains — 623
Gross unrealized losses — (4,43¢)
Fair value $ 350,48: $ 488,96:

During March 2008, news of potential security lidafions significantly increased the volatility o&ny financial assets, including
those held in our portfolio. Specifically, thedigation of several large financial institutionsaarly March 2008 caused a significant decline in
the fair market value of the CMO Floaters held um portfolio. The CMO Floaters in our portfolio goeedged as collateral for borrowings
under our repurchase agreements. As a resuledigimificant decline in the fair market value of €MO Floaters, as determined by the
lenders under our repurchase agreements, the hegquired by our lenders to obtain new or addaldimancing on these
securities experienced a significant increase. Aesalt, of the combination of lower fair marketuss on our CMO Floaters and rising haircut
requirements to finance those securities, we algctémprove our liquidity position by selling agpimately $82.5 million of CMO Floaters
from our portfolio in March 2008. Given the contéd volatility in the mortgage securities markeg, determined that we may not be able to
hold the CMO Floaters or other MBS securities in portfolio for the foreseeable future because veg sell them to satisfy margin calls from
our lenders or to otherwise manage our liquiditgipon. Therefore, we have determined that lossegur entire MBS securities portfolio wi
considered to be other than temporary impairments ®ecember 31, 2007 and have taken a $8.5 miligpairment charge in the fourth
quarter of 2007 as a result.

The following table sets forth the stated resetggisrand weighted average yields of our investrsentirities at December 31, 2007
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Less than 6 Months More than 6 Months  More than 24 Months

to 24 Months to 60 Months Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Carrying Average Carrying Average  Carrying Average Carrying Average

Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield
Agency REMIC CMO Floating Rate  $ 318,68¢ 5.55% $ — — $ — — $ 318,68¢ 5.55%
Private Label Floaters 28,40 5.50% — — — — 28,40 5.50%
NYMT Retained Securitie 2,16¢ 6.28% — — 1,22¢ 12.99% 3,39 10.03%
Total/Weighted Average $ 349,25¢ 555% $ — — $ 1,22¢  12.99% $ 350,48: 5.61%

The NYMT retained securities includes $1.2 millmiresidual interests related to the NYMT 20064dnsaction. The residual interest
carrying-values are determined by obtaining deqletes.

The following table sets forth the stated resetgolsrand weighted average yields of our investrsentirities at December 31, 2006
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Less than More than 6 Months  More than 24 Months
6 Months To 24 Months To 60 Months Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average Carrying Average
Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Yield
Agency REMIC CMO Floating Rate $ 163,89¢ 6.40% $ — — $ — — $ 163,89¢  6.40%
Private Label Floaters 22,28¢ 6.46% — — — — 22,28¢  6.46%

Private Label ARMs 16,67  5.60% 78,56%  5.80% 183,61: 5.64% 278,85(  5.68%



NYMT Retained Securitie 6,02/ 7.12% — — 17,90¢ 7.83% 23,93( 7.66%
Total/Weighted Average $ 208,87¢ 6.37% $ 7856t 580% $ 201,51 5.84% $ 488,96 6.06%

As of December 31, 2007 there were no unrealizeskl® in investment securities available for satetduhe impairment charge taken
in the fourth quarter discussed above.
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The following table’s presents the Company’s inmresit securities available for sale in an unrealipsd position, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that indigildsecurities have been in a continuous unreal@Esiposition at December 31, 2006.
(dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2006

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Agency REMIC CMO Floating Rate $ 96€ $ 2$ 1,841 $ 4% 2,807 $ 6
Private Label Floaters 22,28¢ 80 — — 22,28¢ 8C
Private Label ARMs 30,38t 38 248,46! 4,227 278,85( 4,26
NYMT Retained Securitie 7,49¢ 87 — — 7,49¢ 87
Total $ 61,13¢ $ 207 $ 250,30t $ 4231 $ 311,44( $ 4,43¢
3. Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts

Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts cdrifishe following at December 31, 2007 and Decen®de 2006 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
Mortgage loans principal amount $ 429,62¢ $ 584,35¢
Deferred origination costs — net 2,73 3,80z
Reserve for loan losses (1,647) _
Total mortgage loans held in securitization trusts $ 430,71 $ 588,16(

All of the Company’s mortgage loans held in se@ation trusts are pledged as collateral for tH&ateralized debt obligations (see
note 7). The Company’s net investment in the |dseld in securitization trusts, or the differencéneen the carrying amount of the loans and
the amount of collateralized debt obligations anding was $15.3 million, against which the Comphagt a $1.6 million loan loss reserve.

The following sets forth delinquent loans, inclugireal estate owned through foreclosure (REQ) impoutfolio as of December 31,
2007 and December 31, 2006 (dollar amounts in tiols):

December 31, 2007

Number of Delinquent Total % of Loan
Days Late Loans Dollar Amount Portfolio
30-60 — $ = —%
61-90 2 1,85¢ 0.47%
90+ 12 6,91( 1.61%
REO 4 $ 4,14~ 0.96%

December 31, 2006
Total

Number of Delinquent Dollar Amount % of Loan
Days Late Loans Portfolio
30-60 1 $ 16€ 0.0%%
61-90 1 192 0.0%%
90+ 4 5,81¢ 0.9%
REO 1 $ 62& 0.11%
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4, Property and Equipment — Net
Property and equipment consist of the followingggBecember 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 (datfayunts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
Office and computer equipment $ 17t $ 15€
Furniture and fixtures 152 147
Total equipment, furniture and fixtures 327 303
Less: accumulated depreciation (26E) (214)
Property and equipment - net $ 62 $ 89

5. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into derivatives to managaiesést rate and market risk exposure associatidtaimortgagdsacked securitie
investment activities. The Company uses interéstsaaps and caps to mitigate the effects of majerest rate changes on net investment
spread.

The following table summarizes the estimated falug of derivative assets and liabilities as of &eber 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Derivative Assets:
Interest rate caps $ 41€¢  $ 2,011
Interest rate swaps — 621
Total derivative assets $ 41€  $ 2,632
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 3517 $ —
Total derivative liabilities $ 3517 $ —

The Company had $4.7 million of restricted cashtesl to margin posted for interest rate swaps &eoémber 31, 2007. The
Company discontinued hedge accounting treatmenhéinterest rate swap positions during the fqctarter of 2007 as part of strategic
portfolio realignment related to the JMP capitaléstment in the Company. (See note 18) Accordinglyunrealized loss was recorded as an
unrealized loss in the Statement of Operationsnanidnger reflected as part of other compreherigsige@me in the Balance Sheet.
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The notional amounts of the Company’s interest sateps and interest rate caps as of December 8Z,\26re $220.0 million, and
$749.6 million, respectively.

The notional amounts of the Company’s interest sataps, interest rate caps as of December 31, 2866$285.0 million, and $1.5
billion, respectively.

6. Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments

The Company has entered into repurchase agreemihtthird party financial institutions to finandts residential mortgage-backed
securities and certain mortgage loans held in ¢oerdization trusts not financed by collateralizibt obligations. The repurchase agreements
are short-term borrowings that bear interest raéas®d on a spread to LIBOR, and are secured hesliential mortgage-backed securities and
mortgage loans held in the securitization trustictvithey finance. At December 31, 2007, the Compaau/repurchase agreements with an
outstanding balance of $315.7 million and a weidlz#eerage interest rate of 5.02%. As of Decembge2306, the Company had repurchase
agreements with an outstanding balance of $818I®mand a weighted average interest rate of 5.3&#®ecember 31, 2007 and December
31, 2006, securities and mortgage loans pledgedlideral for repurchase agreements had estinfatedalues of $337.4 million and $850.6
million, respectively. All outstanding borrowingader other repurchase agreements mature withira@®. @ he average days to maturity for all
repurchase agreements is 28 days. In the eventengnable to obtain sufficient short-term financthgpugh repurchase agreements or
otherwise, or our lenders start to require add#tiaollateral, we may have to liquidate our investinsecurities at a disadvantageous time, and
result in losses. Any losses resulting from th@aistion of our investment securities in this marecauld have a material adverse effect on our
operating results and net profitability.

The follow table summarizes outstanding repurclageement borrowings secured by portfolio investsias of December 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006 (dollars amounts in thou3ands

Repurchase Agreements by Counterparty

December 31, December 31,

Counterparty Name 2007 2006
$ $

Barclays Securities 101,29 —
Countrywide Securities Corporation — 168,21°
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC 97,38¢ —
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 66,43 121,82
HSBC 50,591 —
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. — 33,63
Nomura Securities International, Ir — 156,35:
SocGen/SG Americas Securities — 87,99t
West LB — 247,29:

Total Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments $ 315,71: $ 815,31

During the second half of 2007, the availabilitysbbrt-term collateralized borrowing through refha®e agreements worsened
considerably, primarily as a result of the fall-énotm increasing defaults in the sub-prime mortgageket and losses incurred in a number of
larger companies in the mortgage industry. The Gowisold approximately $21.5 million in néwgency securities as a result of an inabilit
obtain financing, resulting in a net loss of $1.lion. At December 31, 2007, we had outstandinabees under repurchase agreements with
four different counterparties and, as of the dathis report, we have been successful at resedfingutstanding balances under our various
repurchase agreements. (See Subsequent Events 18l&ir a discussion of the capital infusion af a&an increase in the number of
financial institutions providing liquidity to thedinpany.) In the event a counterparty elected toesst the outstanding balance into a new
repurchase agreement, we would be required to rigagutstanding balance with proceeds received imew counterparty or to surrender
the mortgage-backed securities that serve as ewdldor the outstanding balance. If we are un&bkecure financing from another
counterparty and as a result surrender the cadlatee would expect to incur a loss. Although wegantly expect the short-term collateralized
borrowing markets to continue providing us with @esary financing through repurchase agreementsam®ot be assured that this form of
financing will be available to us in the future comparable terms, if at all.
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7. Collateralized Debt Obligations

The Company’s CDOs are secured by ARM loans pledgezbllateral. The ARM loans are recorded as setadg the Company and the CDOs
are recorded as the Company’s debt. The CDO trdordncludes an amortizing interest rate cap @witwith a notional amount of $286.9
million as of December 31, 2007 and a notional amofi $187.5 million as of December 31, 2006, whihecorded as an asset of the
Company. The interest rate caps are carried avéhire and totaled $0.1 million as of DecemberZB)7 and $0.8 million as of December 31,
2006. The interest rate cap limits interest rafgosure on these transactions. As of December 37, @0d December 31, 2006, the Company
had CDOs outstanding of $417.0 million and $197ilian, respectively. As of December 31, 2007 arecBmber 31, 2006 the current
weighted average interest rate on these CDOs Wa&band 5.72%, respectively. The CDOs are collitedhby ARM loans with a principal
balance of $429.6 million and $204.6 million at Beter 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectiVhly Company retained the owner
trust certificates, or residual interest for theethsecuritizations and as of December 31, 200 hbaohvestment after loan loss reserves of
$13.7 million.

8. Subordinated Debentures

On September 1, 2005 the Company closed a privatement of $20.0 million of trust preferred setiesito Taberna Preferred Funding I,
Ltd., a pooled investment vehicle. The securitiesenssued by NYM Preferred Trust Il and are fglharanteed by the Company with respect
to distributions and amounts payable upon liquatgtredemption or repayment. These securities Adixed interest rate equal to 8.35% up to
and including July 30, 2010, at which point thesiett rate is converted to a floating rate equah®month LIBOR plus 3.95% until maturity.
The securities mature on October 30, 2035 and raasaled at par by the Company any time after Gat@0, 2010. In accordance with the
guidelines of SFAS No. 150 “Accounting for Cert&iimancial Instruments with Characteristics of biidbilities and Equity”, the issued
preferred stock of NYM Preferred Trust Il has belassified as subordinated debentures in the iiglsiéction of the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet.

On March 15, 2005 the Company closed a privategpt@nt of $25.0 million of trust preferred secustie Taberna Preferred Funding |, Ltd., a
pooled investment vehicle. The securities wereedsay NYM Preferred Trust | and are fully guaradteg the Company with respect to
distributions and amounts payable upon liquidatiedemption or repayment. These securities hal@atirfg interest rate equal to three-month
LIBOR plus 3.75%, resetting quarterly (8.58% at &maber 31, 2007 and 9.12% at December 31, 2006)sdtwrities mature on March 15,
2035 and may be called at par by the Company amgy &ifter March 15, 2010. HC entered into an inteade cap agreement to limit the
maximum interest rate cost of the trust preferxlsties to 7.5%. The term of the interest rate @greement is five years and resets quarterly
in conjunction with the reset periods of the tnustferred securities. The interest rate cap agraeim@ccounted for as a cash flow hedge
transaction in accordance with SFAS No.133. In edamoce with the guidelines of SFAS No. 1%&tounting for Certain Financial Instrume
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equijtthe issued preferred stock of NYM Preferred Tiusas been classified as subordinated
debentures in the liability section of the Compamonsolidated balance sheet.

As of March 31, 2008, the Company has not beerfi@dtiand is not aware, of any event of defaultarrttie covenants for the subordinated
debentures.
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9. Discontinued Operation

In connection with the sale of our wholesale mayg@rigination platform assets on February 22, 280d@ the sale of our ret
mortgage lending platform on March 31, 2007, dutimg fourth quarter of 2006, we classified our mage lending business as a discontil
operation in accordance with the provisions of SF& 144. As a result, we have reported revenuesexpenses related to the mortc
lending business as a discontinued operation amdefated assets and liabilities as assets anditiesbrelated to a discontinued operation
all periods presented in the accompanying condelitiinancial statements. Certain assets, sucheaddferred tax asset, and certain liabili
such as subordinated debt and liabilities relatdddsed facilities not assigned to Indymac wiltdree part of the ongoing operations of NY
and accordingly, we have not included these itesnsaat of the discontinued operation in accordavitle the provisions of SFAS No. 144.

The components of Assets related to the discontilmperation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 dmlaws (dollar amounts in thousands):
December 31,

2007 2006

Due from loan purchasers $ — 3 88,35!
Escrow deposits-pending loan closings — 3,81«
Accounts and accrued interest receivable 51 2,48¢
Mortgage loans held for sale 8,07 106,90(
Prepaid and other assets 737 4,654
Derivative assets — 171
Property and equipment, net 11 6,42

Total assets $ 8,87¢ $ 212,80!

The components of Liabilities related to the digoared operation as of December 31, 2007 and 28®9&sfollows (dollar amounts in
thousands):
December 31,

2007 2006
Financing arrangements, loans held for sale $ — 3 172,97
Due to loan purchasers 894 8,334
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,93¢ 6,06¢
Derivative liabilities — 21¢
Other liabilities — 117
Total liabilities $ 583 $ 187,70!

Mortgage Loans Held for SaleMortgage loans held for sale consists of the foifmvas of December 31, 2007 and Decembe
2006 (dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Mortgage loans principal amount $ 9,63t $ 110,80«
Deferred origination costs — net (43 13¢
Reserve for loan losses (1,51¢) (4,042)
Total mortgage loans held for sale (net) $ 8,071 $ 106,90(

Loan losses The following table presents the activity in then@any's reserve for loan losses on mortgage loatsfor sale fc
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 (@mllaunts in thousands).

December 31,

2007 2006
Balance at beginning of year $ 4,04 $ s
Provisions for loan losses 974 5,04(




Charge-offs (3,500 (99¢)
Balance of the end of year $ 1,51¢ $ 4,04:
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Financing Arrangements, Mortgage Loans Held foreS&linancing arrangements secured by mortgage loddddresale consisted
the following as of December 31, 2006 (dollar antsin thousands):

December 31,

2006

$120 million master repurchase agreement as of IMat¢ 2007 with CSFB expiring on June 29, 2007 $2@D million a

of December 31, 2006, bearing interest at daily@®Bplus spreads from 0.75% to 2.000% depending on

collateral (6.36% at December 31, 2006). Principphyments are required 90 days from the funding. ddanagemer

did not seek renewal of this facility. $ 106,80:
$300 million master repurchase agreement with @bet8ank Structured Products, Inc. expiring on M&6, 2007

bearing interest at 1 month LIBOR plus spreads f0o825% to 1.25% depending on collateral (6.0%extdmnber 31,

2006). Principal payments are due 120 days fromeparchase date. Management did not seek renéwakdacility. 66,17

Total Financing Arrangements $ 172,97.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had no oudstg financing arrangements secured by mortgagesiteld for sale.
The combined results of operations related to theoditinued operation are as follows (dollar amsumthousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Revenues:

Net interest incom $ 1,07C $ 352« % 4,49¢
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 2,561 17,98 26,78:
Loan losses (8,879 (8,22¢) —
Brokered loan fees 2,31¢ 10,93} 9,991
Gain on retail lending segment 4,36¢ — —
Other (expense) income (67) (294) 231
Total net revenues 1,37¢ 23,92¢ 41,50
Expenses:

Salaries, commissions and benefits 7,20¢ 21,71 29,04
Brokered loan expenses 1,731 8,27 7,548
Occupancy and equipment 1,81¢ 5,07 6,07¢
General and administrative 6,74 14,55: 16,05:
Total expenses 17,50z 49,617 58,71t
Loss before income tax benefit (16,12¢) (25,69)) (17,21)
Income tax (provision) benefit (18,357) 8,49 8,54¢
Loss from discontinued operations — net of tax $ (34,479 $ (17,19) $ (8,667)
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Gain on Sale of Mortgage Loan§ he Company recognizes gain on sale of loanstsdicird parties as the difference between the
sales price and the adjusted cost basis of the lwvaaen title transfers. The adjusted cost basiBefoans includes the original principal amc
adjusted for deferrals of origination and commititrfeles received, net of direct loan originationtsgsaid.

Loan Origination Fees and Direct Origination Cesthe Company records loan fees, discount poirdscantain incremental direct
origination costs as an adjustment of the cosh@idan and such amounts are included in gain les séloans when the loan is sold.

Brokered Loan Fees and Expens@he Company recorded commissions associatedbsdtkered loans when such loans are closed
with the borrower. Costs associated with brokeoaethé are expensed when incurred.

Loan Commitment Feed-ees received for the funding of mortgage loansarrowers at pre-set conditions are deferred and
recognized at the date at which the loan is sold.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Loans Sold to InvestorsFor loans originated and sold by our discontinuedtgage lending business, the Company is not exbiase
long term credit risk. In the normal course ofihess however, the Company is obligated to repsehaans based on violations of
representation and warranties, or early paymertultst For the year ended December 31, 2007 tihep@oy repurchased a total of $6.7
million of loans from investors, versus a totab@8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2007 we had a total of $4.4iomilbf unresolved repurchase requests, againstvthee Company has a reserve of
approximately $0.5 million. A total of $20.8 millicof repurchase requests in 2007 were settled teyieg into agreements with the parties
requesting the repurchases. These settlementragnée were settled by a cash payment in lieu afrasing the loans. In the majority of
these agreements all future claims from thesegsahtive been included in the settlement.

Outstanding Litigation The Company is at times subject to various |pgateedings arising in the ordinary course of bessrother
than as described below, the Company does notediiat any of its current legal proceedings, ifdlially or in the aggregate, will have a
material adverse effect on its operations, findraoadition or cash flows.

On December 13, 2006, Steven B. Yang and Christdpaabiere ( “ Plaintiffs "), filed suit in the Uted States District Court for the
Southern District of New York against HC and utegihg that we failed to pay them, and similarliyiated employees, overtime in violation of
the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) and New Y@tate law. The Plaintiffs, each of whom were form@ployees in our discontinued
mortgage lending business, purported to bring aftcllective action” on behalf of similarly situad loan officers in our now discontinued
mortgage lending business and sought unspecifiediats for alleged unpaid overtime wages, liquidatachages, attorney ' s fee and costs.

On December 30, 2007 we entered into an agreemgniriciple with the Plaintiffs to settle this suithe proposed settlement terms
resulted in a charge of approximately $1.0 millionthe fourth quarter of 2007. The terms of thielement remain subject to court
approval. We anticipate closing of the settlementrdy the first half of 2008.

Leases The Company leases its corporate offices anaiceoffice space related to our discontinued margganding operation not
assumed by IndyMac and equipment under steorir lease agreements expiring at various datesghr2010. All such leases are accounte
as operating leases. Total rental expense for propad equipment amounted to $1.5 million, $4.8iam and $4.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On November 13, 2006, the Company entered intosaigAment and Assumption of Sublease and an Eskgoeement, each with
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. (“Lehman”) (colle&ly, the “Agreements”). Under the Agreements, tbenPany assigned and Lehman has
assumed the sublease for the Company's corporatigharters at 1301 Avenue of the Americas. Purdoahe Agreements, Lehman has
funded an escrow account for the benefit of HC ghehif the Company vacates the leased spaceéE&dbruary 1, 2008, the Company will
receive $3.2 million. The escrow amount shall wriped by $0.2 million for each month the Compamgaias in the leased space beginning
February 1, 2008. The entire remaining amount hettle escrow account will be released to the Campehen it vacates the leased space.
Pursuant to the provisions of the sale transagtitin IndyMac, beginning August 1, 2007, so longradyMac continues to occupy and use the
leased space at the Company’s corporate headgudrtdyMac will pay rent equal to Company’s costluding any penalties and foregone
bonuses resulting from the delayed vacation ofehsed premises. Until February 1, 2008, the Coripdease cost, including penalties and
foregone bonuses, is $0.2 million per month, aiteount increases by $0.2 million to include thegtign The Company intends to relocate its
corporate headquarters to a smaller facility atcation that is yet to be determined.

As of December 31, 2007 obligations under non-daie operating leases that have an initial terrmofe than one year are as
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):



Year Ending December 31, Total

2008 $ 2,52
2009 2,42t
2010 2,38(
2011 1
2012 —
Thereafter —

$ 7,32¢
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Letters of Credit HC maintains a letter of credit in the amoun$00,000 in lieu of a cash security deposit footHite lease dated
June 1998 for the Company’s former headquarteetdolcat 304 Park Avenue South in New York City. $oke beneficiary of this letter of
credit is the owner of the building, 304 Park Aver&outh LLC. This letter of credit is secured bgtcdeposited in a bank account maintained
at JPMorgan Chase bank.

11. Concentrations of Credit Risk

At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, there geographic concentrations of credit risk exicgpf% of the total loan
balances within mortgage loans held in the secatitin trusts and retained interests in our REMd€usitization, NYMT 2006-1, as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
New York 31.2% 29.1%
Massachusetts 17.4% 17.5%
Florida 8.2% 11.4%
California 7.2% 7.5%
New Jerse! 5.7% 5.1%
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12.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are made as of a specifid ppoiime based on estimates using market quotesgept value or other valuation
techniques. These techniques involve uncertaiatielsare significantly affected by the assumpticseduand the judgments made regarding
characteristics of various financial instrumentscdunt rates, estimates of future cash flows reuaxpected loss experience, and other factors.

Changes in assumptions could significantly affaese estimates and the resulting fair values. Bériair value estimates cannot be
necessarily substantiated by comparison to indegggndarkets and, in many cases, could not be radgsgalized in an immediate sale of
instrument. Also, because of differences in methamgles and assumptions used to estimate fair vathbesCompanys fair values should not |
compared to those of other companies.

Fair value estimates are based on existing finaimgruments and do not attempt to estimate ttaevaf anticipated future business
and the value of assets and liabilities that atecapsidered financial instruments. Accordinglye #ggregate fair value amounts presented
below do not represent the underlying value ofGoenpany.

The fair value of certain assets and liabilitiepragimate cost due to their short-term nature, seofirepayment or interest rates
associated with the asset or liability. Such asselisbilities include cash and cash equivalergstricted cash, and financing arrangements.

The following describes the methods and assumptised by the Company in estimating fair valuestbéofinancial instruments:

a.Investment Securities Available for Saleair value is generally estimated based on maniets provided by five to seven
dealers who make markets in these financial instntm If the fair value of a security is not reasuly available from a dealer,
management estimates the fair value based on ¢hestics of the security that the Company recefvas the issuer and based on
available market information. Management reviewg@ates used in determining valuation to ensusy ttepresent current market
conditions. This review includes surveying simitaarket transactions, comparisons to interest gicidels as well as offerings of
like securities by dealers.

b. Mortgage Loans Held in the Securitization Truskdortgage loans held in the securitization trusesracorded at amortized
cost. Fair value is estimated using pricing modeld taking into consideration the aggregated cheniatics of groups of loans such
as, but not limited to, collateral type, indexgirgst rate, margin, length of fixed-rate periofé, &iap, periodic cap, underwriting
standards, age and credit estimated using the djnodeket prices for securities backed by similgetyof loans.

c. Subordinated DebenturesThe fair value of these subordinated debentuppsoximates cost and is based on management'’s
assessment of the Company’s current ability to riteéihancial obligations.

d . Interest Rate Swaps and Capdhe fair value of interest rate swaps and capssed on using market accepted financial
models as well as dealer quotes.
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The following tables set forth information aboutdncial instruments, except for those noted abowa/hich the carrying amount
approximates fair value (dollar amounts in thousand

December 31, 2007

Notional Carrying Estimated

Amount Amount Fair Value
Investment securities available for sale $ 359,36! $ 350,48: $ 350,48«
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts 429,62¢ 430,71! 421,27"
Subordinated debentur 45,00( 45,00( 45,00(
Interest rate swaps 220,00( (3,519 (3,519
Interest rate caps $ 749,59¢ $ 41€¢ $ 41€

December 31, 2006

Notional Carrying Estimated

Amount Amount Fair Value
Investment securities available for sale $ 491,29 $ 488,96: $ 488,96:
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts 584,35t 588,16( 582,50«
Subordinated debentur 45,00( 45,00( 45,00(
Interest rate swaps 285,00( 621 621
Interest rate caps $ 1,540,511 $ 2,011 $ 2,011
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13. Income taxes

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax prowis (benefit) to the effective income tax provision the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, are as follows (dollar am®imthousands).

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Benefit at statutory rate $ (9,830 (35.0% $ (8.239) (35.0% $ (4,860 (35.0%
%
. 7 (2,03) (14.7
Non-taxable REIT income (loss) 3,00¢ 10.7 (1,89)) (8.00% Yo
Transfer pricing of loans sold to nontaxable parent - - 11 0.C% 554 4.C%
, % ) (1,731) (12.5%
State and local tax benefit (1,797%) 6.4 (2,667 (11.2%
%
Valuation allowance 26,96: 96.C 4,26¢ 18.1%
%
474 3.5%
Miscellaneous 9 0.C 14 0.1% @rg @9
) -
Total provision (benefit) $ 18,35 65.9% $ (8,49) (36.1% ° (8,549 (61.7)%

The income tax provision for the year ended DecerBhe2007 (included in discontinued operationse Bote 9) is comprised of the
following components (dollar amounts in thousands):

Deferred
Regular tax provision
Federal $ 14,52:
State 3,83(
Total tax provision $ 18,35:

The income tax benefit for the year ended DecerBibeR006 (included in discontinued operationse-Nete 9) is comprised of the
following components (dollar amounts in thousands).

Deferred
Regular tax benefit
Federal $ (6,72])
State (1,779
Total tax benefit $ (8,499

The income tax benefit for the year ended Decer8beR005 (included in discontinued operationse-Nete 9) is comprised of the
following components (dollar amounts in thousands).

Deferred
Regular tax benefit
Federal $ (6,81%)
State (1,73))
Total tax benefit $ (8,549

The deferred tax asset at December 31, 2007 insladieferred tax asset of $0.1 million and a defetax liability of $0.1 million
which represents the tax effect of differences betwtax basis and financial statement carrying atsoaf assets and liabilities. The major
sources of temporary differences and their defdiara:ffect at December 31, 2007 are as follow#gdamounts in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:



Net operating loss carryover $ 27,43¢

Restricted stock, performance shares and stockropiipense 48¢
Mark to market adjustment 86
Sec. 267 disallowance 26¢&
Charitable contribution carryforward 1
GAAP reserves 994
Rent expense 252
Loss on sublease 50
Gross deferred tax asset 29,57«
Valuation allowance 29,50¢
Net deferred tax asset $ 65

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation $ 65

Total deferred tax liability $ 65

F-26




Table of Content

The deferred tax asset at December 31, 2006 insladieferred tax asset of $18.4 million and a dedetax liability of $0.1 million
which represents the tax effect of differences lketwtax basis and financial statement carrying ausoof assets and liabilities. The major
sources of temporary differences and their defalara:ffect at December 31, 2006 are as followdigdamounts in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryover $ 19,94¢
Restricted stock, performance shares and stockroptipense 41C
Mark to market adjustment 2
Sec. 267 disallowance 26¢
Charitable contribution carryforward 35
GAAP reserves 1,39¢
Rent expense 51¢
Loss on sublease 121
Gross deferred tax asset 22,70:
Valuation allowance (4,269
Net deferred tax asset $ 18,43

Deferred tax liabilities:

Management compensation $ 16
Depreciation 65
Total deferred tax liability $ 81

The $62.0 million operating loss carry-forward eggiat various intervals between 2024 and 2027 chidtable contribution carry-
forward will expire in 2011.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2007 maragatetermined that the Company would likely notibke to utilize the deferrt
tax asset and accordingly recorded a 100% valuatiowance. The allowance was expensed in continaperations because the potential
deferred tax benefit remains with the Company. CThenpany continued to reserve 100% of deferred éefit in the quarter ended December
31, 2007 as the facts continue to support the Cagipanability to utilize the deferred tax asset.

14. Segment Reporting

Until March 31, 2007, the Company operated twotstii@s, managing a mortgage portfolio, and opegatimortgage lending
business. Upon the sale of substantially all ofrtieetgage lending operating assets to Indymac daoh 31, 2007, the Company exited the
mortgage lending business and accordingly no loregrts segment information.
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15. Capital Stock and Earnings per Share

The Company had 400,000,000 shares of common gtackjalue $0.01 per share, authorized with 3,&8bghares issued and
3,615,576 (as adjusted to reflect the reverse stplikdescribed below) outstanding as of Decen3ie2007 and 2006, respectively. Of the
common stock authorized, 206,222 shares (plusifedshares previously granted) were reservedsBuance as restricted stock awards to
employees, officers and directors pursuant to 8@525tock Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2@71,887 shares remain reserved for
issuance.

The Board of Directors declared a one for five regestock split of the Company's common stockf&atober 9, 2007, decreasing
the number of common shares outstanding to appwaieig;3.6 million. All per share and share amoymtsvzided in the annual report have
been restated to give effect to the reverse stplik s

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévlling net income (loss) for the period by wetigdaverage shares of comn
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted net imeo(loss) per share takes into account the effedifudive instruments, such as stock options
and unvested restricted or performance stock, §es the average share price for the period inméierg the number of incremental shares
that are to be added to the weighted-average nuaitsdrares outstanding. Since the Company is @ss position for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the calculafitbasic and diluted earnings per share is the sance the effect of common stock
equivalents would be anti-dilutive.

The following table presents the computation ofibasad diluted net earnings per share for the psrindicated (dollar amounts in
thousands, except net earnings per share):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Numerator:
Net Loss $ (55,269 $ (15,03) $ (5,340
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstardibasic and diluted 3,62¢ 3,60¢ 3,57¢
Net loss per sha— basic and diluted $ (15.29) $ 4.17) $ (1.49)

During 2007, taxable dividends for our common steeke $0.50 per share. For tax reporting purpdbes2007 taxable dividend will
be classified as a return of capital.

During 2006, taxable dividends for our common steeke $3.15 per share. For tax reporting purpdbes2006 taxable dividend will
be classified as follows: $0.1201 as ordinary ineand $3.0299 as a return of capital.

Upon the closing of the Company’s IPO, of the 580,6hares exchanged for the equity interests of20@00 shares were held in
escrow through December 31, 2004 and were avaitaldatisfy any indemnification claims the Compamgy have had against the contribu
of HC for losses incurred as a result of defauftsoy residential mortgage loans originated by IHE @osed prior to the completion of the
IPO. As of December 31, 2004, the amount of esadostares was reduced by 9,536 shares, repres@d@23536 for estimated losses on Ic
closed prior to the Company’s IPO. Furthermore dbwetributors of HC entered into a new escrow ages#, which extended the escrow
period to December 31, 2006 for the remaining 10 gtares. In September 2006, the Company conchitlediemnification claims related to
the escrowed shares were finally determined anatlditional losses would be incurred. Accordingly temaining 10,464 escrowed shares
were released from escrow on October 27, 2006.

The Company has granted 118,300 stock options utsdgtiock incentive plans in the past. As of Deben81, 2007 there were no
options outstanding.
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16. Stock Incentive Plans
2004 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company adopted the 2004 Stock Incentive Rien“2004 Plan”), during 2004. The 2004 Plan predidor the issuance of
options to purchase shares of common stock, stwekds, stock appreciation rights and other equétyeldl awards, including performance
shares, and all employees and non-employee diseaterre eligible to receive these awards under @& Plan. During 2004 and 2005, the
Company granted stock options, restricted stockpamfbrmance shares to certain of its employeesianeemployee directors under the 2004
Plan, including performance shares awarded toioeztaployees in connection with the Company’s Nolven2004 acquisition of Guaranty
Residential Lending, Inc. (“GRL"). The maximum nuemkof options that could be issued under the 2084 Was 141,200 shares and the
maximum number of restricted stock awards thatatbel granted was 158,850.

2005 Stock Incentive Plan

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Mdy 3005, the Company’s stockholders approved tbptaeh of the Company’s
2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”). Th@2®@lan replaced the 2004 Plan, which was termihaethe same date. The 2005 Plan
provides that up to 206,222 shares of the Comargmmon stock may be issued thereunder. The 2@@5pRovides that the number of she
available for issuance under the 2005 Plan mayntreased by the number of shares covered by 2@daards that were forfeited or
terminated after March 10, 2005. On October 1262€fe Company filed a registration statement omF8-8 registering the issuance or res
of 206,222 shares under the 2005 Plan. As of DeeeBib 2007, 3,308 shares awarded under the 2@ been forfeited or terminated.

Options

Each of the 2005 and 2004 Plans provide for thecésesprice of options to be determined by the Cemnsption Committee of the
Board of Directors (“Compensation Committee”) bat to be less than the fair market value on the tfe option is granted. Options expire
ten years after the grant date. As of Decembe@Q7 there were no options outstanding.

The Company accounts for the fair value of its tg@m accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). The compmsaost charged against
income exclusive of option forfeitures during thelve months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 pypasxdmately $0 and $32,000,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there wagnrecognized compensation cost related to noregtedtare-based compensation awards
granted under the stock option plans. No cash a@aivred for the exercise of stock options durirgtthelve month periods ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

A summary of the status of the Company’s optiongfd3ecember 31, 2007 and changes during the hearended is presented

below:
Weighted
Average
Number of Exercise
Options Price
Outstanding at beginning of year, January 1, 2007 93,80( $ 47.6(
Granted — —
Canceled (93,800 47.6(
Exercised — —
Outstanding at end of year, December 31, 2007 — 3 =
Options exercisable at year-end — $ —
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A summary of the status of the Company’s optiongfd3ecember 31, 2006 and changes during the hearended is presented

below:
Weighted
Average
Number of Exercise
Options Price
Outstanding at beginning of year, January 1, 2006 108,30( $ 47.8(
Granted — —
Canceled (15,000 49.1*
Exercised — —
Outstanding at end of year, December 31, 2006 93,30 $ 47.6(
Options exercisable at year-end 93,30( $ 47.6(
The following table summarizes information abowc&toptions at December 31, 2006:
Options
Outstanding
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Options Exercisable Fair Value of
Number Life Exercise Number Exercise Options
Range of Exercise Prices Date of Grants Outstanding  (Years) Price Exercisable Price Granted
$45.00 6/24/0¢ 35,30( 75% 45.0( 35,30( $ 45.0(%$ 0.3¢
$49.15 12/2/0¢ 58,00( 7.9 49.1t 58,00( 49.1°¢ 0.2¢
Total 93,30( 7.8% 47.6( 93,30( $ 47.6($ 0.3
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The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Binomial option-pricmodel with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

Risk free interest rate 4.5%
Expected volatility 10%
Expected life 10 year

Expected dividend yield 10.4¢%

Restricted Stocl

The Company has awarded 136,867 shares of redtstiiek under the 2005 Plan, of which 100,380 shhase fully vested and
36,467 were cancelled or forfeited. As of Decen81er2007 there were no outstanding restricted saackrds under the 2005 Plan. During the
years ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, @@06ompany recognized r-cash compensation expense of $0.6 million and $1.0
million relating to the vested portion of restridtstock grants, respectively. Dividends are pai@lbrestricted stock issued, whether those
shares are vested or not. In general, unvestetictedtstock is forfeited upon the recipient’s teration of employment.

A summary of the status of the Company’s wested restricted stock as of December 31, 200¢hadges during the year then er
is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Non-vested Average
Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested shares at beginning of year, January I7 200 42,70 % 31.8(
Granted - -
Forfeited (31,179 27.8¢
Vested (11,52)) 43.1¢
Non-vested shares as of December 31, 2007 - $ .
Weighted-average fair value of restricted stocktgd during the period $ - $ -

A summary of the status of the Company’s mested restricted stock as of December 31, 200&hadges during the year then er
is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Non-vested Average
Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested shares at beginning of year, January 1§ 200 44,21: $ 44.2¢
Granted 25,83 21.8(
Forfeited (4,34]) 46.0(
Vested (23,007) 41.8¢
Non-vested shares as of December 31, 2006 42,70 $ 31.8(
Weighted-average fair value of restricted stocktgd during the period $ 562,54¢ $ 21.8(
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Performance Based Stock Awari

In November 2004, the Company acquired 15 fulliserand 26 satellite retail mortgage banking offitecated in the Northeast and
Mid-Atlantic states from General Residential Lergdimc. (“GRL"). Pursuant to that transaction, tbempany committed to award 47,762
shares of the Company'’s stock to certain emplogé#sose branches. Of these committed shares, #ly28e performance based stock awards
granted upon attainment of predetermined produdéeels and 6,511 were restricted stock awardofA3ecember 31, 2007, the awards range
in vesting periods from 3 to 6 months with a shaiee set at the December 2, 2004 grant date maeta¢ of $49.15 per share. During the
ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognizegdamincompensation expense reversal , inclusiverfditures of $0.1 million relating 1
performance based stock awards. There were naaadisg performance based stock awards as of Decedib2007.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veptatbrmance based stock awards as of Decemb@08Z,and changes during
the year then ended is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Non-vested Average
Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested shares at beginning of year, January I7 200 511C $ 49.1¢
Granted - -
Forfeited (5,110 49.1*
Vested - -
Non-vested shares as of December 31, 2007 - $ >

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veptatbrmance based stock awards as of Decemb@088,and changes during
the year then ended is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Non-vested Average
Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested shares at beginning of year, January 1§ 200 12,21 $ 49.1¢
Granted - -
Forfeited (5,254 49.1¢
Vested (1,85)) 49.1¢
Non-vested shares as of December 31, 2006 511C $ 49.1°f

17.  Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table is a comparative breakdown of onaudited quarterly results for the immediafgigceding eight quarters (dollar
amounts in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007
Revenues:
Interest income $ 13,712 $ 12,89¢ $ 12,37¢  $ 11,573
Interest expense 13,96¢ 12,78¢ 12,10; 11,22¢
Net interest income (259 112 26¢ 34¢

Other income (expense):
Loan losses — (940 (99) (644)
Loss on sale of securities and related hed. — (3,827) (1,019 (11,999




Total other expense

Expenses:
Salaries and benefits
General and administrative expenses

Total expenses

Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation - net of ta

Net loss
Per share basic and diluted loss

— (4,767 (1,112 (12,640
34E 151 17¢ 191
302 37¢ 66€ 541
647 52¢ 84¢ 732
(900) (5,176 (1,689 (13,029
(3,841 (9,019 (19,027 (2,592)
(4,74) $ (14,190 $ (20,716 $ (15,619
(1.3 $ (3.92) $ (5.70 $ (4.30)
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Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006

Revenues:

Interest income 17,58¢ 15,46¢ 16,99¢ $ 14,83!

Interest expense 14,96« 13,25 16,75¢ 15,121

Net interest income 2,62( 2,21¢ 23¢ (290

Other income (expense):

Loan losses — — — (57)

(Loss) gain on sale of securities and relate

hedges (969) — 44C —
Total other income (expense) (969) — 44C (57)

Expenses:
Salaries, commissions and related expense: 25C 20z 16€ 96
Brokered loan expenses — — — —
General and administrative expenses 37¢ 62¢ 24E 30¢
Total expenses 62¢ 831 411 40¢E
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,022 1,38¢ 26¢ (752)
Loss from discontinued operations - net of t¢ (2,81% (1,20¢€) (4,136 (8,799
Net income (loss $ (1,796 $ 17¢  $ (3,869 $ (9,54%)
Per share basic income (loss) $ (0.50) $ 0.0t $ (1.079) $ (2.64)

18. Subsequent events

Recently, the residential mortgage market in théddnStates has experienced a variety of diffieglind changed economic
conditions, including recent defaults, credit Iasaad liquidity concerns. During March 2008, nevpatential and actual security liquidations
has increased the price volatility and liquiditynoény financial assets, including Agency MBS arfteohigh-quality mortgage securities and
loans. As a result, market values for, and avadldijlidity to finance, certain mortgage securitiesluding some of our Agency MBS and
AAA-rated non-Agency MBS, have been negatively iotpd. As a response to these changed conditiorishwhve impacted a relatively
broad range of leveraged public and private congsawith investment and financing strategies simdasurs, the Company undertook a
number of strategic actions to reduce leverageraisé liquidity in the portfolio of Agency MBS. Sia March 7, 2008, the Company sold, in
aggregate, approximately $598.9 million of AgencB®$that comprised $516.4 million of Agency hybri®W MBS and $82.5 million of
Agency CMO floating rate MBS. These sales restiltealloss of $15.4 million. Additionally, as a résof these sales of MBS, we terminated
associated interest rate swaps that were usediggetmur liability costs with a notional balanceb@®7.7 million at a cost of $2.0 million. As of
March 31, 2008, our MBS portfolio totaled approxieig $507.0 million and was comprised of $259.6lioml of Agency hybrid ARM MBS,
$216.3 million of Agency CMO floating rate MBS (“OMFloaters”) and $31.1 million of AAA-rated ndkgency MBS. As of March 31, 20(
in aggregate, our Agency MBS portfolio was finaneéth approximately $431.7 million of reverse regheise agreement borrowings (referred
to as “repo” borrowings) with an average advante 0 91% that implies an average haircut of 9%lierentire portfolio. Within our total
portfolio, our Agency hybrid ARM MBS is financed thi$230.2 million of repo funding equating to avauce rate of 93% that implies a
haircut of 7% and our Agency CMO Floaters are foeghwith $180.7 million of repurchase agreemerdriting equating to an advance rate of
88% that implies a haircut of 12%. The Company alsas approximately $401.4 million of adjustableermortgages that were deemed to be
of “prime” or high quality at the time of originati. These loans are permanently financed with aqpiattely $388.3 million of collateralized
debt obligations and are held in securitizatiostsu

We generally finance our portfolio of Agency MBSdamon-Agency MBS through repurchase agreements. iksult of recent market
disruptions that included company or hedge funidifes and securities portfolio foreclosures by repase agreement lenders, among other
events, repurchase agreement lenders have tighteeiedending standards and have done so in a erghat now distinguishes between “type”
of Agency MBS. For example, during the month of 8ta2008, lenders generally increased haircuts andgHybrid ARMs from 3% to 7%
and also increased haircuts on Agency CMO Flodtens 5% to a range of 10% to 30%, largely dependeon cash flow structure. Given the
volatility in haircuts on Agency CMO Floaters, inakth 2008 we sold approximately $82.5 million ofefsgy CMO Floaters at a loss of $4.7
million rather than meet the significant increasedquired haircuts on these securities. Althougbeld the Agency CMO Floaters that were
subject to the greatest increase in haircuts, waaaassure you that the haircuts on the remaidgency CMO Floaters in our MBS portfolio
will not increase from their current haircut averarf 12%.A material increase in haircuts on theseisties (or on our Agency hybrid ARM
MBS) would likely result in further securities safhat would likely negatively affect our profitétyi, liquidity and the results of operations.



On February 21, 2008, the Company completed thaigse and sale of 15.0 million shares of its comstook in a private placement
at a price of $4.00 per share. This private affgef the Company's common stock generated neepdscto the Company of approximately
$57.0 million after payment of private placemergsiebut before expenses. In connection with thigfe offering of our common stock, we
entered into a registration rights agreement, whietrefer to as the Common Stock Registration Riglgreement, pursuant to which we are
required to file with the Securities and Exchangen@ission, or SEC, a resale shelf registratiorestant registering for resale the 15.0 mill
shares sold in this private offering.
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On January 18, 2008, the Company issued 1.0 mili@res of its Series A Cumulative Redeemable GtibleePreferred Stock,
which we refer to as our Series A Preferred ShaoedVIP Group Inc. and certain of its affiliates &m aggregate purchase price of $20.0
million. The Series A Preferred Shares entitletthlglers to receive a cumulative dividend of 10%ywr, subject to an increase to the extent
any future quarterly common stock dividends excg@dO per share. The Series A Preferred SharegenatuDecember 31, 2010, and are
convertible into shares of the Company's commockdb@ased on a conversion price of $4.00 per sHarteromon stock, which represents a
conversion rate of five shares of common stoclefrh Series A Preferred Share. At their optioa hiblders may purchase up to an additional
$20.0 million of Series A Preferred Shares, on fidahterms, through April 4, 2008. As set forthoae in Item 1, pursuant to a registration
rights agreement between the Company and the orgaist this private offering, in the event the Camp fails to file a resale registration
statement with the SEC on or before June 30, 20818ers of our Series A Preferred Shares may hteghto receive an additional cash
dividend at the rate of $0.10 per quarter per sf@reach calendar quarter after June 30, 2008 watfile such resale registration statement.

Concurrent with the issuance of the Series A PrefeShares, the Company and two of its wholly-owsidokidiaries entered into an
advisory agreement with IMP Asset Management LLIXMPAM"), pursuant to which IMPAM advises HC and Néark Mortgage Funding,
LLC regarding the acquisition and management abgemortgage-related investment assets, as walhgsdditional subsidiaries acquired or
formed in the future to hold investments made enGompany's behalf by IMPAM (collectively, the "Maged Subsidiaries"). Pursuant to the
advisory agreement, JMPAM will receive a base salyi fee in an amount equal to the equity of thexdged Subsidiaries (as defined)
multiplied by 1.50%. JMPAM is also eligible to eancentive compensation for performance in excésertain benchmarks. Because the
Company presently intends to focus its investméotts on the acquisition of Agency MBS, the Comyarboard of directors has not
authorized, and will not authorize, JIMPAM to commetthe acquisition of alternative mortgage relateestment assets until the risk adjusted
returns and financing environment for such assetsamt the investment of capital in such mannes.oAMarch 1, 2008, JIMPAM was not
managing any assets in the Managed Subsidiariesydsuearning a base advisory fee on the net pisdeethe Company from these private
offerings.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits. The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation &4 listed below. Management contracts or comgensplans are filed as
Exhibits 10.28 - 10.34, 10.38, 10.41, 10.46, 1016061, 10.66 - 10.68, 10.80 and 10.81.

Exhibit

Description

3.1

3.1(b)

3.1(c)

3.2(a)

3.2(b)

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3(a)

4.3(b)

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of New Yorbrtgage Trust, Inc. (Incorporated by referencexhilit 3.1 to th
Company’s Registration Statement on ForrilSas filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimis(Registration Ni
333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Articles of Amendment of the Registrant (Incorpecdhby reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’sr€urReport on
Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2007).

Articles of Amendment of the Registrant (Incorpecdhby reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’sr€urReport on
Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2007).

Bylaws of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. (Incorpaedt by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the CompaniRegistratio
Statement on Form S-11 as filed with the Securiied Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333668), effectiv
June 23, 2004).

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws of New York Mortgage Trusc.

Form of Common Stock Certificate. (Incorporatedreference to Exhibit 4.1 to the CompasRegistration Statement
Form S-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchabgmmission (Registration No. 333-111668), effextiune 23, 2004).

Junior Subordinated Indenture between The New Yditgage Company, LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank,oNa
Association, as trustee, dated September 1, 2085rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @any’s Current Repc
on Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Exd@@ommission on September 6, 2005).

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among TheWekwMortgage Company, LLC, JPMorgan Chase Bankjddal
Association, Chase Bank USA, National Associatiod ghe Administrative Trustees named therein, d&egtember
2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2he Company’s Current Report on ForniK&s filed with the Securitis
and Exchange Commission on September 6, 2005).

Articles Supplementary Establishing and Fixing Rights and Preferences of Series A Cumulative Radbie Convertibl
Preferred Stock of the Company (Incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Currenpdreon Form 8-K
filed on January 25, 2008).

Form of Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertbieferred Stock Certificate (Incorporated by refersto Exhibit 4.2
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filedJanuary 25, 2008).
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Exhibit

Description

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Warehousing Credit Agreement, among The New Yorktlyame Company LLC, Steven B. Schnall, Joseph ¥rré&ian
National City Bank of Kentucky, dated January 2802 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33he Compan’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 as filed with$ecurities and Exchange Commission (Registr&lmri333111668)
effective June 23, 2004).

First Amendment, dated April 2002, to Warehousinmgdit Agreement, among The New York Mortgage ConyplanC,
Steven B. Schnall, Joseph V. Fierro and Nationdy ®Gank of Kentucky, dated January 25, 2002. (Ipooated b
reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Regigin Statement on Form 8- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Second Amendment, dated June 3, 2002, to Warelp@iadit Agreement, among The New York Mortgage @any
LLC, Steven B. Schnall, Joseph V. Fierro and Natiddity Bank of Kentucky, dated January 25, 200@cdrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Third Amendment, dated November , 2002, to Wareingu€redit Agreement, among The New York Mortgagenpan'
LLC, Steven B. Schnall, Joseph V. Fierro and Natiddity Bank of Kentucky, dated January 25, 200@cdrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Fourth Amendment, dated June 15, 2003, to WarehguSiedit Agreement, among The New York Mortgagen@an)
LLC, Steven B. Schnall, Joseph V. Fierro and Natiddity Bank of Kentucky, dated January 25, 200@cdrporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Warehouse Promissory Note, between The New Yorkdgdge Company, LLC and National City Bank of Kehkiydatet
January 25, 2002. (Incorporated by reference taliixh0.44 to the Company’s Registration StatenmmtForm S11 a
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissRagistration No. 333-111668), effective June 2840
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Exhibit

Description

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Amended and Restated Warehouse Promissory NotgebetThe New York Mortgage Company, LLC and NatidDisy
Bank of Kentucky, dated June 3, 2002. (Incorporétedeference to Exhibit 10.45 to the CompaniRegistration Stateme
on Form S-11 as filed with the Securities and ExgeaCommission (Registration No. 3331668), effective June :
2004).

Warehousing Credit Agreement, between New York Fege Company, LLC, Steven B. Schnall, Joseph \trd-ianc
National City Bank of Kentucky, dated as of Janu&f; 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit460to thi
Company’s Registration Statement on ForrilSas filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimis(Registration Ni
333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Pledge and Security Agreement, between The New ¥Ytwktgage Company, LLC and National City Bank ofnikecky
dated as of January 25, 2002. (Incorporated byeeée to Exhibit 10.47 to the CompasyRegistration Statement on Fe
S-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Ciwsion (Registration No. 333-111668), effectiveel@B, 2004).

Unconditional and Continuing Guaranty of PaymenSiigven B. Schnall to National City Bank of Kentyc#ated Janua
25, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibid8o the Company’s Registration Statement on F8fhi as filed witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission (Registritim 333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Unconditional and Continuing Guaranty of Paymentlbgeph V. Fierro to National City Bank of Kentuckiated Janua
25, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibid@to the Company’s Registration Statement on F8ii as filed witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission (Registratim 333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Amended and Restated Unconditional and Continuingrénty of Payment by Steven B. Schnall to Nati@igf Bank o
Kentucky, dated June 15, 2003. (Incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.50 to the CompanyRegistration Statement
Form S-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchabgmmission (Registration No. 333-111668), effextiune 23, 2004).

Amended and Restated Unconditional and Continuingrénty of Payment by Joseph V. Fierro to Natid@igsy Bank o
Kentucky, dated June 15, 2003. (Incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.51 to the CompasyRegistration Statement
Form S-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchabgmmission (Registration No. 333-111668), effextiune 23, 2004).

Whole Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement/Mortgaga Poachase and Sale Agreement between The NewMortgage
Company, LLC and Greenwich Capital Financial Prasluinc., dated as of September 1, 2003. (Incotpdrhy referenc
to Exhibit 10.53 to the Company’s Registration &tant on Form 34 as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Whole Loan Custodial Agreement/Custodial Agreemegtiveen Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Iibe Nev
York Mortgage Company, LLC and LaSalle Bank Natlofissociation, dated as of September 1, 2003. (paated b
reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).
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10.16 [Itentionally omitted.]
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Exhibit

Description

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Guaranty between HSBC Bank USA, National City BahKentucky, The New York Mortgage Company LLC &tével
B. Schnall, dated as of December 15, 2003. (Incatpd by reference to Exhibit 10.71 to the Compariégistratio
Statement on Form S-11 as filed with the Securiied Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333668), effectiv
June 23, 2004).

Guaranty between HSBC Bank USA, National City BahKentucky, The New York Mortgage Company LLC alusep
V. Fierro, dated as of December 15, 2003. (Incafeat by reference to Exhibit 10.72 to the Compsufgegistratio
Statement on Form S-11 as filed with the Securiied Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333668), effectiv
June 23, 2004).

Credit Note by and between HSBC Bank USA and Ther Nerk Mortgage Company LLC, dated as of Decemiig
2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1093he Company’s Registration Statement on Forfrl &s filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission (Registration388-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Credit Note by and between National City Bank ohkeky and The New York Mortgage Company LLC, da&sdo
December 15, 2003. (Incorporated by reference tatiix10.74 to the Company’s Registration StatentenEorm St1 a
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissRagistration No. 333-111668), effective June 2840

Swingline Note by and between HSBC Bank USA and Nib& York Mortgage Company LLC, dated as of Decemili
2003. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 109%he Company’s Registration Statement on Forfrl &s filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission (Registration388-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Custodial Agreement by and among Greenwich Capitancial Products, Inc., The New York Mortgage fi@wation LLC
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, dated Asgust 1, 2003. (Incorporated by reference tbikix 10.76 to th
Company’s Registration Statement on ForrilSas filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimis(Registration Ni
333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).
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Exhibit

Description

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Master Mortgage Loan Purchase and Interim Servidiggeement by and between The New York Mortgage [uaomy
L.L.C. and Greenwich Capital Financial Products;. Imlated as of August 1, 2003. (Incorporated ligremce to Exhib
10.77 to the Company’s Registration Statement ormF8-11 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimi
(Registration No. 333-111668), effective June ZR4).

Promissory Note, issued by New York Mortgage FugdihLC on January 9, 2004 in the principal amouff
$100,000,000.00, payable to Greenwich Capital KidriProducts, Inc. (Incorporated by reference xaikit 10.82 to th
Company’s Registration Statement on ForrilSas filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimis(Registration Ni
333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Guaranty between the New York Mortgage Company, ldid Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inctedias ¢
January 9, 2004. (Incorporated by reference tolkitkhD.83 to the Company’s Registration Statemantorm S11 as file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (Regish No. 333-111668), effective June 23, 2004).

Custodial Agreement between New York Mortgage FagdiLC, Deutche Bank Trust Company Americas anee@wict
Capital Financial Products, Inc., dated as of Jgn@a2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhilfit8b to the Company’
Registration Statement on Form S-11 as filed with$ecurities and Exchange Commission (Registr&lmri333111668)
effective June 23, 2004).

Amendment Number One, dated November 24, 2003héoMaster Mortgage Loan Purchase and Interim Sag
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2003. (Incorpdrdig reference to Exhibit 10.86 to the CompanfRegistratio
Statement on Form S-11 as filed with the Securiied Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333668), effectiv
June 23, 2004).
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Exhibit

Description

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Magtgy Trust, Inc. and Steven B. Schnall. (Incorporabg
reference to Exhibit 10.92 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Magg Trust, Inc. and David A. Akre. (Incorporatedrbeference t
Exhibit 10.93 to the Company’s Registration Statenoe Form St1 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsimr
(Registration No. 333-111668), effective June ZR4).

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Magtg Trust, Inc. and Raymond A. Redlingshafer,ldcofporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.94 to the Company’s Regtion Statement on Form 13- as filed with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission (Registration No. 333-1116882ctive June 23, 2004).

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Mage Trust, Inc. and Michael I. Wirth. (Incorporatadreferenc
to Exhibit 10.95 to the Company’s Registration &tant on Form 34 as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Magg Trust, Inc. and Joseph V. Fierro. (Incorporatedeferenc
to Exhibit 10.96 to the Company’s Registration &tant on Form 34 as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).
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Exhibit

Description

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

Form of Employment Agreement between New York Magty Trust, Inc. and Steven R. Mumma. (Incorpordiy
reference to Exhibit 10.97 to the Company’s Regi&in Statement on Form B- as filed with the Securities and Exche
Commission (Registration No. 333-111668), effectluae 23, 2004).

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between N®&rk Mortgage Trust, Inc. and Steven R. Mummagc
December 2, 2004. (Incorporated by reference talxh0.98 to the Company’s Annual Report on FoidaKlas filed witt
the Securities and Exchange Commission on MarcR2@15).

Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreerpetwteen HSBC Bank USA, National Association, Naio@ity
Bank of Kentucky, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. ané New York Mortgage Company LLC, dated as of Fefyi:
2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.89the Company’s Annual Report on Form KQas filed with thi
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 315200

Amended and Restated Master Loan and Security Aggsebetween New York Mortgage Funding, LLC, Thev\¥ork
Mortgage Company, LLC and New York Mortgage Truist. and Greenwich Capital Financial Products,,|dated as «
December 6, 2004. (Incorporated by reference tal#ixh0.100 to the Company’s Annual Report on FdK as filec
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Madg 2005).

Amended and Restated Master Repurchase Agreememe@&eNew York Mortgage Trust, Inc., The New Yorlolgagt
Company, LLC, New York Mortgage Funding, LLC ande@it Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital LLC, dads o
March 30, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to ExHiB.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Fortd 8s filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 5, 2005

Separation and Release Agreement, dated June @5, BY and between the Company and Raymond A. Resiafer, J
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thmmpany’s Current Report on Formk8as filed with the Securities a
Exchange Commission on July 5, 2005).

Parent Guarantee Agreement between New York Moetdagst, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Nationabéiation, a
guarantee trustee, dated September 1, 2005. (lmedenl by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compsu@trrent Report ¢
Form 8-K as filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on September 6, 2005).

Purchase Agreement among The New York Mortgage @ompLLC, New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., NYM Preffiec
Trust Il and Taberna Preferred Funding I, Ltd tedaSeptember 1, 2005. (Incorporated by referemdexhibit 10.2 to th
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed wiith Securities and Exchange Commission on Septe®i2€05).

New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. 2005 Stock IncentRtan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Compan’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3/A (File No. 323400) as filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ission o
September 9, 2005).

Master Repurchase Agreement among DB Structuredulets, Inc., Aspen Funding Corp. and Newport Fund@orp, Nev
York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and NYMC Loan Corporaticiated as of December 13, 2005.*

Custodial Agreement among DB Structured Products,, IAspen Funding Corp., and Newport Funding GaiyMC
Loan Corporation, New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. adraSalle Bank National Association, dated as of éhalger 1:
2005.*

Master Repurchase Agreement among New York Mortgageling, LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LUGew
York Mortgage Trust Inc. and Greenwich Capital licial Products, Inc. dated as of January 5, 2006.*
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Exhibit

Description

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

Amended and Restated Custodial Agreement by anaig@fibe New York Mortgage Company, LLC, New York Myage
Funding, LLC, New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., La®aBank National Association and Greenwich CapitahRcial
Products, Inc. dated as of January 5, 2006.

Summary of 2005 Cash Bonuses Paid to Executive@#i(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2006

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated MasteriRegse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigdge
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of April 29, 2005 (incorporated bigrence to Exhibit 10.110 to the Company’s Quayt&port on Form 10-
Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated MasteriRegse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigdge
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of May 10, 2005 (incorporated byreafee to Exhibit 10.111 to the Company’s Quart&gport on Form 10-
Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated MastermRease Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigege
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W¥&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageist,
Inc. dated as of July 18, 2005 (incorporated bgnezice to Exhibit 10.112 to the Company’s QuartBeyport on Form 10-
Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated MastermRease Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigege
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W¥&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageist,
Inc. dated as of August 5, 2005 (incorporated ligremce to Exhibit 10.113 to the Company’s QuaytB#port on Form
10-Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 5 to Amended and Restated MastermRease Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigege
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of September 6, 2005 (incorporate@fgyence to Exhibit 10.114 to the Compan@uarterly Report on Fol
10-Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 6 to Amended and Restated MasteriRepgse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigdge
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of November 14, 2005 (incorporatetebgrence to Exhibit 10.115 to the Company’s QarartReport on
Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 7 to Amended and Restated MasteriRepgse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigdge
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of March 14, 2006 (incorporated ligremce to Exhibit 10.116 to the Company’s QuaytB#port on Form
10-Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 8 to Amended and Restated MasteriRegse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigdge
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W¥&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageist,
Inc. dated as of March 24, 2006 (incorporated lgremce to Exhibit 10.117 to the Company’s QuaytBeport on Form
10-Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 9 to Amended and Restated MastermRlease Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bostorigege
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W¥&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageist,
Inc. dated as of May 10, 2006 (incorporated byreafee to Exhibit 10.118 to the Company’s Quart&gport on Form 10-
Q filed on May 10, 2006).

Amendment No. 10 to Amended and Restated MasteunrRegse Agreement Among Credit Suisse First Bostorigage
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company LLC, N&ark Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageu3t,
Inc. dated as of August 4, 2006 (incorporated lgremce to Exhibit 10.119 to the Company’s QuaytB¢port on Form

10-Q filed on August 9, 2006).
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10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

Amendment No. 11 to Amended and Restated MasteunrRegse Agreement Among Credit Suisse First Bostorigage

Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company LLC, N&ark Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageu3t,
Inc. dated as of October 16, 2006 (incorporatedefigrence to Exhibit 10.120 to the Company’s Qubrteeport on Form
10-Q filed on November 9, 2006).

Amendment No. 12 to Amended and Restated MasteurRegse Agreement Among Credit Suisse First Bostorigage

Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company LLC, N&ark Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageu3t,
Inc. dated as of November 9, 2006 (incorporatedelfisrence to Exhibit 10.121 to the Compan@uarterly Report on Fol
10-Q filed on November 9, 2006).

Amendment Number One to the Master Repurchase Agreedated as of December 13, 2005, by and among DB
Structured Products, Inc., Aspen Funding Corp., pawFunding Corp., the Company and HC Loan Congmradated as
of December 12, 2006 (incorporated by referendextabit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrk&-K filed on
December 15, 2006).

Separation Agreement and General Release, by anedrethe Company and Steven B. Schnall, datedl stouary 6,
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1h Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed @bifuary 14, 2007).

Separation Agreement and General Release, by anedrethe Company and Joseph V. Fierro, dated Belwiiary 6,
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2hi Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed @bifuary 14, 2007).

Asset Purchase Agreement, by and among IndyMac ,BaBkB., The New York Mortgage Company, LLC anel New
York Mortgage Trust, Inc., dated as of Februar@@)7.*

Assignment and Assumption of Sublease, by and ltkehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and The New Yokigage
Company, LLC, dated as of November 14, 2006.*

First Amendment to Assignment and Assumption ofl€ase, dated as of January 5, 2007, by and bethleeiNew York
Mortgage Company, LLC and Lehman Brothers Holdihgs,*

Second Amendment to Assignment and Assumption bfease, dated as of February 8, 2007, by and batiee New
York Mortgage Company, LLC and Lehman Brothers had, Inc.*

Employment Offer Agreement by and between the Comaad A. Bradley Howe, dated as of September 0252
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.66 to @wnpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed onyM&, 2007).

First Amendment to Employment Offer Agreement bg Brtween New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and A. BegcdHowe,
dated as of June 23, 2006 (Incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.67 to the Company’s Quarterly Répor Form 10-Q
filed on May 15, 2007).

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement between Mevk Mortgage Trust, Inc. and Steven R. Mumma daie of
March 31, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBi68 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Fo@¥Qlfiled on May
15, 2007).

Termination Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2@@Ygng NYMC Loan Corporation, New York Mortgage Trusc., DE
Structured Products, Inc., Aspen Funding Corp.Medport Funding Corp. (Incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.69 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedvbay 15, 2007).

Amendment No. 13 to Amended and Restated MasteurRepse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bddtmtgage
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of December 12, 2006 (Incorporatextfgrence to Exhibit 10.70 to the Compan@Quarterly Report on For
10-Q filed on May 15, 2007).

Amendment No. 14 to Amended and Restated MasteurRepse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bddtmtgage
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,
Inc. dated as of January 24, 2007 (Incorporatedtfgrence to Exhibit 10.71 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form
10-Q filed on May 15, 2007).



10.72 Amendment No. 15 to Amended and Restated MasteurRepse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Bddtmtgage

Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageust,

Inc. dated as of March 23, 2007 (Incorporated figremce to Exhibit 10.72 to the Company’s Quart&gport on Form 10-
Q filed on May 15, 2007).
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10.73

10.74

10.75

10.76

10.77

10.78

10.79

10.80

10.81

10.82

10.83

12.1

211

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Amendment No. 16 to Amended and Restated MastenrRlegse Agreement among Credit Suisse First Badtotgage
Capital LLC, The New York Mortgage Company, LLC,W¥&ork Mortgage Funding, LLC and New York Mortgageist,
Inc. dated as of May 11, 2007 (Incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.73 to the Company’s Quartergp&t on Form 1@
filed on May 15, 2007).

Third Amendment to Assignment and Assumption ofl8ae, dated as of March 31, 2007, by and betwherNEw York
Mortgage Company, LLC and Lehman Brothers Holditgs, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.@4tte
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed onyM&, 2007).

Fourth Amendment to Assignment and Assumption dfi&se, dated as of August 30, 2007, by and betWkeriNew
York Mortgage Company, LLC and Lehman Brothers litad, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibitll® the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed orvBlmber 14, 2007).

Stock Purchase Agreement, by and among New Yorkddge Trust, Inc. and the Investors listed on Sgleeldthereto,
dated as of November 30, 2007 (Incorporated byeafse to Exhibit 10.1(a) to the Company’s Curreep&t on Form 8
filed on January 25, 2008).

Amendment No. 5 to Stock Purchase Agreement, byaamehg New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and the Ingestisted on
Schedule | to the Stock Purchase Agreement, datefl qanuary 18, 2008 (Incorporated by referendextabit 10.1(b) to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed anulary 25, 2008).

Registration Rights Agreement, by and among NewkYudortgage Trust, Inc. and the Investors listedschedule | to the
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of January008, (ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2h® Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 25,800

Advisory Agreement, by and among New York Mortgdgest, Inc., Hypotheca Capital, LLC, New York Moatge
Funding, LLC and JMP Asset Management LLC, dateofdsnuary 18, 2008 (Incorporated by referendextubit 10.3 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed anulary 25, 2008).

Employment Agreement, by and between New York Mgy Trust, Inc. and David A. Akre, dated as of day8, 2008
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the@any’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Jags, 2008).

Employment Agreement, by and between New York MagtgTrust, Inc. and Steven R. Mumma, dated asnofalg 18,
2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5h®Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed anuhry 25, 2008).

Form of Purchase Agreement, by and among New Yarkidédge Trust, Inc. and the Investors listed oreSake A theretc
dated as of February 14, 2008 (Incorporated byeafse to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Repn Form 8-K
filed on February 19, 2008).

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, by and amidag York Mortgage Trust, Inc. and the Investosseld on
Schedule A thereto, dated as of February 14, 2B@®iporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenPany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 19, 2008).

Computation of Ratios *

List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriting (Deloitte & Touche LLP).*
Section 302 Certification of Co-Chief Executive iOéfr.*

Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Office

Section 906 Certification of Co-Chief Executive iOr.*

Section 906 Certification of Chief Financial Office



* Filed herewith.




Exhibit 12.1
Computation of Ratios
Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Combined FixedCharges and Preferred Dividends

Years ended December 31,

(dollar amount in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Earnings:

$
Pretax income (loss) from continuing operations $ (55,26%) (23,529 $ (13,889 % 3,68¢ $ 13,72¢
Fixed Charges 52,757 72,93¢ 60,10¢ 16,01: 3,26¢
Dividends distributed to shareholders 1,82¢ 11,524 17,25¢ 7,60¢ 21,56¢
Total Earnings (685) 60,93¢ 63,47 27,30¢ 38,55

Fixed Charges:

Interest Expense 52,751 72,93¢ 60,10 16,01- 3,26¢
Amortized premiums & discounts related to indebtexin - - - - -
Capitalized expenses related to indebtedness - - - - -
Capitalized Interest - - - - -
Preference security dividends - - - - -
Total Fixed Charges $ 52,757 $ 72,93¢ $ 60,10¢ $ 16,01 $ 3,26¢

©“

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (0.0 $ 0.84 1.0¢€ 1.71 11.81

Preference security dividends - - = - -

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and prefereecerity
dividends (0.07) 0.84 1.0€ 1.71 11.81




Computation of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(dollar amount in thousands)
Fixed Charges:

+ Interest Expense

+ Capitalized Interest

+ Amortized premiums & discounts related to indebess
+ Capitalized expenses related to indebtedness

+ Interest within rent expense

+ Preference security dividends
Total Fixed Charges

Earnings:

+ Pretax income from continuing operations

+ Fixed Charges

+ Amortization of capitalized interest

+ Dividends distributed to shareholders

+ Pre-tax losses of equity investees

- Interest capitalized

- Preference security dividends of consolidatedssliaries
- Minority interest in pre-tax income of subs...

Total Earnings

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

If ratio is less than 1, disclose dollar amountieficiency

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
52,75 72,93¢ 60,10« 16,01 $ 3,26¢
52,75 72,93¢ 60,10« 16,01 3,26¢

(55,26¢) (23,52¢) (13,88¢) 3,68¢ 13,72¢

52,75 72,93¢ 60,10« 16,01 3,26¢

1,82¢ 11,52 17,25¢ 7,60¢ 21,56t
$

(685 60,93¢ 63,47 27,30¢ 38,55

(0.01) 0.8¢ 1.0€ 1.71 11.8(

53,44; 12,00: ; ) )




Name

List of Significant Subsidiaries

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21.1

Names under which it does Business

Hypotheca Capital, LLC (formerly known as
The New York Mortgage Company, LLC)
New York Mortgage Trust 20(-1

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-2

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-3

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-1

New York Mortgage Funding, LL!

New York

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-127400 of New York Mage Trust, Inc. on Form S-3/A and
Registration Statements No. 333-117524 and No.13¥387 of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. on Form 8f®&ur reports dated March 31,
2008, relating to the financial statements of NesvkfMortgage Trust, Inc. and subsidiaries and &éffectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting appearing in the Annual ReportForm 10-K of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. andbsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
March 31, 2008




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David A. Akre, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdkthe year ended December 31, 2007 of New Yorktlyage Trust, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbs ttesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made knao
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reéipgr, or caused such internal control over finahmgorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repogimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slassire controls and procedures and presentedisiréport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contint procedures, as of the end of the period cougyretis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the remists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evaiuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl ¢he audit committee of the registrant's boardictors (or persons performing the equiva
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting  whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial informatiol
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatn the registran
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008
/s/ David A. Akre
David A. Akre

Co-Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Mumma, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fdkihe year ended December 31, 2007 of New Yorktlyeme Trust, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or donditate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)}Hhd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbs tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finahmorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataroce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slassire controls and procedures and presentedisiréport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contots procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thet¢curred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regygts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl ghe audit committee of the registrant's boardi@ctors (or persons performing the equiva
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting  whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial informatiol
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registran
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008
/sl Steven R. Mumma

Steven R. Mumma

President, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of New York Mgage Trust, Inc, (the “Company”) on Form K{Jer the year ended December 31, 2I
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), the undergignereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of dineaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reguliby Section 906 has been provided to the Comaadwill be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.

Date: March 31, 2008
/s/ David A. Akre

David A. Akre
Co-Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of New York Ngage Trust, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe year ended December 31,
2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), the usigmed hereby certifies, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to section Bo&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.

Date: March 31, 2008
/s/ Steven R. Mumma

Steven R. Mumma
President, Co-Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer




